
 

NOTICE: Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should 
contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov at least two working days in 
advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

TROY CITY COUNCIL 
 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
AGENDA 

 
 
 

MAY 13, 2013 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Submitted By 
The City Manager 

mailto:clerk@troymi.gov�




 

 

TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, 
communications and recommendations that accompany your 
agenda.  Also included are suggested or requested resolutions 
and/or ordinances for your consideration and possible adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been 
prepared by department directors and staff members.  I am 
indebted to them for their efforts to provide insight and professional 
advice for your consideration. 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as 
your deliberations may require. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 
VISION: 
To honor the legacy of the past and build a strong, vibrant future and be an 
attractive place to live, work, and grow a business. 
 
GOALS: 
Provide a safe, clean, and livable city 
 Practice good stewardship of infrastructure  
 Maintain high quality professional community oriented police and fire protection 
 Conserve resources in an environmentally responsible manner 
 Encourage development toward a walkable, livable community 
 
Provide effective and efficient local government 
 Demonstrate excellence in community services 
 Maintain fiscally sustainable government 
 Attract and support a committed and innovative workforce 
 Develop and maintain efficiencies with internal and external partners 
 Conduct city business and engage in public policy formation in a clear and 

transparent manner 
 
Build a sense of community 
 Communicate internally and externally in a timely and accurate manner 
 Develop platforms for transparent, deliberative and meaningful community 

conversations 
 Involve all stakeholders in communication and engagement activities 
 Encourage volunteerism and new methods for community involvement 
 Implement the connectedness of community outlines in the Master Plan 2008 
 
Attract and retain business investment 
 Clearly articulate an economic development plan 
 Create an inclusive, entrepreneurial culture internally and externally 
 Clarify, reduce and streamline investment hurdles 
 Consistently enhance the synergy between existing businesses and growing 

economic sectors 
 Market the advantages of living and working in Troy through partnerships 

 

TROY CITY COUNCIL 
 

VISION STATEMENT AND GOALS 
Adopted: Monday, February 7, 2011 

 



 

 

 

 

 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
May 13, 2013 – 7:30 PM 

Council Chambers 
City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 
(248) 524-3317 

INVOCATION: 1 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Brownies Troop #74802 From Costello Elementary 1 

INSTALLATION OF MAYOR:  Mayoral Oath Ceremony 1 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 1 

B. ROLL CALL: 1 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS: 1 

C-1 Nature Society Presentation (Introduced by:  Brian Kischnick) (Presented by:  Stu 
Redpath) 1 

C-2 Proclamation and Presentation on May 13th – Asian and Pacific Islander Heritage 
Month (Presented by:  Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director) 1 

C-3 Building Safety Month, May 2013 (Presented by:  Steve Burns, SafeBuilt) 1 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

D-1 No Carryover Items 1 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 2 

E-1 No Public Hearings 2 



 

 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA: 2 

G. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC 
COMMENT: 3 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 3 

H-1 Postponed Public Hearing – ZOTA 245 Sober Living Facilities 3 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 3 

I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: a) Mayoral Appointments – None; b) City 
Council Appointments – Charter Revision Committee 3 

I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: a) Mayoral Nominations – None; b) City 
Council Nominations – Liquor Advisory Committee; Traffic Committee; Zoning 
Board of Appeals 4 

I-3 Request for Closed Session 7 

I-4 Proposed Revisions to Chapter 77 Smoking Lounges (Introduced by:  Lori Bluhm, 
City Attorney) 7 

I-5 Proposed Agreement with Somerset Collection (Introduced by:  Gary Mayer, Chief 
of Police and Andrew Breidenich, Sergeant) 7 

I-6 Sixth Order Amending Meritor and Nelson Companies Consent Judgment  
(Introduced by:  Lori Bluhm, City Attorney) 8 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 8 

J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 8 

J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council 8 

J-2  Approval of 05/13 9 

a) City Council Regular Meeting Minutes – April 15, 2013 ....................................... 9 
b) City Council Special Study Session (Budget) Minutes – April 22, 2013 ............... 9 
c) City Council Special Study Session (Budget) Minutes – April 24, 2013 ............... 9 



 

 

J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations 9 

a) Proclamation Celebrating Nurses Week – May 6-12, 2013 .................................. 9 

J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions: 9 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidder – Fencing for the 
Athena Detention Basin ........................................................................................ 9 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidder – Parking Lot 
Maintenance ......................................................................................................... 9 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option – Building 
Department Services .......................................................................................... 10 

J-5 Acceptance of Alliance of Rouge Communities (ARC) Membership and Adoption 
of Bylaws 10 

J-6 Assessment of Delinquent Accounts 11 

J-7 Charlene Femminineo v City of Troy et. al. 12 

J-8 Daniel Katayama v City of Troy 12 

J-9 Center Court Tennis LLC v City of Troy 12 

J-10 Community Financial Members Federal Credit Union v City of Troy et. al. 13 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 13 

K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Submitted 13 

K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at  
some future point in time): None Submitted 13 

L. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA: 13 

M. COUNCIL REFERRALS: 13 

M-1  No Council Referrals Advanced 13 

N. COUNCIL COMMENTS: 13 

N-1  No Council Comments Advanced 13 



 

 

O. REPORTS: 14 

O-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  None Submitted 14 

a) Downtown Development Authority-Final – May 2, 2012 ..................................... 14 
b) Downtown Development Authority-Final – September 19, 2012 ........................ 14 
c) Brownfield Redevelopment Authority-Final – October 16, 2012 ......................... 14 
d) Local Development Finance Authority-Final – October 22, 2012 ....................... 14 
e) Zoning Board of Appeals-Final – January 15, 2013 ........................................... 14 
f) Traffic Committee-Final – March 20, 2013 ......................................................... 14 
g) Planning Commission Special/Study-Final – March 26, 2013 ............................ 14 
h) Building Code Board of Appeals-Final – April 3, 2013 ....................................... 14 
i) Planning Commission-Draft – April 9, 2013 ........................................................ 14 
j) Planning Commission-Final – April 9, 2013 ........................................................ 14 
k) Brownfield Redevelopment Authority-Draft – April 16, 2013 .............................. 14 
l) Local Development Finance Authority-Draft – April 22, 2013 ............................. 14 
m) Building Code Board of Appeals-Draft – May 1, 2013 ........................................ 14 

O-2 Department Reports: 14 

a) 2013 City of Troy Assessment Roll and Board of Review Report ...................... 14 
b) 2013 Year to Date Calls for Police Service Report ............................................. 14 
c) Travel Expense Report – MML Capital Conference – Maureen McGinnis ......... 14 
d) Quarterly Financial Report Ending March 31, 2013 ............................................ 14 
e) 3rd Quarter Report - SOCRRA ............................................................................ 14 

O-3  Letters of Appreciation 14 

a) To Tim Richnak From William LaRue Regarding Professionalism of Staff ........ 14 
b) To Aileen Bittner From Troy School District, Friends of the Troy Library and 

the League of Women Voters Regarding Participation in the “Get Gov-
Understanding Troy’s Local Government” Program ........................................... 14 

c) To Chief Mayer Regarding Participation in a Department Presentation at the 
Troy Area Interfaith Group .................................................................................. 14 

d) To Chief Mayer From Ron Chick Regarding Department Participation in the 
Senior Fraud Seminar ........................................................................................ 14 

e) To Chief Mayer From Marcel DeMuynck Regarding Officer Actions at an 
Accident Scene .................................................................................................. 14 

f) To the Police Department From Maria Campot Regarding Professionalism of 
Staff to the Family .............................................................................................. 14 

g) To Department of Public Works From Ron McCreight Regarding 
Conscientious Work Crews ................................................................................ 14 

h) To Gary Bowers From Amy Sharpe Regarding Code Enforcement Efforts ........ 14 

O-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted 14 

O-5  Letter of Understanding From Rehmann Regarding Audit Services for FY 2012-13 14 

O-6  Oakland County Board of County Canvassers Report for the May 7, 2013 Election 14 



 

 

P. STUDY ITEMS: 15 

P-1  Economic Gardening – Creating an Environment for Investment in Troy 
 15 

Q. CLOSED SESSION: 15 

Q-1  Closed Session 15 

R. ADJOURNMENT: 15 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 16 

SCHEDULED REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 16 

Monday, May 20, 2013 Regular Meeting ............................................................... 16 
Monday, June 3, 2013 Regular Meeting ................................................................ 16 
Monday, June 17, 2013 Regular Meeting .............................................................. 16 
Monday, July 8, 2013 Regular Meeting ................................................................. 16 
Monday, July 22, 2013 Regular Meeting ............................................................... 16 
Monday, August 12, 2013 Regular Meeting .......................................................... 16 
Monday, August 26, 2013 Regular Meeting .......................................................... 16 
Monday, September 9, 2013 Regular Meeting ...................................................... 16 
Monday, September 23, 2013 Regular Meeting .................................................... 16 
Monday, October 7, 2013 Regular Meeting ........................................................... 16 
Monday, October 21, 2013 Regular Meeting ......................................................... 16 
Monday, November 11, 2013 Regular Meeting ..................................................... 16 
Monday, November 25, 2013 Regular Meeting ..................................................... 16 
Monday, December 2, 2013 Regular Meeting ....................................................... 16 
Monday, December 16, 2013 Regular Meeting ..................................................... 16 

SCHEDULED SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 16 





CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 13, 2013 
 

- 1 - 

INVOCATION:   

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Brownies Troop #74802 From Costello 
Elementary 

INSTALLATION OF MAYOR:  Mayoral Oath Ceremony 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 

B. ROLL CALL: 
a)  Mayor Dane Slater 

Jim Campbell 
Wade Fleming 
Dave Henderson 
Maureen McGinnis 
Ed Pennington 
Doug Tietz 

 
b) Excuse Absent Council Members: 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2013-05-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of            at the 
Regular City Council Meeting of May 13, 2013, due to           . 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:  
C-1 Nature Society Presentation (Introduced by:  Brian Kischnick) (Presented by:  Stu 

Redpath) 
 
C-2 Proclamation and Presentation on May 13th – Asian and Pacific Islander Heritage 

Month (Presented by:  Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director) 
 
C-3 Building Safety Month, May 2013 (Presented by:  Steve Burns, SafeBuilt) 
 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 
D-1 No Carryover Items 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 13, 2013 
 

- 2 - 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
E-1 No Public Hearings 
 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA: 
In accordance with the Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Article 17 – Members of 
the Public and Visitors: 
 
Any person not a member of the City Council may address the Council with recognition of the 
Chair, after clearly stating the nature of his/her inquiry or comment. City Council requests that if 
you do have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you are 
encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved satisfactorily, to 
the Mayor and Council. 

• Petitioners shall be given a fifteen (15) minute presentation time that may be extended with 
the majority consent of City Council. 

• Any member of the public, not a pet itioner of an i tem, shall be al lowed to speak for up to 
three (3) minutes to address any Public Hearing item. 

• Any member of the public, not a pet itioner of an i tem, shall be al lowed to speak for up to 
three (3) minutes total to address Postponed, Regular Business, Consent Agenda or Study 
items or any other item on the Agenda as permitted under the Open Meetings Act during the 
Public Comment for Items On the Agenda portion of the Agenda. 

• Any member of the public, not a pet itioner of an i tem, shall be al lowed to speak for up to 
three (3) minutes to address any topic not on t he Agenda as permitted under the Open 
Meetings Act during the Public Comment for Items Not on the Agenda portion of the 
Agenda. 

• All members of the public who wish to address the Council at a meeting shall be allowed to 
speak only if they have signed up t o speak within thirty minutes before or within fifteen 
minutes after the meeting’s start time. Signing up to speak requires each speaker provide 
his or her name and residency status (Troy resident, non-resident, or Troy business owner). 
If the speaker is addressing an Item (or Items) that appear on the pre-printed agenda, then 
the speaker shall also identify each such agenda item number(s) to be addressed. 

• City Council may waive the requirements of this section by a m ajority vote of the City 
Council members. 

• Agenda items that are related to topics where there is significant public input anticipated 
should initiate the scheduling of a Special meeting for that specific purpose. 

 
The following has been approved by Troy City Council as a statement of the rules of decorum for 
City Council meetings. The Mayor will also provide a verbal notification of these rules prior to 
Public Comment: 
 

The audience should be aware that all comments are to be directed to the Council rather 
than to City Administration or the audience. Anyone who wishes to address the Council is 
required to sign up to speak within thirty minutes before or within fifteen minutes of the start 
of the meeting. There are two Public Comment portions of the Agenda. For Items On the 
Agenda, speakers can sign up to address Postponed, Regular Business, Consent Agenda, 
or Study items or any other item on the Agenda. Speakers can sign up to address all other 
topics under Items Not on the Agenda.  Also, there is a timer on the City Council table in 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 13, 2013 
 

- 3 - 

front of the Mayor that turns yellow when there is one minute of speaker time remaining, and 
turns red when the speaker's time is up.    
 
In order to make the meeting more orderly and out of respect, please do not clap during the 
meeting, and please do not use expletives or make derogatory or disparaging comments 
about any one person or group.  If you do so, then there may be immediate consequences, 
including having the microphone turned off, being asked to leave the meeting, and/or the 
deletion of speaker comments for any re-broadcast of the meeting.  Speakers should also be 
careful to avoid saying anything that would subject them to civil liability, such as slander and 
defamation.   
 
Please avoid these consequences and voluntarily assist us in maintaining the decorum 
befitting this great City. 
 

G. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC 
COMMENT: 

 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 
H-1 Postponed Public Hearing – ZOTA 245 Sober Living Facilities 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2013-05-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That Articles 2, 4, 6, and 13 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy, 
pertaining to permitting sober living facilities within specified zoning districts by special use 
approval, including provisions related to a definition for and specific standards related to sober 
living facilities, be AMENDED to read as written in the proposed Zoning Ordinance Text 
Amendment (ZOTA 245), City Council Public Hearing Draft, as recommended by the Planning 
Commission. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 
I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: a) Mayoral Appointments – None; b) City 

Council Appointments – Charter Revision Committee 
 
a) Mayoral Appointments 
 
b) City Council Appointments 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2013-05-      



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 13, 2013 
 

- 4 - 

Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following nominated person(s) to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Charter Revision Committee 
Appointed by Council 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 
Nominations to the Charter Revision Committee: 

 
Term Expires:  04/30/2014 Frank Howrylak 
 Term currently held by: Mark Solomon’s term (deceased) 
 

Yes:       
No:       
 

I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: a) Mayoral Nominations – None; b) City 
Council Nominations – Liquor Advisory Committee; Traffic Committee; Zoning 
Board of Appeals 

 
a) Mayoral Nominations 
 
b) City Council Nominations 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2013-05- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby FORWARDS the following nominated person(s) 
to serve on t he Boards and C ommittees as indicated to the next Regular City Council 
Meeting for action: 
 

Liquor Advisory Committee 
Appointed by Council 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 
Current Members: 

Last Name First Name App Resume 
Expire 

Appointment 
Expire Notes 1 

Ehlert Max K. 11/15/2013 1/31/2015  
Godlewski W. Stan 12/14/2012 1/31/2014 Requests Reappointment 
Hall Patrick 12/12/2014 1/31/2016  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 13, 2013 
 

- 5 - 

Kaltsounis Andrew 12/13/2014 1/31/2016  
Oberski Jeff    
Pappas Jesse 6/5/2014 7/31/2013 Student Rep. 
Payne Timothy P. 2/8/2014 1/31/2015  
Scherlinck Eun Joo Andrea 6/11/2014 7/31/2013 Student Rep. 
Ukrainec Bohdan 12/23/2012 1/31/2014  
Vacancy   1/31/2015 David Ogg Resigned 

 

 
Nominations to the Liquor Advisory Committee: 
 
Term Expires:  01/31/2015  
 Term currently held by: Vacancy – David Ogg Resigned 
 
Interested Applicants: 
Last Name First Name App Resume 

Expire 
Notes 2 

Binkowski Matthew 5/7/2015  
 

 
 

Traffic Committee 
Appointed by Council 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 
Current Members: 

Last Name First Name App Resume 
Expire 

Appointment 
Expire Notes 1 Notes 2 

Binkowski Sarah 1/16/2015 1/31/2016   
Halsey Lawrence Ted 11/29/2013 1/31/2015   

Huotari William   Ex-Officio 
Member  

Kilmer Richard A. 12/23/2012 1/31/2014   

Mayer Gary   Ex-Officio 
Member  

Nelson William   Ex-Officio 
Member  

Petrulis Al 6/11/2014 1/31/2014  ACAB exp 9/30/2015 
Popovic Stevan 5/29/2014 1/31/2016   
Vacancy   1/31/2015  David Ogg Resigned 
Ziegenfelder Peter F. 12/14/2012 1/31/2014   

 

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 13, 2013 
 

- 6 - 

Nominations to the Traffic Committee: 
 
Term Expires:  01/31/2015  
 Term currently held by: Vacancy - David Ogg Resigned 
 
Interested Applicants: 
Last Name First Name App Resume 

Expire 
Notes 2 

Apahidean Olimpiu (Ollie) 3/14/2014  
Chambers Barbara A. 4/30/2014 Historic Dist exp 3/1/2014; Hist Dist Study-Ad Hoc 
McGee Timothy S. 8/13/2014  

 

 
 

Zoning Board of Appeals 
Appointed by Council 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 

Current Members: 

Last Name First Name App Resume 
Expire 

Appointment 
Expire Notes 1 Notes 2 

Bloomingdale Bruce 1/20/2014 4/30/2015  Hist Dist Study: Ad Hoc 
Clark Glenn 5/31/2014 4/30/2015   
Courtney Kenneth 2/25/2015 4/30/2016   
Eisenbacher David 11/14/2013 4/30/2016   
Kaltsounis Orestis Rusty 3/5/2015 1/31/2015 Alternate P&R Bd exp 9/30/2015 
Kneale A. Allen 3/9/2013 4/30/2014  ZBA exp 4/30/14 
Krent Thomas G. 12/13/2014 12/31/2013 (PC Rep)  
Lambert Dave 1/8/2015 4/30/2014  Requests 

Reappointment 
Vacancy   1/31/2015 Alternate  

 

 
Nominations to the Zoning Board of Appeals: 
 
Term Expires:  01/31/2015  (Alternate) 

 
Term currently held by: Vacancy – David Eisenbacher 

Resigned. 
 
Interested Applicants: 

Last Name First Name App Resume 
Expire Notes 2 

Binkowski Matthew 5/7/2015  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 13, 2013 
 

- 7 - 

Chambers Barbara A. 4/30/2014 Historic Dist exp 3/1/2014;  
Hist Dist Study-Ad Hoc 

Kaltsounis Andrew 12/13/2014 Liquor Advisory Comm. exp. 1/31/2013 
Kempen Edward 2/1/2014 Planning Comm exp 12/31/2013 
Krent Thomas G. 12/13/2014 Planning Commission exp. 12/31/2013 
Ragan John 1/26/2014  

 

Yes:       
No:       
 
I-3 Request for Closed Session  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2013-05-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session, as permitted by 
MCL15.268 (e) and (h) – Grand Sakwa v City of Troy and MCL 15.243 (g). 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
I-4 Proposed Revisions to Chapter 77 Smoking Lounges (Introduced by:  Lori Bluhm, 

City Attorney) 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2013-05-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby AMENDS Chapter 77 to add Sections 77.09, 
77.10, 77.11, 77.12, 77.13, 77.14, 77.15, 77.16 to the Troy City Ordinances, and re-numbering 
Section 77.17 and 77.18 of the Troy City Ordinances (effective immediately), as recommended 
by City Administration and ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.  
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
I-5 Proposed Agreement with Somerset Collection (Introduced by:  Gary Mayer, Chief 

of Police and Andrew Breidenich, Sergeant) 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2013-05-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 13, 2013 
 

- 8 - 

RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council APPROVES the Agreement Between The City of Troy 
and Somerset Collection For Assignment Of Police Officer Position And Reimbursement To 
The City of Troy For Costs, and AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to EXECUTE the 
documents on behalf of the City of Troy.  A copy of the executed Agreement shall be 
ATTACHED to the Minutes of this meeting.  
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
I-6 Sixth Order Amending Meritor and Nelson Companies Consent Judgment  

(Introduced by:  Lori Bluhm, City Attorney) 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2013-05-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council APPROVES the entry of the Stipulation and Sixth 
Order Amending Consent Judgment in the Meritor Automotive, Inc and The Nelson Companies, 
Inc v City of Troy lawsuit, Case Number 94-948784 CZ, authorizing improvements to the 
Warrior Park Baseball Field, located on the south side of Equity, between 1735 and 1515 
Equity, Section 32, as described and approved in the Fifth Order Amending the Consent 
Judgment, and AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to EXECUTE the document on behalf 
of the City.  A copy of the executed Stipulation and Sixth Order Amending Consent Judgment 
SHALL BE RECORDED with the Oakland County Register of Deeds and also ATTACHED to 
the Minutes of this meeting.   
 
Yes:       
No:       
 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 
J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2013-05-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES all items on the Consent Agenda as 
presented with the exception of Item(s)           , which SHALL BE CONSIDERED after 
Consent Agenda (J) items, as printed. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 13, 2013 
 

- 9 - 

J-2  Approval of 05/13 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2013-05-      
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following Minutes as submitted: 
 
a) City Council Regular Meeting Minutes – April 15, 2013 
b) City Council Special Study Session (Budget) Minutes – April 22, 2013 
c) City Council Special Study Session (Budget) Minutes – April 24, 2013 
 
J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations 
a) Proclamation Celebrating Nurses Week – May 6-12, 2013 
 
J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions: 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidder – Fencing for the Athena 

Detention Basin 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2013-05-      
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to provide all equipment, 
material and labor to remove and install new fencing surrounding the Athena Detention Basin 
to the lowest responsible bidder; RMD Holdings, LTD., dba Nationwide Construction Group of 
Chesterfield, MI at an estimated total cost of $20,630.00 at unit prices contained in the bid 
tabulation opened May 2, 2013, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of 
this meeting. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the contractor’s 
submission of properly executed bid documents, including insurance certificates and al l other 
specified requirements. 
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidder – Parking Lot 

Maintenance 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2013-05-      
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to complete the Parking Lot 
Maintenance Overlay for the City Hall East Parking Lot and the Library South Parking Lot to the 
lowest responsible bidder; Mid West Pavement Contracting, Inc. of Milford, MI at an estimated 
total cost of $35,795.25 at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened May 2, 2013, a 
copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the contractor’s 
submission of properly executed bid and contract documents, including Insurance Certificates, 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 13, 2013 
 

- 10 - 

Performance, Labor and Material Bonds, Maintenance Bonds and all other specified 
requirements. 
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option – Building 

Department Services 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2013-05-      
 
WHEREAS, On June 7, 2010, the Troy City Council AWARDED a three (3) year contract to 
provide complete Building Department Services submitted by Safe Built Michigan, Inc. of 
Clarkston, MI, as a result of a best value process (SOQ/RFP-COT 09-49), and which the Troy 
City Council determined to be in the public interest, to expire June 30, 2013, with an option to 
renew for two (2) additional years, provided Safe Built Michigan, Inc has met all the contract 
terms and conditions, in accordance with the Professional Services Agreement date June 7, 
2010 (CC Res #2010-06-122); and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy determines that Safe Built Michigan, Inc. has met all the contract 
terms and conditions in accordance with the Professional Services Agreement dated June 7, 
2010; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy and Safe Built Michigan, Inc. of Troy, MI agree to an Amendment 
to the Professional Services Agreement that will provide long term stability over the next five (5) 
years with an option to renew for an additional five (5) years;   
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby determines it to be in 
the public’s best interest to APPROVE a five (5) year Amendment to the Professional Services 
Agreement for Building Inspection Services with Safe Built Michigan, Inc. of Troy, MI, expiring 
June 30, 2018, with an opt ion to renew for five (5) additional years, provided Safe Built 
Michigan, Inc. continues to meet all the contract terms and conditions, in accordance with the 
Amendment and O riginal Professional Service Agreement for Building Inspection Services 
dated June 7, 2010, a c opy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting.   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the submission of 
contract documents and all other specified requirements.  
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City 
Clerk to EXECUTE the documents on behalf of the City of Troy.  
 
J-5 Acceptance of Alliance of Rouge Communities (ARC) Membership and Adoption of 

Bylaws 
 
Resolution #2013-05- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 
WHEREAS, Watershed Alliance legislation passed the Michigan House of Representatives and 
the Michigan Senate and was signed into law by the Governor on January 3, 2005, as Act No. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 13, 2013 
 

- 11 - 

517, Public Acts of 2004, based upon a draft provided and supported by the Rouge River 
watershed communities; and 
 
WHEREAS, At its meeting on November 7, 2012, the Alliance of Rouge Communities (ARC) 
completed the revised attached Alliance of Rouge Communities bylaws, and recommended 
adoption by the appropriate governing bodies of those public agencies within the Rouge River 
watershed eligible for membership; and 
 
WHEREAS, The formation of the Alliance of Rouge Communities under this new state law 
provided the public agencies within the watershed the authority to directly seek grants, enter 
into contracts, and manage its own resources that have been provided in the past by and 
through Wayne County with federal funds as part of the Rouge River National Wet Weather 
Demonstration. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That the City of Troy, an ARC member in good 
standing, formally ADOPTS bylaws for, and ACCEPTS membership in the Alliance of Rouge 
Communities. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That consistent with the terms of the Alliance of Rouge 
Communities bylaws, the Troy City Council formally APPOINTS Steven Vandette, City 
Engineer, as its designated representative to the Alliance of Rouge Communities, Laura 
Gruzwalski, Staff Environmental Analyst, Hubbell, Roth and Clark Inc., as the alternate 
representative, and AUTHORIZES Mark Miller, Director of Economic & Community 
Development, to designate additional persons to represent the City of Troy, if needed, as an 
alternate to assure voting representation on the Alliance of Rouge Communities. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy’s continuing membership WILL BE EVIDENCED by 
payment of its voluntary assessment on an annual basis to the Alliance of Rouge Communities. 
 
J-6 Assessment of Delinquent Accounts 
 
Resolution #2013-05- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 
WHEREAS, Section 1.167 of Chapter 5 and Section 6 of Chapter 20 of the Ordinance Code of 
the City of Troy require that delinquent payments and invoices, as of April 1st of each year, shall 
be reported and the City Council shall certify the same to the City Assessor who shall assess 
the same on the next annual City Tax Roll, to be collected as provided for collection of City 
Taxes; and 
 
WHEREAS, Section 10.8 of the Troy City Charter provides for the collection of delinquent 
invoices through property tax collection procedures; and 
 
WHEREAS, A list of individual properties is on file in the Office of the Treasurer and comprises 
a summation of totals as follows: 
 
 General Fund Invoices 
  Including Penalties    $ 115,398.38 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 13, 2013 
 

- 12 - 

  Special Assessments  
  Including Penalties & Interest         3,225.35 
 Water & Sewer Accounts 
  Including Penalties       851,309.81 
 
 Total       $ 969,933.54 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Assessor is hereby AUTHORIZED to 
assess these delinquent accounts on the annual City Tax Roll. 
 
J-7 Charlene Femminineo v City of Troy et. al. 
 
Resolution #2013-05- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 
RESOLVED, That the City Attorney is hereby AUTHORIZED and DIRECTED to represent the 
City of Troy, the City of Troy Council and the individual Troy Defendants named in the matter of 
Charlene Femminineo v Dane Slater, et al., United States District Court for the Eastern District 
of Michigan, Case No. 13-11682, against any claims and damages.  Furthermore, the City 
Attorney is AUTHORIZED to pay necessary costs and expenses and to retain any necessary 
expert witnesses to adequately represent the City and the Troy Defendants.  
 
J-8 Daniel Katayama v City of Troy 
 
Resolution #2013-05- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 
RESOLVED, That the City Attorney is hereby AUTHORIZED and DIRECTED to represent the 
City of Troy in any and all claims and damages in the matter of Daniel K. Katayama v. City of 
Troy (Oakland County Circuit Court Case No. 13-004515-CZ).  Furthermore, the City Attorney 
is AUTHORIZED to pay necessary costs and ex penses and t o retain any necessary expert 
witnesses to adequately represent the City.  
 
J-9 Center Court Tennis LLC v City of Troy 
 
Resolution #2013-05- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 
RESOLVED, That the City Attorney is hereby AUTHORIZED and DIRECTED to represent the 
City of Troy in any and al l claims and damages in the matter of Center Court Tennis, LLC v. 
City of Troy (Oakland County Circuit Court Case No. 13-133051 CZ).  Furthermore, the City 
Attorney is AUTHORIZED to pay necessary costs and expenses and to retain any necessary 
expert witnesses to adequately represent the City.  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 13, 2013 
 

- 13 - 

J-10 Community Financial Members Federal Credit Union v City of Troy et. al. 
 
Resolution #2013-05- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 
RESOLVED, That the City Attorney is hereby AUTHORIZED and DIRECTED to represent the 
City of Troy in any and all claims and damages in the matter of Community Financial Members 
Federal Credit Union v. City of Troy, City of Troy Police Department and Detective William 
Taylor (Ingham County Circuit Court Case No. 13-358 AW and reassigned to Oakland County 
Circuit Court Case No. 13-133863 AW).  Furthermore, the City Attorney is AUTHORIZED to 
pay necessary costs and expenses and to retain any necessary expert witnesses to adequately 
represent the City.  
 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 
K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Submitted 
 
K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 
 some future point in time): None Submitted 
 

L. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA: 
 

M. COUNCIL REFERRALS:  
Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for 
Placement on the Agenda 

M-1  No Council Referrals Advanced 
 

N. COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
N-1  No Council Comments Advanced 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 13, 2013 
 

- 14 - 

O. REPORTS: 
O-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  None Submitted 
a) Downtown Development Authority-Final – May 2, 2012 
b) Downtown Development Authority-Final – September 19, 2012 
c) Brownfield Redevelopment Authority-Final – October 16, 2012 
d) Local Development Finance Authority-Final – October 22, 2012 
e) Zoning Board of Appeals-Final – January 15, 2013 
f) Traffic Committee-Final – March 20, 2013 
g) Planning Commission Special/Study-Final – March 26, 2013 
h) Building Code Board of Appeals-Final – April 3, 2013 
i) Planning Commission-Draft – April 9, 2013 
j) Planning Commission-Final – April 9, 2013 
k) Brownfield Redevelopment Authority-Draft – April 16, 2013 
l) Local Development Finance Authority-Draft – April 22, 2013 
m) Building Code Board of Appeals-Draft – May 1, 2013   
 
O-2 Department Reports:  
a) 2013 City of Troy Assessment Roll and Board of Review Report 
b) 2013 Year to Date Calls for Police Service Report 
c) Travel Expense Report – MML Capital Conference – Maureen McGinnis 
d) Quarterly Financial Report Ending March 31, 2013 
e) 3rd Quarter Report - SOCRRA  
 
O-3  Letters of Appreciation 
a) To Tim Richnak From William LaRue Regarding Professionalism of Staff 
b) To Aileen Bittner From Troy School District, Friends of the Troy Library and the League 

of Women Voters Regarding Participation in the “Get Gov-Understanding Troy’s Local 
Government” Program 

c) To Chief Mayer Regarding Participation in a Department Presentation at the Troy Area 
Interfaith Group 

d) To Chief Mayer From Ron Chick Regarding Department Participation in the Senior 
Fraud Seminar 

e) To Chief Mayer From Marcel DeMuynck Regarding Officer Actions at an Accident Scene 
f) To the Police Department From Maria Campot Regarding Professionalism of Staff to the 

Family 
g) To Department of Public Works From Ron McCreight Regarding Conscientious Work 

Crews 
h) To Gary Bowers From Amy Sharpe Regarding Code Enforcement Efforts  
 
O-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted 
 
O-5  Letter of Understanding From Rehmann Regarding Audit Services for FY 2012-13 
 
O-6  Oakland County Board of County Canvassers Report for the May 7, 2013 Election 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 13, 2013 
 

- 15 - 

P. STUDY ITEMS: 
P-1  Economic Gardening – Creating an Environment for Investment in Troy    

 

Q. CLOSED SESSION:  

Q-1  Closed Session 
 

R. ADJOURNMENT: 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
 
Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA May 13, 2013 
 

- 16 - 

 
FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

 
 

SCHEDULED REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
Monday, May 20, 2013 ..................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, June 3, 2013 ...................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, June 17, 2013 .................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, July 8, 2013 ....................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, July 22, 2013 ..................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, August 12, 2013 ................................................................................ Regular Meeting 
Monday, August 26, 2013 ................................................................................ Regular Meeting 
Monday, September 9, 2013 ............................................................................ Regular Meeting 
Monday, September 23, 2013 .......................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, October 7, 2013 ................................................................................. Regular Meeting 
Monday, October 21, 2013 ............................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, November 11, 2013 ........................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, November 25, 2013 ........................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, December 2, 2013 ............................................................................. Regular Meeting 
Monday, December 16, 2013 ........................................................................... Regular Meeting 

 

SCHEDULED SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
 
 



 
PROCLAMATION 

ASIAN AND PACIFIC ISLANDER HERITAGE MONTH  
MAY 2013 

 
WHEREAS, The vast diversity of languages, religions, and cultural traditions of Asian Americans and Pacific 
Islanders continues to strengthen the fabric of American society; and 
 
WHEREAS, From the arrival of the first Asian and Pacific Islander immigrants more than 150 years ago to 
those who arrive today, as well as those native to the Hawaiian Islands and to our Pacific Island territories, all 
possess the common purpose of the fulfilling the American dream and leading a life bound by the American 
ideals of life, liberty, and the pursuit of happiness; and  
 
WHEREAS, During Asian and Pacific Islander Heritage Month, we remember the challenges and celebrate 
the achievements that define our history. Asian Americans and Pacific Islanders have endured and 
overcome hardships and heartaches; and  
 
WHEREAS, Amidst these struggles, Asian Americans and Pacific Islanders have contributed in great and 
significant ways to all aspects of society. They have created works of literature and art, thrived as American 
athletes, and prospered in the world of academia.  Asian Americans and Pacific Islanders have played a 
vital role in our Nation’s economic and technological growth by establishing successful enterprises and pushing 
the limits of science; and  
 
WHEREAS, They are serving in positions of leadership within the government more now than ever before, and 
along with all of our great service men and women, they have defended and served the United States with 
valor from threats at home and abroad; and   
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Mayor and City Council of the City of Troy hereby proclaim 
the Month of May 2013 as Asian and Pacific Islander Heritage Month; 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That we invite all Troy residents to recognize and celebrate the vital role 
Asian Americans and Pacific Islanders have played in our Nation’s history, as well as their outstanding 
achievements today and into the future. 
 
Presented this 13th day of May 2013. 
 
 
 
 
 

stewartc
Text Box
C-02



PROCLAMATION 
BUILDING SAFETY MONTH - MAY 2013 

 
WHEREAS, Our City’s continuing efforts to address the critical issues of safety, energy efficiency and sustainability in the 
built environment that affect our citizens, both in everyday life and in times of natural disaster, give us confidence that our 
structures are safe and sound; and 
 
WHEREAS, Our confidence is achieved through the devotion of vigilant guardians – Building & Safety Officials, architects, 
engineers, builders, laborers and others in the construction industry, who work year-round to ensure the safe construction 
of buildings; and 
 
WHEREAS, These guardians implement the highest-quality codes to protect our citizens in the buildings where we live, 
learn, work, worship, and play; and 
 
WHEREAS, Building Safety Month is sponsored by the Building Inspection Department to remind the public about the 
critical role played by our communities’ largely unknown guardians of public safety, our dedicated Building & Safety 
Officials, who assure us of safe, efficient and livable buildings; and 
 
WHEREAS, Building Safety Month 2013, encourages all citizens of Troy to raise awareness of the importance of 
building safety; green and sustainable building; pool, spa and hot tub safety; and new technologies in the construction 
industry; and  
 
WHEREAS, Building Safety Month 2013, encourages appropriate steps everyone can take to ensure that the places we 
live, learn, work, worship and play are safe and sustainable, and recognizes that countless lives have been saved due to 
the implementation of safety codes by the Building Inspection and Safety Department; and 
 
WHEREAS, Each year, in observance of Building Safety Month, citizens of Troy are asked to consider projects to 
improve building safety and sustainability at home and in the community, and to acknowledge the essential service 
provided to all of us by the Building Inspection and Safety Department in protecting lives and property.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Council of the City of Troy take this opportunity to 
proclaim May, 2013 as Building Safety Month in the City of Troy, Michigan; and   

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Council call upon all citizens, community agencies, organizations 
and businesses in Troy to encourage all citizens of Troy to learn the appropriate steps everyone can take to ensure that 
the places we live, learn, work, worship and play in are safe and sustainable, and recognize that countless lives have been 
saved due to the implementation of safety codes by the Building Inspection and Safety Department. 
 
Presented this 13th day of May 2013. 
 

stewartc
Text Box
C-03



 

 
CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
 
Date: May 7, 2013 
 
To:  Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
 
From: Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic & Community Development 
 R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
Subject: ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (File Number: ZOTA 245) – Sober Living 

Facilities 
 
City Council held a public hearing on this item on April 4, 2013 and postponed the item to the May 13, 
2013 City Council Regular meeting.  Some City Council members submitted written questions related 
to this item.  These questions and responses are attached.  The Troy Police Department prepared a 
report related to a sober living facility in Shelby Township.  This report is attached.   
 
The text amendment would regulate sober living facilities in the City of Troy, including a definition for 
sober living facilities.  Sober living facilities with 6 or fewer residents are regulated as single family 
residential uses and are permitted by right, without City review, similar to adult foster care small group 
homes.  Sober living facilities with 7 or more residents are permitted subject to special use approval in 
the R-1A through R-1E, RT, MR, UR, IB and OM districts.  As such, they will require special use 
approval by Planning Commission, including submission of a preliminary site plan that meets all related 
standards for sober living facilities. 
 
The attached memos prepared by Carlisle\Wortman Associates, Inc. provide additional background. 
 
The Planning Commission discussed this item at four public meetings.  The Planning Commission held 
a public hearing on this item on March 26, 2013, and recommended approval of the text amendment. 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Draft text amendment, ZOTA 245 
2. City Council questions/Planning Department responses 
3. Police report for 5010 Nocturne Lane, Shelby Township 
4. City Council item from April 15, 2013 Regular meeting, including attachments 
5. PowerPoint presentation from April 15, 2013 City Council meeting 
6. City Council minutes from April 15, 2013 Regular meeting (draft/excerpt) 

 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 245 Recovery Centers\CC Memo_ ZOTA 245 2013 05 13.doc 

stewartc
Text Box
H-01



CITY OF TROY 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
 CHAPTER 39 OF THE CODE 

 OF THE CITY OF TROY 
CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARING DRAFT 

 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 39, Zoning 
Ordinance, of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Amendment 
 
Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy is amended as follows 
 
Add the following definition to Section 2.02 DEFINITIONS:  
 
SOBER LIVING FACILITY:  A temporary residential living arrangement for seven (7) or 
more adult persons leaving an i nstitutional setting recovering from drug or alcohol 
addiction and in need of a supportive living arrangement in order to readjust to living 
outside the institution. These are persons who are receiving therapy and c ounseling 
from licensed or certified professional staff and trained non-professional or 
paraprofessional support staff who are present when residents are present, to help 
them recuperate from the effects of drug or alcohol addiction.  Sober living facility may 
provide limited supportive services to residents only, including: mental health services; 
clinical rehabilitation services; social services; financial management services; legal 
services; and ot her similar supportive services.  R esidency is limited to a s pecific 
number of weeks or months, typically 24 m onths or less.  This definition does not 
constitute halfway houses for those released from prison or a homeless situation. 
 
 
Add the following to Section 4.21 SCHEDULE OF USE REGULATIONS: 
 
Institutional 

 
 
 
 
 

 R1A-
R1E 

RT MF UR MHP CF EP CB GB IB O OM RC PV P 

Sober 
Living 
Facilities 

S S S S NP NP NP NP NP S NP S NP NP NP 



Add Section 6.33 to read as follows: 
 
SECTION 6.33 SOBER LIVING FACILITIES:  
 
A. Sober Living Facilities serving six (6) persons or less. A Sober Living Facility 

serving six (6) persons or less shall be considered a single-family use of 
property.   

B. Sober Living Facilities serving seven (7) or more adult persons. 
1. A. All residents shall be eighteen (18) years of age or older. 
2. B. Frontage on either a major or minor arterial street shall be required. 
3. C. Appropriate licenses with the State of Michigan shall be maintained. 
4. D. The subject parcel shall meet the minimum lot area requirements for the 

zoning district in which it is located provided there is a minimum site area 
of twenty-five hundred (2,500) square feet per adult, excluding employees 
and/or caregivers.  

5. E. Facilities may include ancillary facilities such as multi-purpose recreational 
rooms and meeting rooms.  

 
 
Add the following to Table 13.06-A to read as follows: 
 
Institutional and Places of Gathering 
Sober Living Facilities 1 space for each 1 per bed and 1 space per 

employee and/or caregiver at largest shift  
 
 
Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, at the 
time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  S uch proceedings may be 
consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such proceedings 
were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, affect, or abate any 
pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted under any ordinance 
specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this ordinance adopting this penal 
regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance; and new 
prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions pending at the effective date of this 
ordinance may be continued, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this 
ordinance, under and in accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the 
time of the commission of such offense. 
 
 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held invalid 
or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in full force and 
effect. 



Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This amendment to the Zoning Ordinance shall take effect seven (7) days after 
publication, which shall be pu blished within 15 d ays of adoption, as required the 
Michigan Zoning Enabling Act (Act 110 of 2006). 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, at 
a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI, on the 
_______ day of _____________, 2013. 
 
 
  ______________________________ 
  Dane Slater, Mayor 
 
 
  ______________________________ 
 Aileen Bittner, City Clerk  
 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 245 Recovery Centers\ZOTA 245 PC Public Hearing Draft Revised 04 15 2013.doc 



RESPONSES TO CITY COUNCIL QUESTIONS 
PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
The following questions were asked by City Councilman Campbell.  Responses follow each 
question in red. 
 

• What is the reasoning or justification why these Sober Living Facilities have developed such  a 
“NEED” in Troy? 

The need for sober living facilities was determined by the Planning Commission based on discussions 
with recovery center providers and residents who indicated there was a demand in Troy but no facilities 
presently.  Furthermore, the Michigan Zoning Enabling Act requires that municipalities provide for all 
legal land uses provided there is a demonstrated need for the use and an appropriate location exists for 
such use.  The use is not permitted in the Zoning Ordinance.  Based on a demonstrated need, the 
Planning Commission wanted to be proactive and amend the Zoning Ordinance to permit these uses.  
That way the City is able to define the use, determines what the appropriate standards are for such use, 
and determines the appropriate locations for such use. 
 

• It appears to me that these type of facilities, if needed, will not fit within a family neighborhood 
environment. With the multiple residents being over 18 years of age and most likely having a car 
and some sort of job would not be workable for parking, traffic and noise control in a 
neighborhood. All of the information about these facilities on the internet has the facilities on 
main roads 

Sober living facilities are for 7 residents or more.  The Planning Commission considered them to be more 
of a commercial use than a traditional single family home, similar to Adult Foster Care Small and Large 
Group Homes.  That is the reason that they would be permitted subject to Special Use Approval and 
with specific use standards to ensure secondary impacts upon adjacent and neighboring properties can 
be mitigated.  For example, the parking requirement is to provide 1 space per bed and (1) off-street 
parking space per employee and/or caregiver at largest shift.  In addition, one of the proposed standards 
is that they be located on major or minor arterial roads, which has the effect of pulling them out of 
existing neighborhoods. 
 

• I would also like to know what type of on-sight management these facilities have. 
The proposed definition addresses the types of management one could expect to find in a recovery 
centers.   
 

• During their presentation they stated that Troy does not have any sober living facilities…..really? 
There are 503 of these facilities state wide and there are (4) right here in Troy. (see the list 
below) 

See next response below. 
 

• If the zoning does not allow for these facilities currently, then how are there four in Troy? 
1. Rivers Bend / 33975 Dequindre, Troy 
2. Perspectives of Troy P.C. / 888 West Big Beaver, Troy 
3. Michigan behavioral Medicine / 625 East Big Beaver, Troy 
4. Insight Recovery Center / 631 East Big Beaver , Troy 

These four facilities would not be considered sober living facilities, which are residential uses.  They 
would be considered clinics, which are presently permitted in many Zoning Districts in the City of Troy. 
 
 



The following questions were asked by City Councilman Henderson.  Responses follow each 
question in red. 
 
Power point presentation Slide 3 indicated ZOTA 245 Sober living facilities “presently not permitted in 
Troy”. Q: can it remain that way legally? 
This question relates to exclusionary zoning and therefore should be addressed by the City Attorney. 
 
Slide 4 indicates a zoning ordinance shall not totally prohibit the establishment  of a land use in the 
presence of a “demonstrated need”. Q: what constitutes a demonstrated need? 
Demonstrated need in this instance was determined by the Planning Commission based on discussions 
with recovery center providers and residents who indicated there was a demand in Troy but no facilities 
presently in the City.  Furthermore, the Michigan Zoning Enabling Act requires that municipalities 
provide for all legal land uses provided there is a demonstrated need for the use and an appropriate 
location exists for such use.  The use is not permitted in the Zoning Ordinance.  Based on a 
demonstrated need, the Planning Commission wanted to be proactive and amend the Zoning Ordinance 
to permit these uses.  That way the City defines the use, determines what the appropriate standards are 
for such use, and determines the appropriate locations for such use. 
 
Slide 5 definition of a sober living facility is defined as a temporary residential arrangement for 7 or 
more adult persons. Q: Will our proposed ordinance eliminate uses for 6 or less? 
No.  These would be permitted by right in One Family Residential Zoning Districts. The 7 resident 
threshold is based on the definition of family and case law which makes the regulation of facilities under 
6 persons difficult.   
  
Slide 5 again, Sober living facilities may provide limited supported services to “residents”. Q: Does this 
mean residents of a particular sober living facility, or residents of Troy generally? 
It means residents of a particular sober living facility. 
 
Slide 7, Similar facilities with 6 or fewer residents would be regulated the same as a single family home. 
Q: Does that mean 6 or fewer is already essentially allowed without approval, no ordinance change 
necessary? 
Yes.  The 7 resident threshold is based on the definition of family and case law which makes the 
regulation of facilities under 6 persons difficult.   
 
 
Slide 8, Regarding special use approvals. Q: Can we revise the ordinance allowing no facilities in a 
residential area, or two family area, yet still allow them in all other districts? 
The draft before City Council was recommended for approval by Planning Commission.  City Council may 
revise the language as desired.  These facilities are residential uses.  There are like residential uses (adult 
foster care small and large group homes, senior assisted/independent living facilities, adult foster care 
congregate facilities) that are presently permitted in one and two family districts. 
 
Slide 11, All special uses requirements. Q: can we increase the distance of mailing notifications to 
neighbors within 500 or 1000 feet, and can we require approval from 2/3 of said neighbors before 
approval of a Sober Living Facility? 
The draft before City Council was recommended for approval by Planning Commission.  City Council may 
revise the language as desired.  The 300 foot notification requirement is consistent with State law and is 



applied to all applications that require a Planning Commission public hearing.  The approval of 2/3 of 
neighbors would likely be impossible to meet.   
 
Slide 12, SLF’s must meet the following non discretionary standards. Frontage on either a major or 
minor artery, and minimum site area of 2,500 sq. ft. Q: Can we require only on a major artery, and bump 
the size up to 5000 sq ft per adult (how about 10,000 sq ft.) 
The draft before City Council was recommended for approval by Planning Commission.  City Council may 
revise the language as desired.  The major or minor arterial and minimum site area of 2,500 sq. ft 
requirements are consistent with regulations for like uses. 
 
Slide 13 the map. It shows a couple areas where the proposed allowable area could be over 50% of a 
square mile. Q: Can we have a similar map(s) indicating an exclusion of residential areas (if answer to 
the above question regarding excluding residential areas is yes), a map showing only locations on major 
arteries, and finally a map showing the exclusion of both residential and minor arteries? 
These maps could be prepared.  Before doing so, it may be beneficial to consult with the City Attorney 
to ensure that preparing these maps would not give the impression of being exclusionary. 
 
Slide 15 hours of operation. Q: would it not be assumed the hours of operation on a SLF would be 24/7? 
They are 24/7 operations insofar as there would likely be someone in the facility at all times.  Structured 
activities would likely take place during typical business hours.  Most residents would be working or at 
school during the day and would reside in the facility at other times.   
 
 
 





 
 
 
 

Integrity  *  Respect  *  Laws and the Constitution  *  Accountability  *  Problem Solving  *  Professionalism 

__________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 

MemorandumMemorandumMemorandumMemorandum    
    

DATE:  April 25, 2013 
 
TO:  Gary Mayer, Chief of Police 
 
FROM:  George Zielinski, Police Sergeant 
  Jeff Oberski, Police Analyst Planner 
 
RE:  Sober Living Facility - 5010 Nocturne Ln, Shelby Township 
_________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Per your informational request, Jeff Oberski and I looked into the Sober Living facility in Shelby 
Township. Jeff queried and pulled all police runs to the address, 5010 Nocturne Lane, as well 
as any police reports involving persons reporting that address as their residence. 
 
It appears the address was privately owned, until around 2010. Since then, there have been 4 
police runs to the address, which included:  
• Mental (Welfare Check) & commitment 
• Fatal Drug Overdose  
• Suspicious Circumstances (power outage) 
• Open Building 
 
Additionally, there have been two drug arrests in other jurisdictions where the arrestee reports 
5010 Nocturne Lane as their residence. 
 
The police reports indicate this address as a home for recovering drug addicts. One report 
indicates “The facility does not have a staff member on scene 24 hours a day. Residents at the 
facility can come and go as they please.”  
 
A query in CrimeView Dashboard for selected reported incidents within ¼ mile (walking 
distance) of this address in the last 2 years returned with 49 incidents (see attached 
spreadsheet and graphics). Of course, there is no evidence any of these incidents are related 
to 5010 Nocturne Lane, but the possibility exists given the relationship between drug addiction 
and crime.   
 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



REPORTED OFFENSE LOCATION DISPOSITION OCCUR DATE/TIME

B&E - BURGLARY - FORCED ENTRY - RESIDENCE - 

HOME INVASION
4850 PARK MANOR E 4114 REPORT TAKEN 12/3/2012 11:51

SUSPICIOUS CIRCUMSTANCES 4865 N PARK MANOR 2305 NO REPORT 1/8/2012 7:45

SUSPICIOUS CIRCUMSTANCES 4850 E PARK MANOR NO REPORT 1/27/2012 12:37

SOF REGISTRATION 4938 E PARK MANOR 3209 ADVISED 1/24/2012 20:22

SUSPICIOUS CIRCUMSTANCES 4865 N PARK MANOR NO REPORT 1/29/2012 22:16

LARCENY (OTHER) 4855 N PARK MANOR 2105 REPORT TAKEN 12/25/2011 8:00

ASSAULT/ BATTERY/SIMPLE (INCL DOMESTIC 

AND POLICE OFFICER
4865 N PARK MANOR 2210 NO REPORT 1/31/2012 20:37

SUSPICIOUS CIRCUMSTANCES 5267 ROSTRAVER CT CLOSED 2/1/2012 0:16

ASSAULT/ BATTERY/SIMPLE (INCL DOMESTIC 

AND POLICE OFFICER
4938 E PARK MANOR 3103 REPORT TAKEN 12/31/2011 10:09

SUSPICIOUS CIRCUMSTANCES 5350 S NOCTURNE LN NO REPORT 3/14/2012 19:24

SUSPICIOUS CIRCUMSTANCES 5010 S NOCTURNE LN CLOSED 3/19/2012 21:54

SUSPICIOUS CIRCUMSTANCES 4938 E PARK MANOR NO REPORT 4/3/2012 19:48

SUSPICIOUS CIRCUMSTANCES 5129 VINCENT TRL NO REPORT 4/9/2012 3:12

SUSPICIOUS CIRCUMSTANCES 5130 25 MILE RD NO REPORT 4/12/2012 11:08

SUSPICIOUS CIRCUMSTANCES 4938 E PARK MANOR NO REPORT 4/22/2012 21:49

SUSPICIOUS CIRCUMSTANCES 5091 VINCENT TRL NO REPORT 5/24/2012 21:04

LARCENY (OTHER) 4865 N PARK MANOR 2108 REPORT TAKEN 7/2/2012 15:16

SUSPICIOUS CIRCUMSTANCES 4938 E PARK MANOR NO REPORT 7/5/2012 20:10

DAMAGE TO PROPERTY - MDOP (OTHER) 5069 VINCENT TRL CANCEL 8/6/2012 12:25

DISORDERLY CONDUCT (OTHER) 5267 25 MILE RD NO REPORT 8/21/2012 10:28

B&E - BURGLARY - FORCED ENTRY - RESIDENCE - 

HOME INVASION
4938 PARK MANOR EAST REPORT TAKEN 7/28/2012 11:59

DAMAGE TO PROPERTY - MDOP (OTHER) 5069 VINCENT TRL REPORT TAKEN 8/5/2012 9:59

LARCENY (OTHER) 4882 25 MILE RD REPORT TAKEN 9/14/2012 21:00

DAMAGE TO PROPERTY - MDOP (OTHER) 5091 VINCENT TRL CLOSED 8/6/2012 11:09

SUSPICIOUS CIRCUMSTANCES 4718 HORSESHOE DR NO REPORT 10/25/2012 20:22

DAMAGE TO PROPERTY - MDOP (OTHER) 4850 E PARK MANOR REPORT TAKEN 11/2/2012 9:32

ASSAULT/ BATTERY/SIMPLE (INCL DOMESTIC 

AND POLICE OFFICER
4850 E PARK MANOR 4125 CLEARED BY ARREST 11/21/2012 22:57

SUSPICIOUS CIRCUMSTANCES
SAINT RICHARD DR&S NOCTURNE 

LN
UNABLE TO LOCATE 12/1/2012 20:59

SUSPICIOUS CIRCUMSTANCES 5332 FIELDCREST DR NO REPORT 6/4/2011 8:00

DAMAGE TO PROPERTY - MDOP (OTHER) 4865 N PARK MANOR REPORT TAKEN 7/16/2011 21:00

LARCENY - PERSONAL PROPERTY FROM VEHICLE 

- LFA
5131 VINCENT TRL REPORT TAKEN 7/27/2011 2:00

LARCENY - PERSONAL PROPERTY FROM VEHICLE 

- LFA
5134 SAINT RICHARD DR REPORT TAKEN 7/26/2011 22:00

LARCENY - PERSONAL PROPERTY FROM VEHICLE 

- LFA
5109 VINCENT TRL REPORT TAKEN 7/26/2011 21:00

DAMAGE TO PROPERTY - MDOP (OTHER) 5134 SAINT RICHARD DR REPORT TAKEN 7/29/2011 11:00

MISSING PERSONS 5091 VINCENT TRL NO REPORT 8/11/2011 7:49

DISORDERLY CONDUCT (OTHER) 4850 E PARK MANOR NO REPORT 8/25/2011 3:07

DAMAGE TO PROPERTY - MDOP (OTHER) 55316 BELLE ROSE DR REPORT TAKEN 9/11/2011 5:03

CSC IST DEGREE -PENETRATION PENIS/VAGINA 5231 SAINT RICHARD DR REPORT TAKEN 10/31/2011 20:41

ASSAULT/ BATTERY/SIMPLE (INCL DOMESTIC 

AND POLICE OFFICER
4882 25 MILE RD NO REPORT 11/5/2011 14:58

LARCENY - PERSONAL PROPERTY FROM VEHICLE 

- LFA
4850 E PARK MANOR 4120 REPORT TAKEN 11/7/2011 8:03

ASSAULT/ BATTERY/SIMPLE (INCL DOMESTIC 

AND POLICE OFFICER
4865 N PARK MANOR 2127 NO REPORT 11/13/2011 4:18

DISORDERLY CONDUCT 4713 HORSESHOE DR CLEARED BY ARREST 12/9/2011 3:06



DAMAGE TO PROPERTY - MDOP (OTHER) 4713 HORSESHOE DR NO REPORT 11/22/2011 19:15

LARCENY (OTHER) 4938 E PARK MANOR REPORT TAKEN 11/29/2011 11:06

SUSP AUTO, PH, 5075 25 MILE RD NO REPORT 2/27/2013 16:00

SEX OFFENDER R 4938 E PARK MANOR CLOSED 3/6/2013 22:22

LARCENY (OTHER) 55355 E NOCTURNE LN REPORT TAKEN 5/8/2011 12:00

SUSP AUTO, PH, 4850 E PARK MANOR 4205 NO REPORT 4/4/2013 16:45

LARCENY 4850 E PARK MANOR 4321 REPORT TAKEN 3/19/2013 13:48



 

 
CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
 
Date: April 9, 2013 
 
To:  Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
 
From: Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic & Community Development 
 R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
Subject: PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (File Number: ZOTA 

245) – Sober Living Facilities 
 
 
The text amendment will regulate sober living facilities in the City of Troy, including a definition for 
sober living facilities.  Sober living facilities with 6 or fewer residents are treated as single family 
residential uses, similar to adult foster care small group homes.  Sober living facilities with 7 or more 
residents are permitted subject to special use approval in the R-1A through R-1E, RT, MR, UR, IB and 
OM districts.  As such, they will require special use approval by Planning Commission, including 
submission of a Preliminary Site Plan and meeting all related standards for sober living facilities. 
 
The attached memos prepared by Carlisle\Wortman Associates, Inc. provide additional background. 
 
The Planning Commission discussed this item at four public meetings.  The Planning Commission held 
a public hearing on this item on March 26, 2013, and recommended approval of the text amendment. 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment Public Hearing Draft 
2. Report prepared by CWA dated February 6, 2013 
3. Report prepared by CWA dated March 8, 2013 
4. Planning Commission minutes from March 26, 2013 Special/Study meeting (excerpt) 

 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 245 Recovery Centers\CC Memo_ Public Hearing 2013 04 15.doc 

stewartc
Text Box
E-01



CITY OF TROY 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
 CHAPTER 39 OF THE CODE 

 OF THE CITY OF TROY 
CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARING DRAFT 

 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 39, Zoning 
Ordinance, of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Amendment 
 
Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy is amended as follows 
 
Add the following definition to Section 2.02 DEFINITIONS:  
 
SOBER LIVING FACILITY:  A temporary residential living arrangement for seven (7) or 
more adult persons leaving an i nstitutional setting recovering from drug or alcohol 
addiction and in need of a supportive living arrangement in order to readjust to living 
outside the institution. These are persons who are receiving therapy and c ounseling 
from licensed or certified professional staff and trained non-professional or 
paraprofessional support staff who are present when residents are present, to help 
them recuperate from the effects of drug or alcohol addiction.  Sober living facility may 
provide limited supportive services to residents only, including: mental health services; 
clinical rehabilitation services; social services; financial management services; legal 
services; and ot her similar supportive services.  R esidency is limited to a s pecific 
number of weeks or months, typically 24 m onths or less.  This definition does not 
constitute halfway houses for those released from prison or a homeless situation. 
 
 
Add the following to Section 4.21 SCHEDULE OF USE REGULATIONS: 
 
Institutional 

 
 
 
 
 

 R1A-
R1E 

RT MF UR MHP CF EP CB GB IB O OM RC PV P 

Sober 
Living 
Facilities 

S S S S NP NP NP NP NP S NP S NP NP NP 



Add Section 6.33 to read as follows: 
 
SECTION 6.33 SOBER LIVING FACILITIES:  
 
A. Sober Living Facilities serving six (6) persons or less. A Sober Living Facility 

serving six (6) persons or less shall be considered a single-family use of 
property.   

B. Sober Living Facilities serving seven (7) or more adult persons. 
1. All residents shall be eighteen (18) years of age or older. 
2. Frontage on either a major or minor arterial street shall be required. 
3. Appropriate licenses with the State of Michigan shall be maintained. 
4. The subject parcel shall meet the minimum lot area requirements for the 

zoning district in which it is located provided there is a minimum site area 
of twenty-five hundred (2,500) square feet per adult, excluding employees 
and/or caregivers.  

5. Facilities may include ancillary facilities such as multi-purpose recreational 
rooms and meeting rooms.  

 
 
Add the following to Table 13.06-A to read as follows: 
 
Institutional and Places of Gathering 
Sober Living Facilities 1 space for each 1 per bed and 1 space per 

employee and/or caregiver at largest shift  
 
 
Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, at the 
time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  S uch proceedings may be 
consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such proceedings 
were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, affect, or abate any 
pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted under any ordinance 
specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this ordinance adopting this penal 
regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance; and new 
prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions pending at the effective date of this 
ordinance may be continued, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this 
ordinance, under and in accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the 
time of the commission of such offense. 
 
 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held invalid 
or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in full force and 
effect. 



Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This amendment to the Zoning Ordinance shall take effect seven (7) days after 
publication, which shall be pu blished within 15 d ays of adoption, as required the 
Michigan Zoning Enabling Act (Act 110 of 2006). 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, at 
a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI, on the 
_______ day of _____________, 2013. 
 
 
  ______________________________ 
  Dane Slater, Mayor 
 
 
  ______________________________ 
 Aileen Bittner, City Clerk  
 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 245 Recovery Centers\ZOTA 245 PC Public Hearing Draft 03 22 2013.doc 



 

  

605 S. Main Street, Ste. 1 
Ann Arbor, MI  48104 
 
(734) 662-2200 
(734) 662-1935 Fax 

 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
TO: R. Brent Savidant, AICP, Planning Director 
 
FROM: Ben Carlisle, AICP 
 
DATE: February 6, 2013 
 
RE: Sober Living Zoning Ordinance Amendments  
 
 
An organization, Great Lakes Recovery Community, is interested in using a property in Troy as a 
structured and professionally administered residential treatment facility to serve infirmed persons 
suffering from a primary substance use disorder diagnosis or dual diagnoses of substance use 
disorder/addiction and psychiatric illness.  The use is not specifically listed in the Schedule of Regulations 
of the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance.  
 
Section 4.05 of the Zoning Ordinance gives the Zoning Administrator the authority to determine which 
district a use is permitted in. The Zoning Administrator may refer a proposed use to the Planning 
Commission for determination of the appropriate district(s) in which said use may be permitted.  
Furthermore, the Adult Foster Care Facility Licensing Act, 218 of 1979, clearly states that an 
establishment commonly described as an alcohol or a substance abuse rehabilitation center is not 
classified as an adult foster care facility.  Thus this type of facility is not defined nor regulated under that 
act.  Though the applicant notes they are working with the State, currently this is essentially a non-state 
regulated group home facility. However, since persons recovering from alcohol and drug addiction are 
considered to be handicapped, they have certain protections under the Americans with Disabilities Act 
and the Federal Fair Housing Act.  Thus, any regulation that treats sober living homes less favorably than 
similar uses may be considered exclusionary and difficult to justify.    
 
On January 22, 2013 the Planning Commission met to discuss the interpretation and appropriate 
districts of such use.   After lengthy discussion, the Planning Commission directed staff to define the use; 
add the use to the schedule of uses (Section 4.21) as not-permitted, permitted, or special use based on 
appropriateness in each district; and add any necessary specific use regulations.  This memo is a 
recommendation of draft language based on the best practices and the direction of the Planning 
Commission:  
 

BEST PRACTICES: 
 
Zoning studies and associated regulations for sober living or recovery centers were limited.  Through 
research we identified three communities that defined similar uses and adopted associated regulations: 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
2  P a g e  

Saint Paul, Minnesota 
 
The City Council directed a Sober House Zoning Study in May 2005, after the Council was informed that 
the number of sober houses locating in the city was on the rise. The study found that similar to Troy, the 
Ordinance did not list the use nor provide a similar use.  As a result of the study, the City Council passed 
an ordinance addressing the following:  

• Added definition: 
 

A dwelling unit occupied by more than four persons, all of whom are in recovery from 
chemical dependency and considered handicapped under the Federal Fair Housing Act 
Amendments of 1988. It provides a non-institutional residential environment in which the 
residents willingly subject themselves to written rules and conditions, including prohibition of 
alcohol and drug use (except for prescription medications obtained and used under medical 
supervision), intended to encourage and sustain their recovery. The residents of a sober house 
are similar to a family unit, and share kitchen and bathroom facilities and other common 
areas of the unit. Sober houses are financially self-supporting. This definition does not include 
facilities that receive operating revenue from governmental sources. Sober houses do not 
provide on-site supportive services to residents, including the following: mental health 
services; clinical rehabilitation services; social services; medical, dental, nutritional and other 
health care services; financial management services; legal services; vocational services; and 
other similar supportive services. 

 
• Added application procedure 
• Limited sober houses in residential districts to ten or less residents  
• Requires a Special Use for any facility over 17 residents 
• Incorporated parking standards of 1.5 parking space per resident 
• Created minimum lot area as the minimum lot area of the district plus 800 sq/ft per resident  
• Set concentration distance:  No sober living facility may be located within 300 of another   

 
Los Angeles, CA 
 
In 2011, Los Angeles adopted an ordinance that defined sober houses and similar facilities as 
“Alcoholism or Drug Abuse Recovery or Treatment Facility.” Defined as any premises, place or building 
licensed by the State of California that provides 24-hour residential nonmedical services to adults who 
are recovering from problems related to alcohol, drug or alcohol and drug misuse or abuse, and who 
need alcohol and drug recovery treatment or detoxification services.  In addition to the definition, the 
ordinance adopted the following standards:  

• If located in residential neighborhood, the facility is consistent with the residential character  
• Security lighting must be shielded   
• Occupancy limit of two residents for every bedroom  

 
Champaign County, IL 
 
In 2010, the County adopted an ordinance allowing recovery centers.  These facilities were limited to 
agricultural zoning districts as a special use and they must be operated by and located on the same 
property as a church or temple.  The following additional standards were adopted:  

• Must be served by public transportation 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
3  P a g e  

• The maximum number of residents allowed at one time shall be the smaller of the following 
numbers: 

o 10% of the maximum occupancy of the main worship area of the associated church or 
temple 

o 30 persons 
• The minimum required lot area shall be: 

o 20,000 square feet if served by a connected to sanitary sewer system 
o 30,000 square feet plus 7,000 square feet per resident if not served by a connected 

sanitary sewer system 
• Facility shall include 24 hour supervision 

 
It appears that these regulations were adopted for a specific property and/or applicant. 
 
Shelby Township:  
 
Great Lakes Recovery Center operates a six-woman facility in Shelby Township, which the Planning 
Commission visited.  I contacted Glenn Wynn, Planning Director of Shelby Township.   Mr. Wynn was not 
aware of the facility and noted that there are no specific use and regulations of this facility in the 
ordinance.  Since they are under seven (7) persons, they are considered a State Regulated Adult 
Residential facility.  Mr. Wynn also noted that they have not received any complaints or any 
correspondence from the neighborhood regarding the use.   
 

TROY ZONING AMENDMENT: 
 
Based on the direction of the Planning Commission and review of best practices, we recommend naming 
these facilities “recovery center” and adding following zoning amendments:  
 
Definition:  
 

Recovery Center:  A temporary residential living arrangement for seven (7) or more persons 
leaving an institutional setting recovering from drug or alcohol addiction and in need of a 
supportive living arrangement in order to readjust to living outside the institution. These are 
persons who are receiving therapy and counseling from support staff who are present when 
residents are present, to help them recuperate from the effects of drug or alcohol addiction.  
Recovery center may provide limited supportive services to residents only, including: mental 
health services; clinical rehabilitation services; social services; financial management services; 
legal services; and other similar supportive services.  Residency is limited to a specific number of 
weeks or months.  This definition does not constitute halfway houses for those released from 
prison or a homeless situation. 

 
The intent of the definition is to distinguish between recovery center and more service-intensive, 
government-licensed housing facilities occupied by residents with a higher level of dependence, and to 
reduce the existing lack of clarity about what constitutes a “legitimate” recovery center. This definition 
would not include dwelling units occupied by six (6) or less residents, which are covered by the standard 
definition of family, and by-right in single-family residential.   
 
 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
4  P a g e  

Use Table: 
 

 
Specific Use Provisions: 
 
Recovery Center:  
 

A. Recovery Center serving six (6) persons or less. A Recovery Center serving six (6) persons or less 
shall be considered a single-family use of property.   

B. Recovery Center Adult serving between seven (7) or more persons. 
1. A site plan, prepared in accordance with Article 8 shall be required to be submitted. 
2. Frontage on either a major or minor arterial street shall be required. 
3. Parking: 1 space per bed and (1) off-street parking space per employee and/or caregiver 

at largest shift shall be provided. 
4. Appropriate licenses with the State of Michigan shall be maintained. 
5. The subject parcel shall meet the minimum lot area requirements for the zoning district 

in which it is located provided there is a minimum site area of twenty-five hundred 
(2,500) square feet per adult, excluding employees and/or caregivers.  

6. Facility may include ancillary facilities are allowed such as multi-purpose recreational 
rooms and meeting rooms.  

 

 R1A-
R1E 

RT MR UR MHP CF EP CB GB IB O OM RC PV P 

Recovery 
Center 

S S S S NP NP NP NP NP S NP S NP NP NP 

For Comparison Purposes only  
Senior 
assisted/inde-
pendent 
living 

P P P P NP P NP P P P NP P NP NP NP 

Multiple-
family dwell-
ings (2-8 
stories) 

NP NP P P NP NP NP NP NP P NP NP NP NP NP 

Convalescent 
centers 

NP NP S S NP P NP P P P P P NP NP NP 

Adult foster 
care, family 
home 

P P P P P P NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP 

Adult foster 
care, Small 
group home 

S S S S S S NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP 

Adult foster 
care, large 
group home 

S S S S S S NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP 

Adult foster 
care, con-
gregate 
facility 

S S S S S S NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
5  P a g e  

 

 
  
 



 

  

605 S. Main Street, Ste. 1 
Ann Arbor, MI  48104 
 
(734) 662-2200 
(734) 662-1935 Fax 

 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
TO: R. Brent Savidant, AICP, Planning Director 
 
FROM: Ben Carlisle, AICP 
 
DATE: March 8, 2013 
 
RE: Sober Living Zoning Ordinance Amendments  
 
 
On February 12, the Planning Commission first considered zoning language regarding sober living 
facilities.  The revised language below considers the comprehensive discussion between staff and the 
Planning Commission, as well as input from a Sober Living facility provider.  Changes to the zoning 
ordinance language since the February 12 consideration is either underlined or struckthrough 
accordingly.   
 
Please remember that since persons recovering from alcohol and drug addiction are considered to be 
disabled, they have certain protections under the Americans with Disabilities Act and the Federal Fair 
Housing Act.  Thus, any regulation that treats sober living homes less favorably than similar uses may be 
considered exclusionary and difficult to justify.   See our February 6, 2013 memo for more details 
regarding project background and zoning best practices.   
 
If the Planning Commission agrees with the following Zoning Ordinance language, a public hearing will 
be scheduled.   
 

TROY ZONING AMENDMENT: 
 
Based on the direction of the Planning Commission and review of best practices, we recommend adding 
the following definition and zoning provisions:  
 
Definition:  
 

Sober Living Facility Recovery Center:  A temporary residential living arrangement for seven (7) 
or more adult persons leaving an institutional setting recovering from drug or alcohol addiction 
and in need of a supportive living arrangement in order to readjust to living outside the 
institution. These are persons who are receiving therapy and counseling from licensed or certified 
professional staff and trained non-professional or paraprofessional support staff who are 
present when residents are present, to help them recuperate from the effects of drug or alcohol 
addiction.  Recovery center may provide limited supportive services to residents only, including: 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
2  P a g e  

mental health services; clinical rehabilitation services; social services; financial management 
services; legal services; and other similar supportive services.  Residency is limited to a specific 
number of weeks or months, typically 24 months or less.  This definition does not constitute 
halfway houses for those released from prison or a homeless situation. 

 
The intent of the definition is to distinguish between sober living facility and more service-intensive, 
government-licensed housing facilities occupied by residents with a higher level of dependence, and to 
reduce the existing lack of clarity about what constitutes a “legitimate” sober living facility. This 
definition would not include dwelling units occupied by six (6) or less residents, which are covered by 
the standard definition of family, and by-right in single-family residential.   
 
Use Table: 
 

 
Specific Use Provisions: 
 
Recovery Center:  
 

A. Recovery Center serving six (6) persons or less. A Recovery Center serving six (6) persons or less 
shall be considered a single-family use of property.   

B. Recovery Center Adult serving between seven (7) or more adult persons. 

 R1A-
R1E 

RT MR UR MHP CF EP CB GB IB O OM RC PV P 

Recovery 
Center 

S S S S NP NP NP NP NP S NP S NP NP NP 

For Comparison Purposes only  
Senior 
assisted/inde-
pendent 
living 

P P P P NP P NP P P P NP P NP NP NP 

Multiple-
family dwell-
ings (2-8 
stories) 

NP NP P P NP NP NP NP NP P NP NP NP NP NP 

Convalescent 
centers 

NP NP S S NP P NP P P P P P NP NP NP 

Adult foster 
care, family 
home 

P P P P P P NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP 

Adult foster 
care, Small 
group home 

S S S S S S NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP 

Adult foster 
care, large 
group home 

S S S S S S NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP 

Adult foster 
care, con-
gregate 
facility 

S S S S S S NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
3  P a g e  

1. A site plan, prepared in accordance with Article 8 shall be required to be submitted. 
2. All residents must be eighteen (18) years of age or older. 
3. Frontage on either a major or minor arterial street shall be required. 
4. Parking: 1 space for each 1 per bed and (1) off-street parking space per employee 

and/or caregiver at largest shift shall be provided. 
5. Appropriate licenses with the State of Michigan shall be maintained. 
6. The subject parcel shall meet the minimum lot area requirements for the zoning district 

in which it is located provided there is a minimum site area of twenty-five hundred 
(2,500) square feet per adult, excluding employees and/or caregivers.  

7. Facility may include ancillary facilities are allowed such as multi-purpose recreational 
rooms and meeting rooms.  

 
 

 
  
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – FINAL MARCH 26, 2013 
   
 
 

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 
 

12. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (File Number 
ZOTA 245) – Sober Living Facilities 
 
Mr. Carlisle gave an update on the proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment, 
confirming recent revisions made at the suggestions of Board members and sober 
living facilities in the area. 
 
Mr. Savidant informed the Board that the proposed text was revised to correct any 
reference to “recovery center” to “sober living facility”. 
 
Mr. Carlisle said with approval tonight, the process going forward would be: 
• Announcement of Public Hearing at City Council, April 8. 
• City Council Public Hearing, April 15. 
• With City Council approval, text language would be i n effect 10 days after 

adoption. 
• Applicant would proceed with Rezoning Request and Special Use Approval on 

potential site. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-03-027 
Moved by: Kempen 
Seconded by: Schepke 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that Articles 2, 4, 6, and 13 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy, 
which includes provisions related to sober living facilities, be amended as printed 
on the proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment.  
 
Yes: All present (5) 
Absent: Edmunds, Sanzica, Strat, Tagle 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Schultz said he believes the City is “putting the cart before the horse” 
because sober living facilities are not recognized by the State of Michigan.  He 
indicated his affirmative vote is to allow the item to go forward due to the 
absence of four Board members this evening. 
 



 
TROY CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING  

 
April 15, 2013 

 

7:30 p.m. 
  



ITEM #E-01 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 

Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment 
(File # ZOTA 245) 

 
 

Sober Living Facilities 
 



ZOTA 245 SOBER LIVING FACILITIES 
 

•Presently not permitted in Troy 
 

•Initiated by Planning Commission – Need  
 

•Planning Commission considered input from: 
•Great Lakes Recovery Community 

•Other private sober living facility providers 
 

•Planning Commission visited a sober living facility in 
Shelby Township 

 



 
 

Michigan Zoning Enabling Act 
Act 110 of 2006, as amended 

 
A zoning ordinance…shall not have the effect of totally 
prohibiting the establishment of a land use within a local unit of 
government in the presence of a demonstrated need for that use 
within either that local unit of government or the surrounding 
area…unless a location within the local unit of government does 
not exist where the use may be appropriately located or the use 
is unlawful. 
       
 MCL 125.3207 
 



DEFINITION OF SOBER LIVING 
FACILITY:   
A temporary residential living arrangement for seven (7) or more 
adult persons leaving an institutional setting recovering from drug or 
alcohol addiction and in need of a supportive living arrangement in 
order to readjust to living outside the institution. These are persons 
who are receiving therapy and counseling from licensed or 
certified professional staff and trained non-professional or 
paraprofessional support staff who are present when residents are 
present, to help them recuperate from the effects of drug or alcohol 
addiction.  Sober living facility may provide limited supportive services 
to residents only, including: mental health services; clinical 
rehabilitation services; social services; financial management 
services; legal services; and other similar supportive services.  
Residency is limited to a specific number of weeks or months, 
typically 24 months or less.  This definition does not constitute 
halfway houses for those released from prison or a homeless 
situation. 



 
A SOBER LIVING FACILITY IS NOT: 
 

• Halfway House 
• Correctional Facility 
• Homeless Shelter 
• Boarding House 
• Day Care Facility 
• Group Home 
• Medical Clinic 
• Medical Marijuana Dispensary 
• Methadone Clinic 
 



SIMILAR FACILITIES WITH 6 OR FEWER 
RESIDENTS WOULD BE REGULATED 
THE SAME AS A SINGLE FAMILY HOME 
•Functional equivalent of domestic family  
•Consistent with case law 
•Similar to: 

•Foster Care Family Homes 
•Adult Foster Care Small Group Homes 
•Family Day Care Homes 

 



SOBER LIVING FACILITIES WOULD BE 
PERMITTED SUBJECT TO SPECIAL 
USE APPROVAL IN THE FOLLOWING 
ZONING DISTRICTS: 
•R-1A through R-1E One Family Residential 
District 
•RT Two Family Residential District 
•MF Multiple Family District 
•UR Urban Residential District 
•IB Integrated Industrial and Business District 
•OM Office Mixed Use District 
 



•Similar to: 
•Adult Foster Care Group Homes 
•Senior Assisted/Independent Living Homes 
•Adult Day Care Center 

 



SOBER LIVING FACILITIES REQUIRE  
SPECIAL USE APPROVAL 
 



ALL SPECIAL USES REQUIRE THE 
FOLLOWING: 
•Planning Commission Public Hearing 
•All Property Owners within 300 feet notified by 
mail 
•Meeting Notice published in newspaper 
•Sign placed on property 
•Application must meet all Discretionary and Non-
Discretionary Standards 
 



SOBER LIVING FACILITIES MUST MEET 
THE FOLLOWING NON-
DISCRETIONARY STANDARDS: 
  

A.All residents shall be eighteen (18) years of age or older. 
 

B.Frontage on either a major or minor arterial street shall be 
required. 

 
C.Appropriate licenses with the State of Michigan shall be 
maintained. 

 
D.The subject parcel shall meet the minimum lot area 
requirements for the zoning district in which it is located provided 
there is a minimum site area of twenty-five hundred (2,500) 
square feet per adult, excluding employees and/or caregivers.  

 
E.Facilities may include ancillary facilities such as multi-purpose 
recreational rooms and meeting rooms.  



02 16 2009 City Council Meeting 



ALL SPECIAL USES MUST MEET THE 
FOLLOWING DISCRETIONARY 
STANDARDS: 
 
1.Compatibility with Adjacent Uses 

 
2.Compatibility with the Master Plan 

 
3.Traffic Impact 

 
4.Impact on Public Services 

 
5.Impact on the Overall Environment 

 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SHALL ALSO 
CONSIDER THE FOLLOWING 
FACTORS: 
1.The nature and character of the activities, materials, 
equipment, or conditions of operation; either specifically 
or typically associated with the use. 

 
2.Vehicular circulation and parking areas. 

 
3.Outdoor activity, storage and work areas. 

 
4.Hours of operation. 

 
5.Production of traffic, noise, vibration, fumes, odors, 
dust, glare and light. 



SUMMARY: 
 
1. Zoning Ordinance does not currently have any 
standards or regulatory review process for use 

 
2. Locations are limited by zoning districts and 
discretionary/non-discretionary standards 

 
3. Use is similar to other uses permitted in Zoning 
Ordinance  

 
4. Sober Living Facilities require Special Use Approval  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft April 15, 2013 
 

A. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
E-1 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number:  ZO TA 245) - Sober Living 

Facilities 
 
The Mayor OPENED the Public Hearing.  Comment was received from Marv Reinhardt, Tom 
Telotte, and Paul Smith. 
 
The Meeting RECESSED at 8:29 PM. 
 
The Meeting RECONVENED at 8:36 PM. 
 
The Mayor CLOSED the Public Hearing after receiving additional comment from David Lord 
and Gordon Schepke. 
 
Resolution 
Moved by McGinnis  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
RESOLVED, That Articles 2, 4, 6, and 13 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy, 
pertaining to permitting sober living facilities within specified zoning districts by special use 
approval, including provisions related to a definition for and specific standards related to sober 
living facilities, be AMENDED to read as written in the proposed Zoning Ordinance Text 
Amendment (ZOTA 245), City Council Public Hearing Draft, as recommended by the Planning 
Commission. 
 
Resolution to Postpone Item E-01  to the May 13, 2013 City Council Meeting 
 
Resolution #2013-04-077 
Moved by Slater  
Seconded by Henderson  
 
RESOLVED, That Item E-01 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number:  ZOTA 245) - 
Sober Living Facilities be POSTPONED until the next Regular City Council Meeting on May 13, 
2013. 
 
Yes: Fleming, Henderson, McGinnis, Pennington, Tietz  
No: None 
Absent: Campbell  
 
MOTION CARRIED 



stewartc
Text Box
I-04













stewartc
Text Box
I-05







































stewartc
Text Box
I-06





































CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft April 15, 2013 
 

- 1 - 

Pastor Jack Mannschreck from Big Beaver United Methodist Church performed the Invocation. 
The Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was given. 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held on Monday, April 15, 2013, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Rd.  Mayor Slater called the meeting to order at 7:34 PM. 
 

B. ROLL CALL: 
Mayor Dane Slater 
Wade Fleming 
Dave Henderson 
Maureen McGinnis 
Ed Pennington 
Doug Tietz 

 
Resolution #2013-04-076 
Moved by Slater  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of Council Member 
Campbell at the Regular City Council Meeting of April 15, 2013. 
 
Yes: Slater, Fleming, Henderson, McGinnis, Pennington, Tietz 
No: None 
Absent: Campbell  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:  
C-1 Commendations To The Robert Allen Group – 75 Years In Business And In 

Appreciation For Their Generous Donation To Fund A Wildflower Garden At Civic 
Center And Town Center Drive, Presented To Patty Mulkiten, Showroom Manager  
(Postponed to the May 20, 2013 City Council Meeting) 

 
C-2 Proclamation To Proclaim Sunday, April 21, 2013 As PowerTalk 21 Day Presented 

To Travis Reece From The MADD State Office (Proclamation not presented as 
Representatives of MADD did not Appear) 

 
C-3 Athens Student Congress Commendation For Raising Over $41,000 During Spirit 

Week Presented To The Student Congress Executive Officers Chanmee Chung, 
President And Oliver Harfield, Secretary of Community Service  

 
C-4 Proclamation In Recognition Of Krista Manfredi And The 40th Anniversary Of The 

Athens Theatre Company  
 

stewartc
Text Box
J-02a



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft April 15, 2013 
 

- 2 - 

The Meeting RECESSED at 8:02 PM. 
 
The Meeting RECONVENED at 8:04 PM. 
 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 
D-1 No Carryover Items 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
E-1 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number:  ZO TA 245) - Sober Living 

Facilities 
 
The Mayor OPENED the Public Hearing.  Comment was received from Marv Reinhardt, Tom 
Telotte, and Paul Smith. 
 
The Meeting RECESSED at 8:29 PM. 
 
The Meeting RECONVENED at 8:36 PM. 
 
The Mayor CLOSED the Public Hearing after receiving additional comment from David Lord 
and Gordon Schepke. 
 
Resolution 
Moved by McGinnis  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
RESOLVED, That Articles 2, 4, 6, and 13 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy, 
pertaining to permitting sober living facilities within specified zoning districts by special use 
approval, including provisions related to a definition for and specific standards related to sober 
living facilities, be AMENDED to read as written in the proposed Zoning Ordinance Text 
Amendment (ZOTA 245), City Council Public Hearing Draft, as recommended by the Planning 
Commission. 
 
Resolution to Postpone Item E-01  to the May 13, 2013 City Council Meeting 
 
Resolution #2013-04-077 
Moved by Slater  
Seconded by Henderson  
 
RESOLVED, That Item E-01 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number:  ZOTA 245) - 
Sober Living Facilities be POSTPONED until the next Regular City Council Meeting on May 13, 
2013. 
 
Yes: Fleming, Henderson, McGinnis, Pennington, Tietz  
No: None 
Absent: Campbell  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft April 15, 2013 
 

- 3 - 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA: 
Reinhardt, Marv Spoke about Item O-01c. 
 

G. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC 
COMMENT: 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 
H-1 No Postponed Items 
 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 
I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: a) Mayoral Appointments – Brownfield 

Redevelopment Authority; b) City Council Appointments – Charter Revision 
Committee, Zoning Board of Appeals 

 
a) Mayoral Appointments 
 
Resolution #2013-04-078 
Moved by Slater  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
RESOLVED, That the Mayor of the City of Troy hereby APPOINTS the following nominated 
person(s) to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated:   
 

Brownfield Redevelopment Authority 
Appointed by Mayor 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 
Nominations to the Brownfield Redevelopment Authority: 
 
Term Expires:  4/30/2016 Bruce J. Wilberding 
 Term currently held by: Bruce J. Wilberding 
 

Yes: Henderson, McGinnis, Pennington, Tietz, Slater, Fleming  
No: None 
Absent: Campbell  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
b) City Council Appointments 
 
Resolution #2013-04-079 
Moved by Fleming  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft April 15, 2013 
 

- 4 - 

Seconded by Henderson  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following nominated person(s) to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Charter Revision Committee 
Appointed by Council 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 
Nominations to the Charter Revision Committee: 

 
Term Expires:  04/30/2016 Robert Berk 
 Term currently held by: Robert Berk 
 
Term Expires:  04/30/2016 Shirley A. Kanoza 
 Term currently held by: Shirley A. Kanoza 
 
 

Zoning Board of Appeals 
Appointed by Council 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 

 
Nominations to the Zoning Board of Appeals: 
 
Term Expires:  04/30/2016 Kenneth Courtney 
 Term currently held by: Kenneth Courtney 
 
Term Expires:  04/30/2016 David Eisenbacher 
 Term currently held by: William Fisher 
 

Yes: McGinnis, Pennington, Tietz, Slater, Fleming, Henderson  
No: None 
Absent: Campbell 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: a) Mayoral Nominations – None; b) City 

Council Nominations – Charter Revision Committee, Zoning Board of Appeals 
 
a) Mayoral Nominations:  None 

 
b) City Council Nominations 
 
Resolution #2013-04-080 
Moved by Fleming  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft April 15, 2013 
 

- 5 - 

Seconded by Henderson  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby FORWARDS the following nominated person(s) 
to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council 
Meeting for action: 
 

Charter Revision Committee 
Appointed by Council 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 
Nominations to the Charter Revision Committee: 

 
Term Expires:  04/30/2014 Frank Howrylak 
 Term currently held by: Mark Solomon’s term (deceased) 
 

Yes: Pennington, Tietz, Slater, Fleming, Henderson, McGinnis  
No: None 
Absent: Campbell 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
I-3 Closed Session 
 
Resolution #2013-04-081 
Moved by McGinnis  
Seconded by Pennington  
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session, as permitted by 
MCL 15.268 (e) (Knutson v. City of Troy et.al) and MCL 15.268 (c) (AFSCME, MAP, and 
TCSA). 
 
Yes: Tietz, Slater, Fleming, Henderson, McGinnis, Pennington  
No: None 
Absent: Campbell  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
I-4 Proposed Agreement With Ice Lounge – 5903 John R (Introduced by:  Lori Grigg 

Bluhm, City Attorney) 
 
Resolution #2013-04-082 
Moved by Fleming  
Seconded by Pennington  
 
RESOLVED, That the Agreement concerning Ice Lounge, 5903 John R Road, between the City 
of Troy and Aysin & Assen, Inc., is hereby APPROVED; the Mayor and City Clerk are 

Reconsidered 
Resolution #2013-04-086 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft April 15, 2013 
 

- 6 - 

AUTHORIZED to EXECUTE the document, and a copy shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: Slater, Fleming, Henderson, McGinnis, Pennington, Tietz  
No: None 
Absent: Campbell  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 
J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2013-04-083 
Moved by McGinnis  
Seconded by Henderson  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES all items on the Consent Agenda as 
printed. 
 
Yes: Fleming, Henderson, McGinnis, Pennington, Tietz, Slater  
No: None 
Absent: Campbell  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 
J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Resolution #2013-04-083-J-2a 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following Minutes as submitted: 
 
a) City Council Regular Meeting Minutes – April 8, 2013 
 
J-3 No Proposed City of Troy Proclamations 
 
J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions: 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Sole Bidder Meeting Specifications – Slide 

Renovation 
 
Resolution #2013-04-083-J-4a 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract in order to furnish all 
equipment, material and labor to renovate and resurface the interior and exterior of the tube 
and body waterslides and the interior only of the kiddie water slide at the Troy Family Outdoor 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft April 15, 2013 
 

- 7 - 

Aquatic Center to the sole bidder meeting all bid specifications, Slide Care, LLC, of Avon, Ohio 
at an estimated total cost of $57,820.00. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the contractor’s 
submission of properly executed bid documents, including insurance certificates, bonds and all 
other specified requirements. 
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option – Lawn And Yard 

Services For The Home Chore Program 
 
Resolution #2013-04-083-J-4b 
 
WHEREAS, On April 2, 2012, Troy City Council awarded a contract to provide seasonal 
requirements of lawn and yard care services for the City’s Home Chore Program with an option 
to renew for one (1) additional season to the low total bidder, Outdoor Enhancements of Lake 
Orion, as the primary contractor at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened March 15, 
2012 (Resolution #2012-04-070-J4b); and 
 
WHEREAS, The contractor has agreed to exercise the option to renew for one additional 
season under the same pricing, terms and conditions as their original contract; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DETERMINES it to be 
in the City’s best interest to EXERCISE the option to renew the contract to provide seasonal 
requirements of lawn and yard care services with Outdoor Enhancements of Lake Orion, as the 
primary contractor for the Home Chore Program under the same pricing, terms and conditions 
expiring November 30, 2013.  
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Low Bidder Meeting Specifications – Printing 

Services For The Troy Today Quarterly Newsletter 
 
Resolution #2013-04-083-J-4c 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a one (1) year contract to provide 
printing and delivery services of the Troy Today Quarterly Newsletter with an option to renew 
for two (2) additional years to the low bidder meeting specifications; Grand Blanc Co Inc., of 
Grand Blanc, MI at an estimated total cost of $39,418.80, plus the actual cost of bulk rate 
postage and $50.00 per issue to post the Flip page newsletter on the City’s website, and 
additional charges if needed not to exceed $3,900.00, at prices contained in the bid tabulation 
opened April 8, 2013, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the contractor’s 
submission of properly executed bid documents, including insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements. 
 
d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Award To Low Bidder With Minor Deviation – 

Mosquito Control 
 
Resolution #2013-04-083-J-4d 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft April 15, 2013 
 

- 8 - 

 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a three (3) year contract for Mosquito 
Control to the lowest bidder, Custom Personalized Lawn Care of Flint, MI, with a minor 
deviation from the adulticide specified for Proposals A-G at an estimated three-year total cost 
of $102,810.13, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened March 21, 2013, a copy of 
which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, with the contract expiring 
December 31, 2015. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the contract is CONTINGENT upon contractor’s 
submission of properly executed bid documents, including insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements. 
 
e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Sole Bidder Meeting Specifications – 

Fertilizer/Herbicide Application Services 
 
Resolution #2013-04-083-J-4e 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a three (3) year contract for Fertilizer 
Herbicide Application Services to the sole bidder meeting specifications:  Great Lakes 
Landscaping of Warren, MI for Proposals A-B at an estimated three (3) year total cost of 
$125,543.73, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation, opened April 10, 2013, a copy of 
which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, with the contract expiring 
December 31, 2015. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the contract is CONTINGENT upon contractor’s 
submission of properly executed bid and bond documents, including insurance certificates and 
all other specified requirements. 
 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 
K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Submitted 
 
K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 
 some future point in time): None Submitted 
 

L. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA: 
 
Reinhardt, Marv Spoke about various topics. 
Fucinari, Cathy Spoke supporting Mayor Slater. 
Kulesz, John Spoke about a Planning Commission Member. 
Schepke, Gordon Spoke in opposition of Mayor Slater. 
Brake, Dan Spoke in opposition of Mayor Slater. 
Cherasaro, Nicholas Spoke in opposition of Mayor Slater. 
Werpetinski, Jim Spoke in support of Mayor Slater. 
Krent, Tom Spoke in support of Mayor Slater. 
Gosselin, Toby Spoke in support of Mayor Slater. 
Thilman, Joe Spoke in support of Mayor Slater. 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft April 15, 2013 
 

- 9 - 

Bloomingdale, Bruce Spoke in support of Mayor Slater. 
Hodorek, Ellen Spoke in support of Mayor Slater. 
 

M. COUNCIL REFERRALS:  
Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for 
Placement on the Agenda 

M-1  No Council Referrals Advanced 
 

N. COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
N-1  Council Comments 
 
Vote on Resolution to Suspend Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #7 – Order 
of Business 
 
Resolution #2013-04-084 
Moved by Tietz 
Seconded by McGinnis  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SUSPENDS Rules of Procedure for the City 
Council, Rule #7 Order of Business to reconsider Item I-4 Proposed Agreement With Ice 
Lounge – 5903 John R (Introduced by:  Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney). 
 
Yes: Henderson, McGinnis, Pennington, Tietz, Slater, Fleming 
No: None 
Absent: Campbell  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution to Reconsider Item I-4 Proposed Agreement With Ice Lounge – 5903 
John R (Introduced by:  Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney) 
 
Resolution #2013-04-085 
Moved by Tietz  
Seconded by Henderson  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby RECONSIDERS Resolution #2013-04-082, Moved 
by Fleming and Seconded by Pennington, as it appears below:   
 

Resolution #2013-04-082 
Moved by Fleming  
Seconded by Pennington  
 
RESOLVED, That the Agreement concerning Ice Lounge, 5903 John R Road, 
between the City of Troy and Aysin & Assen, Inc., is hereby APPROVED; the 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft April 15, 2013 
 

- 10 - 

Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to EXECUTE the document, and a copy 
shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: Slater, Fleming, Henderson, McGinnis, Pennington, Tietz  
No: None 
Absent: Campbell  
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
Yes: McGinnis, Pennington, Tietz, Slater, Fleming, Henderson 
No: None 
Absent: Campbell 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
I-4 Proposed Agreement With Ice Lounge – 5903 John R (Introduced by:  Lori Grigg 

Bluhm, City Attorney) 
 
Resolution #2013-04-086 
Moved by Tietz 
Seconded by McGinnis  
 
RESOLVED, That the Agreement concerning Ice Lounge, 5903 John R Road, between the City 
of Troy and Aysin & Assen, Inc., is hereby APPROVED; the Mayor and City Clerk are 
AUTHORIZED to EXECUTE the document, and a copy shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: Pennington, Slater, McGinnis  
No: Tietz, Fleming, Henderson 
Absent: Campbell  
 
MOTION FAILED 
 
Council Member McGinnis requests further discussion regarding an investigation into the 
comments made about a Planning Commission Member during public comment.   
 
Mayor Slater thanked Management for updates and budget overview in preparation for the 
upcoming budget meetings. 

O. REPORTS: 
O-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  None Submitted 
a) Animal Control Appeal Board-Final – November 28, 2012 
b) Building Code Board of Appeals-Final – March 6, 2013 
c) Planning Commission Special/Study-Draft – March 26, 2013 

Noted and Filed 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft April 15, 2013 
 

- 11 - 

O-2 Department Reports:  
a) Proposed Budget  

Noted and Filed 
 

O-3  Letters of Appreciation 
a) To Police Department from Care House of Oakland County Regarding Donations 
b) To Sergeant Joseph Haddad from the Drennan Family Regarding Assistance for the 

Family 
Noted and Filed 

 
O-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted 

Noted and Filed 
 

O-5  Proposed Changes to Hookah License Ordinance 
Noted and Filed 

 

P. STUDY ITEMS: 
P-1  No Study Items  
 
The Meeting RECESSED at 9:58 PM. 
 
The Meeting RECONVENED at 10:07 PM. 
 

Q. CLOSED SESSION:  

Q-1  Closed Session 
 

R. ADJOURNMENT: 

 
The Meeting ADOURNED at 10:54 PM. 
 
 
 
 

Mayor Dane Slater 
 
 
 
M. Aileen Bittner, CMC 
City Clerk 

 



CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL STUDY MINUTES April 22, 2013 
 

- 1 - 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 
A Special Study Meeting of the Troy City Council was held on Monday, April 22, 2013, at City 
Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Rd.  Mayor Slater called the meeting to order at 7:30 PM. 

B. ROLL CALL: 
Mayor Dane Slater 
Jim Campbell 
Wade Fleming 
Dave Henderson 
Maureen McGinnis 
Ed Pennington 
Doug Tietz 

C. DISCUSSION ITEM:  
C-1 Proposed Fiscal Year 2013-2014 Annual Budget and Three-Year Budget 

 
Overview of 2013-2014 Budget: 
•  Top 12 Strategy •  Taxable Value/General Fund Fund Balance 
•  Department Summaries •  General Expenditure Overview 
•  Capital Improvement Plan •  Special Revenue Funds 
•  Enterprise Funds •  Debt Service 
•  Three-Year Budget •  Wrap Up 

 
(Budget is available for review at the City Clerk’s Office, Troy Public Library and on the City’s 
website http://www.troymi.gov/budget/) 
 
The Meeting RECESSED at 9:15 PM. 
 
The Meeting RECONVENED at 9:23 PM. 

D. PUBLIC COMMENT: 
Werpetinski, Jim Thanked Staff and City Council for the Budget presentation and positivity. 

E. ADJOURNMENT: 

The Meeting ADOURNED at 10:10 PM. 
 
 

Mayor Dane Slater 
 
 
 
M. Aileen Bittner, CMC 
City Clerk 

 

http://www.troymi.gov/budget/�
stewartc
Text Box
J-02b



CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL STUDY MINUTES April 24, 2013 
 

- 1 - 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 
A Special Study Meeting of the Troy City Council was held on Wednesday, April 24, 2013, at 
City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Rd.  Mayor Slater called the meeting to order at 7:30 PM. 

B. ROLL CALL: 
Mayor Dane Slater 
Wade Fleming 
Dave Henderson 
Maureen McGinnis 
Ed Pennington 
Doug Tietz – Arrived at 7:58 PM 

 
Resolution #2013-04-087 
Moved by Slater  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of Council Member 
Campbell at the City Council Special Study Session of Monday, April 24, 2013. 
 
Yes: Slater, Fleming, Henderson, McGinnis, Pennington  
No: None 
Absent: Campbell, Tietz  
 
MOTION CARRIED 

C. DISCUSSION ITEM:  
C-1 Proposed Fiscal Year 2013-2014 Annual Budget and Three-Year Budget 

 
Conclusion of Overview of 2013-2014 Budget: 
•  Capital Improvement Plan •  Special Revenue Funds 
•  Enterprise Funds •  Debt Service Funds 
•  Three-Year Budget •  Wrap Up 

 
(Budget is available for review at the City Clerk’s Office, Troy Public Library and on the City’s 
website http://www.troymi.gov/budget/) 

D. PUBLIC COMMENT: 
Werpetinski, Jim Spoke in support of the Museum, the Nature Center, and culture in the City. 

E. ADJOURNMENT: 

The Meeting ADOURNED at 9:37 PM. 
 
 
 

http://www.troymi.gov/budget/�
stewartc
Text Box
J-02c



CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL STUDY MINUTES April 24, 2013 
 

- 2 - 

 
 
 

Mayor Dane Slater 
 
 
 
M. Aileen Bittner, CMC 
City Clerk 

 



 
PROCLAMATION 

CELEBRATING NURSES WEEK 
MAY 6 – 12, 2013 

 
WHEREAS, "National Nurse Week" was first observed in 1954, based on a bill introduced in 
Congress by Rep. Frances Payne Bolton of Ohio, an advocate for nursing and public health. 
The year marked the 100th anniversary of nursing profession pioneer Florence Nightingale's 
mission to treat wounded soldiers during the Crimean War; and 
 
WHEREAS, The International Council of Nurses (ICN) established May 12, Florence 
Nightingale's birthday, as an annual "International Nurse Day" in 1974; and 
 
WHEREAS, It wasn't until the early 1990s, based on an American Nurses Association Board of 
Directors action, that recognition of nurses' contributions to community and national health was 
expanded to a week-long event each year, from May 6-12; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Nursing profession is one in which the mind, the hand and the heart are 
devoted to the mental, physical, and social improvement of all; and 

WHEREAS, In 2012, Americans again voted nurses the most trusted profession in America for 
the 13th time in 14 years in the annual Gallup poll that ranks professions for their honesty and 
ethical standards. Nurses' honesty and ethics were rated "very high" or "high" by 85 percent of 
poll respondents; and 

WHEREAS, Our community is extremely proud of our Beaumont nurses who continue to uphold 
the highest standards of a profession so essential in assuring our citizens the best in health care 
and treatment;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Mayor and City Council of the City of Troy 
hereby proclaim May 6 – 12, 2013 as Nurses Week in the City of Troy; 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That we invite all Troy residents to recognize and celebrate the 
vital role nurses play in our lives, and appreciate their highly skilled and humanitarian services 
for all they provide each and every day 
 
Presented this 10th day of May 2013. 
 
 
 

stewartc
Text Box
J-03a



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date:  May 6, 2013 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  
From: Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
 MaryBeth Murz, Purchasing Manager 
  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
  Kurt Bovensiep, Superintendent Parks, Streets, and Drains 
 
Subject: Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award To Low Bidder – Fencing for the Athena Detention Basin 
 
History 
The Streets and Drains Division is responsible for the maintenance of over 170 detention/retention basins. Some of these 
detention/retention basins are fenced, depending on the location and size of the detention/retention basin.  The Athena 
Detention Basin which is located North of Athena and West of Dequindre has been fenced for over forty (40) years.  Even 
though the Basin fencing has been repaired and modified over the years; currently the chain link fabric is rusted, in 
unsightly appearance and in need of repair.  Residents in the area have also expressed concern regarding the 
appearance of the fencing. 
 
Purchasing 
On May 2, 2013, a public bid opening was conducted as required by City Charter and Code to furnish all equipment, 
material and labor to remove and install new fencing for the surrounding Athena Detention Basin.  The bid was posted 
and seventy five (75) companies were notified via the Michigan Intergovernmental Trade Network (MITN) website; 
www.mitn.info.  The bid was also sent to the Troy Chamber of Commerce.  Six (6) bids were received.  One (1) bid 
received was considered late.  Below is a detailed vendor summary: 
 

Companies notified via MITN 75 

 Troy Companies notified via MITN 2 

Troy Companies notified Active email Notification 2 

Troy Companies notified Active Free 0 

Companies that viewed the bid  12 

Troy Companies that viewed the bid 1 

 
 
After reviewing the bid proposals, RMD Holdings, LTD., dba Nationwide Construction Group of Chesterfield, MI was the 
lowest responsible bidder and is being recommended to furnish all equipment, material and labor for the installation of the 
fencing surrounding the Athena Detention Basin at unit prices identified in the attached bid tabulation. 
 
Financial 
Funds for these materials and installation are available through the Streets and Drains capital budget. 
 
Recommendation 
City management recommends awarding a contract to provide the equipment, material and labor for the installation of the 
fencing surrounding the Athena Detention Basin to the following lowest responsible bidder: RMD Holdings, LTD., dba 
Nationwide Construction Group of Chesterfield, MI at unit prices as contained in the attached bid tabulation for an 
estimated total cost of $20,630.00.  The award is contingent upon the contractor’s submission of properly executed bid 
documents including insurance certificates and all other specified requirements. 
 
G:\Bid Award 13-14 New Format\Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 1 Athena Detention Basin Fencing ITB-COT 13-12 

MITN provides a resourceful online platform to streamline the procurement 
process, reduce costs, and make it easier and more transparent for vendors 
to do business with the City of Troy. 
Active MITN members with a current membership and paying annual dues 
receive automatic electronic notification which allows instant access to Bids, 
RFPS and Quote opportunities with the City.   
Active MITN non-paying members are responsible to monitor and check 
the MITN website for opportunities to do business with the City. 
Inactive MITN member status can occur when a company does not renew 
their account upon expiration.  Inactive members cannot be notified of 
solicitations or access any bid information. 

 
 

http://www.mitn.info/�
stewartc
Text Box
J-04a



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 13-12
BID TABULATION Page 1 of 2
FENCING FOR ATHENA DETENTION BASIN

RMD Holdings, Ltd dba 
Nationwide Construction 

Group
American Fence and 

Supply Co. Inc.
Industrial Fence and 

Landscaping Inc.
Chesterfield, MI Warren, MI Detroit, MI

Ck# 9012307685 1244600 667412
Ck. Amount $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00

PROPOSAL:  To furnish all equipment, material and labor to remove and install new fencing for the City of Troy
Athena Detention Basin in accordance with specifications.

COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: $20,630.00 $24,146.00 $24,981.00

CONTACT INFORMATION:
Hours of Operation 7:00am-5:00pm 7:00am-5:00pm 7:30am-4:30pm

24HR Phone # (517) 496-6900 (888) 963-3623 (734) 777-0986

SITE INSPECTION: Y/N Yes Yes Yes
Date 4/25/2013 4/30/2013 5/1/2013

COMPLETION DATE:  
Can Meet Yes Yes Yes
Cannot Meet
Offers

Work Shall Commence
20 calendar days after 

notice to proceed.
3 calendar days after 

notice to proceed.
10 calendar days after 

notice to proceed.

REFERENCES: Yes Yes Yes

INSURANCE: Can Meet Yes Yes Yes
Cannot Meet

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT SIGNED: Y OR N Yes Yes Yes

PAYMENT TERMS: Net 30 Net 30 30 days

EXCEPTIONS: None None None

WARRANTY: 1 Year 1 Year 2 Years

QUESTIONNAIRE: Attached Y or N Yes Yes Yes

SCHEDULE OF VALUES: Y or N Yes Yes Yes

FORMS COMPLETED:
Legal Status of Bidder: Y or N Yes Yes Yes
Non-Collusion Affidavit: Y or N Yes Yes Yes
Certification regarding Debarment: Y or N Yes Yes Yes

BOLDFACE TYPE DENOTES LOW BIDDER

LATE BID:  Future Fence Company
ATTEST:
Enna Bachelor _______________________________
Susan Riesterer MaryBeth Murz
Kurt Bovensiep Purchasing Manager

Opening Date -- 5/2/2013
Date Reviewed -- 5/2/2013

June 30, 2013



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 13-12
BID TABULATION Page 2 of 2
FENCING FOR ATHENA DETENTION BASIN

Spartan Fence, Inc. Motor City Fence Co.
Morrice, MI Troy, MI

Ck# 9904 1244600
Ck. Amount $2,000.00 $2,000.00

PROPOSAL:  To furnish all equipment, material and labor to remove and install new fencing for the City of Troy
Athena Detention Basin in accordance with specifications.

COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: $26,311.11 $31,644.00

CONTACT INFORMATION:
Hours of Operation 8:00am-5:00pm 8:00am-5:00pm 

24HR Phone # (517) 625-1611 (248) 269-8888

SITE INSPECTION: Y/N Yes Yes
Date 4/29/2013 4/29/2013

COMPLETION DATE:  
Can Meet Yes Yes
Cannot Meet
Offers

Work Shall Commence
10 calendar days after 

notice to proceed.
14 calendar days after 

notice to proceed.

REFERENCES: Yes Yes

INSURANCE: Can Meet Yes Yes
Cannot Meet

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT SIGNED: Y OR N Yes Yes

PAYMENT TERMS: 1% Ten/Net 30 Net 30

EXCEPTIONS: None None

WARRANTY: 2 Yrs., 10 Yr. Product 1 Year

QUESTIONNAIRE: Attached Y or N Yes Yes

SCHEDULE OF VALUES: Y or N Yes Yes

FORMS COMPLETED:
Legal Status of Bidder: Y or N Yes Yes
Non-Collusion Affidavit: Y or N Yes Yes
Certification regarding Debarment: Y or N Yes Yes

BOLDFACE TYPE DENOTES LOW BIDDER

Opening Date -- 5/2/2013
Date Reviewed -- 5/2/2013

June 30, 2013



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

Date:  May 6, 2013 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  
From: Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
 MaryBeth Murz, Purchasing Manager 
  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
  Kurt Bovensiep, Superintendent Parks, Streets, and Drains 
 
Subject: Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award To Low Bidder – Parking Lot Maintenance Program 
 
History 
City owned parking lots are evaluated annually in order to determine necessary repairs based on the severity of existing 
conditions. In fiscal year 2012-13 the Department of Public Works was able to complete the South Side of the Community 
Center Parking Lot under budget.  As a result of the competitive pricing received and the cost savings rendered by the 
Streets Division staff completing the base repairs; the City is able to expedite the Asphalt Parking Lot Maintenance 
Overlay for the City Hall East Parking Lot and the Library South Parking Lot to be completed this fiscal year by June 30, 
2013.  
 
Purchasing 
On May 2, 2013, a public bid was conducted as required by City Charter and Code to complete the Parking Lot 
Maintenance Program for the City Hall East Parking Lot and the Library South Parking Lot.  The Bid was posted and two 
hundred twenty eight (228) companies were notified via the Michigan Intergovernmental Trade Network (MITN) website; 
www.mitn.info.  The bid was also sent to the Troy Chamber of Commerce.  Eight (8) bids were received.  Below is a 
detailed vendor summary:   
 
Companies notified via MITN 228 

Troy Companies notified via MITN 5 

Troy Companies notified Active email Notification 2 

Troy Companies notified Active Free 3 

Companies that viewed the bid  45 

Troy Companies that viewed the bid 5 

 
After reviewing the bid proposals, Mid West Pavement Contracting, Inc. of Milford, MI was the lowest responsible bidder 
and is being recommended to complete the Parking Lot Maintenance Program for the City Hall East Parking Lot and the 
Library South Parking Lot at unit prices identified in the attached bid tabulation. 
 
Financial 
Funds for this Parking Lot Maintenance Program are available through the 2012-2013 D.P.W. Capital Account Budget. 
 
Recommendation 
City management recommends awarding a contract to complete the Parking Lot Maintenance Overlay to the City Hall 
East Parking Lot and Library South Parking Lot to the following low bidder:  Mid West Pavement Contracting, Inc. of 
Milford, MI at unit prices as contained in the bid tabulation for an estimated total cost of $35,795.25. 
 
The award is contingent upon the contractor’s submission of properly executed bid documents including Insurance 
Certificates, acceptable Performance, Labor and Materials Bonds and a two (2) year Maintenance Bond in accordance 
with bid specifications. 
 
G:\Bid Award 13-14 New Format\Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 1 Parking Lot Maintenance Program ITB-COT 13-09 

MITN provides a resourceful online platform to streamline the procurement 
process, reduce costs, and make it easier and more transparent for vendors 
to do business with the City of Troy. 
Active MITN members with a current membership and paying annual dues 
receive automatic electronic notification which allows instant access to Bids, 
RFPS and Quote opportunities with the City.   
Active MITN non-paying members are responsible to monitor and check 
the MITN website for opportunities to do business with the City. 
Inactive MITN member status can occur when a company does not renew 
their account upon expiration.  Inactive members cannot be notified of 
solicitations or access any bid information. 

 
 

http://www.mitn.info/�
stewartc
Text Box
J-04b



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 13-09
Opening Date -- 5/2/2013 BID TABULATION Page 1 of 4
Date Reviewed -- 5/2/2013 PARKING LOT MAINTENANCE PROGRAM

VENDOR NAME:

Ck#
Ck Amount

PROPOSAL:  TO COMPLETE THE CITY OF TROY PARKING LOT MAINTENANCE PROGRAM IN ACCORDANCE TO
          SPECIFICATIONS

UNIT UNIT
ITEM DESCRIPTION EST. QTY. PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION

1 6' Butt Joint if needed 80 L.F. $12.00 $960.00 $8.50 $680.00
2 Milling 1 1/2 inch 1305 S.Y. $3.25 $4,241.25 $4.00 $5,220.00
3 1-1/2" Bituminous Mix No. 1100T, 20AA 450 Tons $67.00 $30,150.00 $62.00 $27,900.00
4 Striping (yellow/blue) 2700 L.F. $0.12 $324.00 $0.90 $2,430.00
5 Handicapped Parking Space & Logo (blue) 8 each $15.00 $120.00 $25.00 $200.00

Traffic Maintenance Control Included NC NC NC NC

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL: $35,795.25 $36,430.00

CONTACT INFORMATION:         Hrs. of Operation 8:00 - 5:00 pm As required
(248) 318-6724 (248) 804-7974

PROGRESS PAYMENTS: 30 Days upon completion. Net 30 Days from Completion

SITE INSPECTION:     Visited Site Y or N Yes Yes
                                 Date visited 4/27/2013 4/30/2013

REFERENCES: Y or N Yes Yes

COMPLETION DATE:  Can Meet Y or N Yes Yes

INSURANCE:              Can Meet Yes Yes
                                  Cannot Meet

SIGNATURE PAGE: Y or N Yes Yes

PAYMENT TERMS: 30 days Net 30

WARRANTY: Per Contract 1 Year Warranty

EXCEPTIONS: None Blank

VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE: Y or N Yes Yes

FORMS COMPLETED:          Legal Status Y or N Yes Yes
                                            Non-Collusion Y or N Yes Yes
                                            Debarment Y or N Yes Yes

DENOTES LOW BIDDER

ATTEST:
Enna Bachelor
Susan Riesterer MaryBeth Murz,
Marina Basta-Farouk Purchasing Manager
Kurt Bovensiep

G:ITB-COT 13-09 Parking Lot Maintenance.xls

577969

Contracting, Inc.

$2,500.00 $2,500.00

                                       24 Hr. Phone#

MidWest Pavement Asphalt Specialists, Inc.

Milford, MI Pontiac, MI
556870



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 13-09
Opening Date -- 5/2/2013 BID TABULATION Page 2 of 4
Date Reviewed -- 5/2/2013 PARKING LOT MAINTENANCE PROGRAM

VEDNOR NAME:

Ck#
Ck Amount

PROPOSAL:  TO COMPLETE THE CITY OF TROY PARKING LOT MAINTENANCE PROGRAM IN ACCORDANCE TO
          SPECIFICATIONS

UNIT UNIT
ITEM DESCRIPTION EST. QTY. PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION

1 6' Butt Joint if needed 80 L.F. $3.00 $240.00 $5.00 $400.00
2 Milling 1 1/2 inch 1305 S.Y. $4.75 $6,198.75 $5.00 $6,525.00
3 1-1/2" Bituminous Mix No. 1100T, 20AA 450 Tons $68.20 $30,690.00 $69.00 $31,050.00
4 Striping (yellow/blue) 2700 L.F. $0.25 $675.00 $0.25 $675.00
5 Handicapped Parking Space & Logo (blue) 8 each $25.00 $200.00 $20.00 $160.00

Traffice Maintenance Control Included NC NC NC NC

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL: $38,003.75 $38,810.00

CONTACT INFORMATION:         Hrs. of Operation 7:00am - 5:00pm 6:00am - 6:00pm
(734) 564-2256 (248) 719-1687

PROGRESS PAYMENTS: Monthly Net 30 Days

SITE INSPECTION:     Visited Site Y or N Yes Yes
                                 Date visited 4/25/2013 4/29/2013

REFERENCES: Y or N Yes Yes

COMPLETION DATE:  Can Meet Y or N Yes Yes

INSURANCE:              Can Meet Yes Yes
                                  Cannot Meet

SIGNATURE PAGE: Y or N Yes Yes

PAYMENT TERMS: Net 30 Days Net 30 Days

WARRANTY: 24 Months 1 Year

EXCEPTIONS: None Bid for one (1) mobilization

VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE: Y or N Yes Yes

FORMS COMPLETED:          Legal Status Y or N Yes Yes
                                            Non-Collusion Y or N Yes Yes
                                            Debarment Y or N Yes Yes

DENOTES LOW BIDDER

G:ITB-COT 13-09 Parking Lot Maintenance.xls

                                       24 Hr. Phone#

Company

1213359
$2,500.00

S & J Asphalt Paving T & M Asphalt Paving, Inc.

591682
$2,500.00

Canton, MI Milford, MI



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 13-09
Opening Date -- 5/2/2013 BID TABULATION Page 3 of 4
Date Reviewed -- 5/2/2013 PARKING LOT MAINTENANCE PROGRAM

VENDOR NAME:

Ck#
Ck Amount

PROPOSAL:  TO COMPLETE THE CITY OF TROY PARKING LOT MAINTENANCE PROGRAM IN ACCORDANCE TO
          SPECIFICATIONS

UNIT UNIT
ITEM DESCRIPTION EST. QTY. PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION

1 6' Butt Joint if needed 80 L.F. $5.26 $420.80 $5.00 $400.00
2 Milling 1 1/2 inch 1305 S.Y. $5.18 $6,759.90 $4.80 $6,264.00
3 1-1/2" Bituminous Mix No. 1100T, 20AA 450 Tons $69.53 $31,288.50 $72.40 $32,580.00
4 Striping (yellow/blue) 2700 L.F. $0.16 $432.00 $0.18 $486.00
5 Handicapped Parking Space & Logo (blue) 8 each $9.28 $74.24 $20.00 $160.00

Traffic Maintenance Control Included NC NC NC NC

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL: $38,975.44 $39,890.00

CONTACT INFORMATION:         Hrs. of Operation 8:00am - 5:00pm 7:00am - 5:00pm
(586) 752-7730 (248) 765-3109

PROGRESS PAYMENTS: 30 Days Net 30 Days

SITE INSPECTION:     Visited Site Y or N Yes Yes
                                 Date visited 4/30/2013 4/19/2013

REFERENCES: Y or N Yes Yes

COMPLETION DATE:  Can Meet Y or N Yes Yes

INSURANCE:              Can Meet Yes Yes
                                  Cannot Meet

SIGNATURE PAGE: Y or N Yes Yes

PAYMENT TERMS: Net 30 Net 30 Days

WARRANTY: 1 Year 1 Year

EXCEPTIONS: Blank Blank

VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE: Y or N Yes Yes

FORMS COMPLETED:          Legal Status Y or N Yes Yes
                                            Non-Collusion Y or N Yes Yes
                                            Debarment Y or N Yes Yes

DENOTES LOW BIDDER

G:ITB-COT 13-09 Parking Lot Maintenance.xls

Paving Corporation

$2,500.00 $2,500.00

                                       24 Hr. Phone#

Pro-Line Asphalt Nagle Paving Company

Washington, MI Novi, MI
1252654886 602118



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 13-09
Opening Date -- 5/2/2013 BID TABULATION Page 4 of 4 
Date Reviewed -- 5/2/2013 PARKING LOT MAINTENANCE PROGRAM

VENDOR NAME:

Ck#
Ck Amount

PROPOSAL:  TO COMPLETE THE CITY OF TROY PARKING LOT MAINTENANCE PROGRAM IN ACCORDANCE TO
          SPECIFICATIONS

UNIT UNIT
ITEM DESCRIPTION EST. QTY. PRICE EXTENSION PRICE EXTENSION

1 6' Butt Joint if needed 80 L.F. $10.00 $800.00 $0.01 $0.80
2 Milling 1 1/2 inch 1305 S.Y. $9.00 $11,745.00 $6.90 $9,004.50
3 1-1/2" Bituminous Mix No. 1100T, 20AA 450 Tons $70.35 $31,657.50 $80.00 $36,000.00
4 Striping (yellow/blue) 2700 L.F. $0.26 $702.00 $0.25 $675.00
5 Handicapped Parking Space & Logo (blue) 8 each $40.00 $320.00 $25.00 $200.00

Traffic Maintenance Control Included NC NC NC NC

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL: $45,224.50 $45,880.30

CONTACT INFORMATION:         Hrs. of Operation Blank Blank
(734) 341-0885 Blank

PROGRESS PAYMENTS: Bi-weekly Blank

SITE INSPECTION:     Visited Site Y or N No Yes
                                 Date visited 4/22/2013

REFERENCES: Y or N Yes Blank

COMPLETION DATE:  Can Meet Y or N Yes Yes

INSURANCE:              Can Meet Yes Yes
                                  Cannot Meet

SIGNATURE PAGE: Y or N Yes Yes

PAYMENT TERMS: Upon completion 30 Days

WARRANTY: 1 Year 1 Year

EXCEPTIONS: None Blank

VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE: Y or N Yes Blank

FORMS COMPLETED:          Legal Status Y or N Yes Yes
                                            Non-Collusion Y or N Yes Yes
                                            Debarment Y or N Yes Yes

DENOTES LOW BIDDER

G:ITB-COT 13-09 Parking Lot Maintenance.xls

Al's Asphalt Paving Florence Cement 
Company
Taylor, MI Shelby Township, MI
653017 635335

$2,500.00 $2,500.00

                                       24 Hr. Phone#

Company



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date:  May 7, 2013 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  
From:  Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic & Community Development 
  Tom Darling, Director of Financial Services 

MaryBeth Murz, Purchasing Manager 
Susan Leirstein, Purchasing Director 

      
Subject: Standard Purchasing Resolution 3 – Exercise Renewal Option – Building Department 

Services   
 
 
History 
 
On June 7, 2010, Troy City Council awarded a three (3) year Professional Service Agreement to 
Safebuilt Michigan, Inc., which resulted from a best value process (SOQ/RFP-COT 09-49) and that 
City Council determined to be in the public’s best interest. {CC Res #2010-06-122}   
 
The contract has an expiration date of June 30, 2013, with an option to renew for two (2) additional 
years provided that SAFEbuilt Michigan, Inc. meets all contract terms and conditions.  Since the 
summer of 2010 when SAFEbuilt started managing the day to day operations of the Building 
Inspections Department, there was a very smooth transition.  That smooth transition was 
representative of SAFEbuilt’s customer service and technological savvy, with a professional culture in 
providing building inspections and plan review services.   
 
SAFEbuilt provides high quality professional services along with a cost effective method where the 
building code related permit fees generate revenues to provide payment for services.  Once the 
permit fees surpassed $ one (1) million, the reimbursement is calculated by providing SAFEbuilt 75% 
of the eligible permit fees.  Based upon this advantageous model, City Administration desired long 
term stability and asked SAFEbuilt if they would consider a five (5) year renewal.  SAFEbuilt agreed 
and executed the attached Amendment to Professional Services Agreement for Building Inspections 
Services. 
 
Purchasing 
 
In 2009 the City of Troy issued a best value process, including a Statement of Qualifications (SOQ-
COT 09-49) which resulted in a Professional Services Agreement for Building Inspections Services. 
 
This agreement includes a three (3) year duration with the option to renew for two additional years.  
Both City Administration and SAFEbuilt would like to amend the agreement to extend the term to five 
(5) years.  Most terms and conditions will remain in place; however, it will include adjustments to the 
annual prevailing rate for rental of City Hall office space and computer/copier/miscellaneous 

stewartc
Text Box
J-04c



 

 

2 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

equipment.  Additional fire protection system inspection and plan review hourly rates were added at 
$85.00 per hour.  These fire protection services are included only for peak situations and are 
expected to be used infrequently by the Troy Fire Department. 
 
 
Financial 
 
SAFEbuilt’s compensation will remain the same.  SAFEbuilt shall receive seventy-five (75%) of 
building permit fees, plan review fees, certificate of occupancy fees and inspection fees that are 
collected by the City each month.  The fees are directly related to administering Michigan Building 
Code.   
 
Recommendation 
 
SAFEbuilt provides professional building inspections and plan review services with exceptional 
customer service and technological tools.  The revenue and billing model where there is a seventy-
five (75%) and twenty-five (25%) split of the building department fees offers stability and very little risk 
for the City of Troy.  City Administration recommends City Council adopt the resolution that approves 
the Amendment to Professional Services Agreement for Building Inspections Services with SAFEbuilt 
of Michigan. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
City Attorney’s Review as to Form and Legality 
 
 
____________________________  ______________ 
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney   Date 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
MM/bt/g/mydocuments/agenda items/2013/05.13.13 – SafeBuilt Contract Extension 



   

AMENDMENT  
TO  

Professional Services Agreement for Building Inspection Services 
 

This Amendment (“Amendment”) is entered into as of July 1, 2013 (“Effective Date”), and 
modifies the Professional Services Agreement for Build ing Inspection Services first effective July 1, 2010 
(the “Agreement”), by and betw een the City of Troy at 500 W. Big Beaver Road, Troy, MI 48084 (“City”), 
and Safe Built of Michigan with offices at 200 E. Big Beaver Road Troy, MI 48084 (“Contractor”).  City and 
Contractor are collectively referred to herein as the “Parties”. 

Capitalized terms appearing but not defined in this Amendment have the meanings assigned to 
them in the Agreement.  In consideration of the mutual promises contained herein and in the Agreement, 
and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby 
acknowledged, the Parties agree to amend the Agreement as follows: 

 

Section 6.0 titled LEASING OF CITY PROPERTY – OFFICE SPACE, paragraph 6.1 Office Space is 
hereby deleted and replaced with the following: 

 6.1 Office Space.  Specifications require Safe Built to have an office onsite in City Hall.  As 
provided in this section 6.1, the City in its sole discretion may require Safe Built to perform the 
services of this Agreement at a different location within a City owned building or allow Safe Built to 
move its offices to non-city owned property within t he City of Troy.  At the effective date of this 
Agreement, Safe Built shall be allowed the use City owned property located on the second floor of the 
City Hall Building, 500 W. Big Beaver Road, Tr oy, Michigan 48084 consisting of 1551 square feet of 
space as shown on the attached Exhibit G for a rental payment per s quare foot equal to the annual 
prevailing rate as calculated by the City each fi scal year. For fiscal year 2013/2014 the rental rate 
shall be $16.75 per square foot.  .  Once the am ount of square footage of the rental space is 
determined, the annual rental rate shall be deter mined. The annual rental rate shall be paid on a 
monthly basis in an amount which shall constitute the annual rental rate divided by 12.  Lease 
payments shall be received by the City by the first (1 st) day of each month that  the Agreement is in 
effect.  This space is to be used only for the performances of service as set out in this Agreement and 
only by individuals performing those services. This pr ovision for lease of the premises runs with the 
Agreement and shall become null and void at the expi ration or termination of the Agreement. During 
the period of time when this Agreement is in effe ct, the Parties may renegotiate the amount of rental 
space needed.  The City in its sole discretion may require Safe Built to move to a new location within 
or outside of City Hall. Safe Built shall be given a mi nimum of thirty (30) days notice of the intent of 
the City to require the move to a new location. Du ring that thirty (30) day period, the Parties may 
renegotiate this leasing provision regarding City owned property or Safe Built may notify the City of its 
intent to move to a location on non-City owned property; however, that property shall be located 
within the City of Troy.   At the expiration or termination of this Agreement Safe Built shall remove its 
property and personnel from the leased space and vacate  the premises within thirty (30) days of 
expiration or notice of termination. 
 
Section 8.0 titled RENTAL OF EQUIPMENT – COMPUTERS, COPIERS AND MISCELLANEOUS, 
paragraph 8.2  Rental Payment is hereby deleted and replaced with the following: 

 
  8.2     Rental Payment . Annual rental payment for the equipment listed on Exhibit J shall be 

equal to the annual prevailing rate(s) as calculated by the City’s Information Technology Department 
each fiscal year.   The use of two (2) printers is included in the computer rental fee.  Those payments 
shall be pro-rated during the first month of t he Agreement, if necessary, and thereafter shall be 
payable in quarterly installments for each year the Agr eement is in effect.  In addition to the fee for 
inventory and equipment rental, Safe Built shall reim burse the following fees for connectivity to the 
City’s network for each qualifying computer: 1.   annual Netmotion maintenance fee due on July 1 st of 
each year and  

 2. monthly wireless access fees due as part of the quarterly installment. Safe Built shall also 
reimburse the monthly Building Department/Inspec tion phone line charges as part of the quarterly 



   

installment. The fees under this section shall be made payable to the City of Troy and delivered to the 
City Treasurer, 500 W. Big Beaver Road, Troy, Michigan 48084.  
 
Section 11.0 titled TERM AND TERMINATION, paragraph 11.1 Term is hereby deleted and replaced 
with the following: 

 11.1  Term.  This Agreement shall be effective on the 1 st day of July 2013 at 12:01 
a.m., (the "Effective Date") and shall terminate at 11:59 p.m. on the 30th day of 
June, 2018.  At the end of the five (5) year period, and upon mutual agreement of 
the parties as approved by City Council, this Agreement may be renewed for an 
additional five (5) years. This Agreement may also be terminated as provided in 
paragraph 11.3.  

  
 EXHIBIT C – SAFE BUILT SCOPE OF SERVICES under Other Services is hereby modified 

to include the following: 
 

 Collect sewer benefit fees, water use adjustments and fees for trees. 
 

EXHIBIT C – SAFE BUILT SCOPE OF SERVICES  under Customer Service  is hereby 
modified to include the following: 
 

 Building Official must be available by phone or other means 24/7. 
 

 EXHIBIT E – SAFE BUILT HOURLY RATE FEE SCHEDULE is hereby modified to include 
the following services: 

 
   Fire Protection System Inspection                            $ 85.00 
    
   Fire Protection System Plan Review   $ 85.00 

 
EXHIBIT J – INVENTORY AND EQUIPMENT is hereby modified as follows: 

 
 

Computers: 
 
5  Dell workstations 
4  Dell laptops each with Netmotion software and a wireless device 
 
Printers: 
 
1 HP Laserjet 4050 
2 HP Laserjet 4250 

  
This equipment may change as it is replaced during the term of the contract.   
If the computer count increases / decreases, so will the annual fee proportionately. 

  
 

 
Except as otherwise provided or modified herei n, the terms and conditions of the Professional 

Services Agreement including Exhibits remain in full force and effect.  Except as otherwise expressly set 
forth herein, this Amendment and the Professional Services Agreement constitute the entire and 
exclusive agreement between the Pa rties regarding the subject matter hereof, and supersede all prior 
agreements, oral or written, and a ll other communications between them relating to the subject matter 
herein. 





















































































CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Final June 7, 2010 
 

- 3 - 

MOTION CARRIED  
 
G. POSTPONED ITEMS: 
G-2 Building Department Services 
 
Pending Resolution  
Moved by Kerwin  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the H-4 Building Department Services – 
Safe Built Michigan, Inc. Contract PENDING the crafting of language by the City Attorney and 
signed by Safe Built Michigan, Inc. representatives regarding the 80/20 prorated inspections 
provision; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, T hat Troy City Council hereby AWARDS the attached three-year 
contract to provide Building D epartment Services to the best value proposal submitted by Safe 
Built Michigan, Inc. of Clarkston, MI, as a result of a best value process, which the Troy City 
Council determines to be in the public interest, to expire June 30, 2013, with an option to renew 
for two (2) additional years provided Safe Built Mich igan, Inc. has met all the contract terms and 
conditions in accordance with the Professional Service Agreement dated May 17, 2010, a copy of 
which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED , That the award is CONTINGENT upon the contractor’s 
submission of proper proposal, contract documents and all other specified requirements; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to 
execute the documents on behalf of the City of Troy.  
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend Pending Resolu tion for Building Department Services by  
Substitution 
 
Resolution #2010-06-121 
Moved by Kerwin  
Seconded by Slater  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS Pending Resolution for Building 
Department Services by STRIKING it in its entirety and SUBSTITUTING it with the following: 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a three-year 
contract to provide complete Building Department Services submitted by 
Safe Built Michigan, Inc. of Clarkston, MI, as a result of a best value 
process, and which the Troy City Council determines to be in the public 
interest, to expire June 30, 2013, with an option to renew for two (2) 
additional years, provided Safe Built Michigan, Inc. has met all the 
contract terms and conditions in accordance with the Professional Service 
Agreement dated June 7, 2010, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to 
the original Minutes of this meeting; and  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Final June 7, 2010 
 

- 4 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the 
submission of proper proposal, contract documents and all other specified 
requirements; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby 
AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the documents on 
behalf of the City of Troy.  

 
Yes: Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling, Fleming  
No: Howrylak  
Absent:  Beltramini  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution for Building Department Services as Amended by Substitution 
 
Resolution #2010-06-122 
Moved by Kerwin  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a three-year contract to provide complete 
Building Department Services submitted by Safe Built  Michigan, Inc. of Clarkston, MI, as a result 
of a best value process, and whic h the Troy City Council determines to be in the public interest, 
to expire June 30, 2013, with an option to renew fo r two (2) additional years,  provided Safe Built 
Michigan, Inc. has met all the contract terms and conditions in accordance with the Professional 
Service Agreement dated June 7, 2010, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the submission of proper 
proposal, contract documents and all other specified requirements; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City 
Clerk to execute the documents on behalf of the City of Troy.  
 
Yes: McGinnis, Slater, Schilling, Fleming, Kerwin  
No: Howrylak  
Absent: Beltramini  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
The meeting RECESSED at 8:54 PM. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 9:08 PM. 
 
G-1 Standard Purchasing Resolution 8 – Best Value Award: Golf Course Operations 
 
Resolution #2010-06-123 
Moved by Kerwin  
Seconded by Fleming  



Page 1 of 2

June 2, 2010  

TO:    The Honorable Mayor and City Council   

FROM:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
   Mark F. Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
   R. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director  
   Peggy Sears, Human Resources Director 

Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 

SUBJECT:  Building Department Services  

Background
Two months ago, Mark Stimac told the HR director and City management staff that he could not compete with 
the Safe Built proposal.  He was right; he cannot compete at any level, and his current model is not supported 
by employee concessions.  Therefore, his proposal lacks validity.  

On May 17, 2010, City Council authorized City management to work with the Building department to submit 
their last best offer.  (Resolution #2010-05-108)  The memo dated May 24, 2010, from Mark Stimac presents 
the Building department’s staff proposal. (see Attachment A)  It proposes to eliminate two positions - Inspection 
Supervisor and one (1) Account Clerk I to layoffs.  The eight (8) remaining staff would be reduced to 65% of 
their current pay levels, then share 75% of revenue, once permit fees exceed $865,000.00 in any fiscal year. 
(see Attachment B for cost comparisons) 

The building department costs remain fixed verses the variable model proposed by Safe Built, who will be paid 
80% of the permit fees up to $1million.  Once achieved, compensation will be reduced to 75% at the beginning 
of the next fiscal year and continue at that level until the Agreement terminates.  Safe Built has also agreed to 
be paid for work in process at a not-to-exceed amount of $120,000.00 for permits issued and not completed, 
which currently exceed $1million in value. This includes the Beaumont Hospital project in which revenue was 
previously recognized and expenditures would be subsidized from the general fund, if services were performed 
in-house. If a permit is pulled exceeding $10,000.00 between now and July 1st, 2010, fees to Safe Built would 
be negotiated.   

The Stimac proposal does not address service levels or turnaround times, unlike Safe Built who is being held 
to a higher standard.  Many of the current building department processes are inefficient, as delineated in the 
Zucker report from 2008.  Building department services should be based on demand. Technology should be in 
the forefront of change.  Safe Built intends to expand the use of BS&A for reporting purposes and equip 
inspectors with laptops for online permitting, scheduling, and infield inspection results.  In addition, Safe Built 
plans on operating under the current permit fee structure, while the building department would be requesting a 
modification of those fees. 

Simply stated, historically, the basic function of local government was to deliver services to the community.  
That is still being done today.  Yet, government needs to re-invent itself by doing more with less.  Through 
structured analysis and isolating sectors where outside resources reduce general fund subsidies, as fiduciaries 
we have a duty to act responsibly and in the City’s best interest. 

CCIITTYY CCOOUUNNCCIILL AACCTTIIOONN RREEPPOORRTT



Page 2 of 2

June 2, 2010 

To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
Re: Building Department Services 

The decision to determine if the services of the building department should be provided in-house by public 
employees or contracted-out for delivery by Safe Built is complete.  A best value process allows us to evaluate 
a turn-key operation, which is a conservative $200,000.00 cheaper than the in-house proposal. The “make 
verses buy” analysis has reviewed the cost of services, service quality and control, management issues, 
financial issues, the impact on stakeholders, as well as statutory and regulatory concerns.   

Financial Considerations
� Fees paid to Safe Built are based on permit and plan review.  This revenue based solution guarantees no 

general fund subsidy for the Building Inspection operations. 
� Additional reimbursements from Safe Built include lease of office space, cost for inspection phone line, 

vehicle leases and rental of equipment estimated at a total of $91,000 per year, with adjustments made 
each fiscal year as needed. Lease payments for office space include core service allocations, building 
maintenance activities and utilities.  The building department occupies 2,546 square feet of space; and 
unless reconfigured will be the same used by Safe Built at $16.75 per sqft.    

� Hourly rates would apply when a permit fee is not collected; such as for license inspections, posted home 
inspections, or any service not included in the scope of services outlined in Exhibit C of the Agreement.  
The rates include the pay rate, overhead, profit, travel and all other costs estimated at $40,500.00 annually. 

� For emergency situations additional costs may be incurred, however these costs will be negotiated with 
Safe Built Michigan, Inc.( i.e. force majeure events) 

� At no revenue level will the Staff expenditure proposal generate a more favorable return than Safe Built. 

Legal Considerations
� The award is contingent upon the firm’s submission of properly executed proposal, contract documents, 

insurance certificates and all other specified requirements.   
� Safe Built Michigan, Inc. will submit four (4) signed copies of the attached Agreement at the June 7th City 

Council meeting.      

Recommendation
� Now, having considered all the facts, City management has negotiated and recommends awarding a three 

(3) year contract for complete Building Department services with an option to renew for two (2) additional 
years to the best value proposal submitted by Safe Built Michigan, Inc. of Clarkston, MI, in accordance with 
the Agreement attached hereto. 

Contract reviewed and approved as to legality: 

_______________________________________  _________________________ 
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney    Date 

G:/Bid Award 10-11 New Format/Regular Business - Building Department Services 06.10v1.doc



PS10M.024-1 

DATE:  June 1, 2010 

TO:  Susan Leirstein, Purchasing Director 

FROM:  Peggy Sears, Human Resources Director 

CC:  John Lamerato, Assistant City Manager, Finance & Administration 
  Mark Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager, Economic Development Services 
  John Szerlag, City Manager 

SUBJECT: Building Inspection Operations 

An analysis of the recent Building Department proposal to compete with SAFEbuilt, Inc. has been completed 
and results in affirming the recommendation to contract with SAFEbuilt for building inspection services.  A 
description of the analysis follows. 

By way of background, when initially offered the opportunity to compete against the private contractor, Mr. 
Stimac advised that he could not run the department with less than the current staffing level.  He further 
advised that he could not compete with SAFEbuilt.  Subsequently, having no proposal from the department 
for comparison, city administration proceeded to analyze the SAFEbuilt proposal against the current cost of 
operations.  It was deemed to be in the City’s best interest, both from an economic and efficiency standpoint, 
to contract with SAFEbuilt to provide inspection services. 

On Monday, May 17, 2010, Mr. Stimac presented to City Council that he could provide a proposal that he 
believes will compete favorably against the SAFEbuilt proposal.  As a result of that discussion, City Council 
directed management to provide Mr. Stimac the opportunity to submit his proposal for consideration.  Mr. 
Stimac submitted a proposal (attachment A) on May 24, 2010.  A comparative analysis was made between 
the department proposal and the SAFEbuilt proposal using three different revenue assumption levels 
(attachment B).

Generally, the proposal calls for laying off two employees, reducing staff salaries by 35%, further reducing 
salaries if the bargaining unit does not agree to the reduction of its two union members’ salaries, profit 
sharing among employees once a threshold permit fee level was attained, and an opportunity to request an 
increase in permit fees.  In making the financial comparison, all overhead costs and revenues were included.  
The cost of the department proposal includes all operating expenses of a line item budget.  The cost of the 
SAFEbuilt proposal includes the reimbursements to the City for equipment rental ($2,785 per computer), 
vehicle rental (which includes gas, oil and maintenance) and rent ($16.75 per sq. ft). 

As demonstrated in the cost comparison using the stated revenue assumption levels, the SAFEbuilt proposal 
saves between $183,000 and $481,000 over the staff proposal.  Additionally, the cost of the department 
proposal increases to the extent current employees do not agree to the proposed salary reductions.  Finally, 
given the proposed 25% profit-sharing component of the department proposal, the department cannot 
compete at any revenue level. 

Human Resources Department 



PS10M.024-1 

In addition to the financial savings, the following are important management considerations: 

� Union concurrence is required before any salary reduction could be implemented for an employee 
who is represented by the Michigan Association of Police (MAP) union; therefore, the City cannot 
unilaterally reduce union employees’ wages even if those employees agree to do so; 

� To date, 55% of the employees have indicated that they do not accept the proposal submitted by Mr. 
Stimac.  This means that any cost savings proposed by the department proposal would be reduced 
correspondingly.  And, in the case of the union employees, any savings not realized by reducing their 
salaries would be captured by further reducing the salaries of the remaining employees; 

� The functionality of the department will suffer when the environment is such that some employees 
have significantly reduced wages and some have not; feelings of resentment and low morale are 
inevitable.  

Finally, it is important to note that, should the employees’ salaries be reduced by 35%, their resultant salaries 
would be much lower than what they could potentially earn if hired by SAFEbuilt.  These reduced wages, 
which do not recognize the 10+ years of highly skilled experience, would equate to an average of just 4% 
over the minimum pay rate that is paid by SAFEbuilt, Inc. for the same work.   

Based on the foregoing analysis, it is recommended to privatize the Building Department operations and 
contract with SAFEbuilt for those services. 

-2-



ATTACHMENT A 

DATE:  May 24, 2010 

TO:  Peggy Sears, Human Resource Director 

FROM: Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 

RE:  Building Department Staff Proposal for Building Department Services 

The following is an outline of the Building Department Staff proposal for building 
department services. 

1. Two positions within the Building Department would be eliminated.  This would 
be the Inspector Supervisor’s position and one of the Account Clerk I position. 

2. The base salaries of the remaining staff would be reduced to 65% of current (pre 
furlough) levels.  This will bring us down very close to the $748,500 budget 
amount when other departmental costs are added in. 

3. Once permit fee revenue exceeds $865,000 in any fiscal year, 75% of permit 
revenue will be paid to the Building Department staff on a pro-rated proportional 
share.  Fees reported from the previous month will be paid on the second pay 
period of the following month. 

4. If this arrangement is not acceptable to any bargaining unit involved, then the 
base wage percentages would be further reduced to meet the budget number 
and the additional permit revenue would be divided amongst the remaining non-
union members. 

5. Pay outs for any un-used vacation time in January of 2011 will be based upon ½ 
at the current (pre furlough) rate and ½ based upon the new base salary. 

6. Pay outs for any unused sick time in November of 2010 will be based upon 66 
2/3 (8/12) at the current (pre furlough) rate and 33 1/3 (4/12) at the new base 
salary.

7. After the potential pay outs for unused time noted above in items 5 & 6, future 
payouts for un-used sick or vacation time shall be based upon the new base 
salary, however, should any current member of the Building Department staff 
chose to retire under this agreement, their payouts of un-used sick time, vacation 
time, or compensatory time will be calculated at the current (pre furlough) rate. 

8. The Building Department will be permitted to submit a proposal for review by City 
Council for a modification of minimum permit fees associated with mechanical, 
electrical, plumbing, and sewer installation permits. 

Please let me know at your earliest convenience when you will be scheduling meeting 
with the Building Department staff to discuss this proposal. 



Account Number
2011 Department 

Request
2011 Pre Millage 

Proposal Staff Proposal

7702 $673,112.00 $642,953.96 $367,167.75
7705 $0.00 $0.00
7706 $0.00 $0.00
7707 $0.00 $0.00
7708 $0.00 $0.00
7709 $0.00 $0.00
7710 $0.00 $0.00
7711 $0.00 $0.00
7715 $51,723.00 $49,415.88 $27,812.85
7717 $7,479.00 $7,311.47 $3,975.40
7718 $42,201.00 $42,201.00 $22,690.85
7719 $150,731.00 $150,791.31 $123,087.00
7720 $80,114.00 $80,114.00 $43,629.95
7722 $180,417.00 $174,952.54 $98,092.20

$1,185,777.00 $1,147,740.16 $686,456.00

7728 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00
7730 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00
7735 $0.00 $0.00
7740.015 $1,880.00 $1,880.00 $1,880.00

$7,880.00 $7,880.00 $7,880.00

7802.070 $6,200.00 $6,200.00 $6,200.00
7802.180 $0.00 $0.00
7802.200 $0.00 $0.00
7814.040 $30,640.00 $30,640.00 $25,068.00
7816.010 $40,000.00 $40,000.00 $0.00
7850.015 $2,100.00 $2,100.00 $1,800.00
7850.020 $0.00 $0.00
7862 $3,900.00 $3,900.00 $0.00
7901 $0.00 $0.00 $650.00
7902 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00
7943 $37,050.00 $37,050.00 $29,640.00
7955.105 $7,000.00 $7,000.00 $7,000.00
7958 $1,100.00 $1,100.00 $1,100.00
7960.110 $8,000.00 $8,000.00 $8,000.00
7962 $200.00 $200.00 $200.00

$137,190.00 $137,190.00 $80,658.00

7978.010 $0.00 $0.00
7980.010 $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$1,330,847.00 $1,292,810.16 $774,994.00
$1,330,847.00 $1,292,810.16 $774,994.00
$1,330,847.00 $1,292,810.16 $774,994.00

($1,330,847.00) ($1,292,810.16) $774,994.00

$0.00 $0.00

$1,330,847.00 $1,292,810.16 $774,994.00

($1,330,847.00) ($1,292,810.16) ($774,994.00)

Description
2010 Adopted 

Budget
Fund 101 GENERAL FUND

Expenses

Department 371 Building Inspection

PERSONAL SERVICES

Personal Service $1,075,380.00
Holiday $0.00
Personal Business $0.00
S/A Supplement $0.00
Union Business $0.00
Funeral Leave $0.00
Injury Leave $0.00
Jury Duty $0.00
FICA $82,130.00
Workers Comp and 
U l t

$10,350.00
Sick  Pay Allowance $61,450.00
Hospital and Life Insurance $190,700.00
Vacation $100,550.00
Retirement $231,670.00

Total: PERSONAL SERVICES $1,752,230.00
SUPPLIES

Office Supplies $4,000.00
Postage $4,000.00
Photographic Supplies $0.00
Operating Supplies Computer 
S li

$28,300.00
Total: SUPPLIES $36,300.00
OTHER SERVICE CHARGES

Contractual Services General $0.00
Contractual Services Office 
E i t Mt

$4,200.00
Contractual Services Property 
M i t

$8,000.00
Computer Services Computer 
S I t l

$47,350.00
Consultant Services Consultant 
F

$60,500.00
Communications Mobile Phones $3,500.00
Communications Pagers $0.00
Vehicle Allowance $3,900.00
Printing $0.00
Books and Magazines $1,000.00
Vehicle Rental-Motor Pool $81,500.00
Miscellaneous Insurance Other $7,000.00
Membership & Dues $2,310.00
Education & Training General $11,500.00
Other $0.00

Total: OTHER SERVICE CHARGES $230,760.00
CAPITAL OUTLAY

General Equipment General $0.00
Office Equipment Office 
E i t d F it

$0.00
Total: CAPITAL OUTLAY $0.00

Division Total: Building Inspection $2,019,290.00
Department Total: Building Inspection $2,019,290.00

Expense Totals $2,019,290.00

Net Grand Totals: ($2,019,290.00)

Fund Total: GENERAL FUND ($2,019,290.00)

Revenue Grand Totals: $0.00

Expense Grand Totals: $2,019,290.00



W
ag

es
 -

 
7

7
0

2
Lo

n
ge

vi
ty

FI
C

A
 -

 
7

7
1

5
W

C
 -

 
7

7
1

7
Si

ck
 -

 
7

7
1

8
H

/L
 -

 
7

7
1

9
V

ac
 -

 
7

7
2

0
R

et
 -

 
7

7
2

2
To

ta
l

ST
IM

A
C

, M
A

R
K

 S
3

7
1

1
1

0
0

0
1

10
8,

36
1

3,
50

0
8,

55
7

1,
24

9
6,

97
5

20
,1

78
14

,5
31

28
,6

52
19

2,
00

3

G
R

U
SN

IC
K

, M
IT

C
H

EL
L 

E
3

7
1

2
3

0
0

0
1

90
,5

85
6,

93
0

57
1

5,
83

1
20

,0
34

10
,9

33
23

,1
91

15
8,

07
5

P
A

W
LO

W
SK

I,
 R

IC
H

A
R

D
 J

3
7

1
2

5
0

0
0

1
65

,7
20

3,
50

0
5,

29
5

88
7

4,
23

0
8,

57
2

8,
81

3
17

,7
35

11
4,

75
2

B
O

W
ER

S,
 G

A
R

Y
 L

3
7

1
2

5
0

0
0

2
65

,4
09

3,
50

0
5,

50
1

90
5

4,
21

0
4,

99
4

8,
77

1
26

,4
84

11
9,

77
4

G
A

LB
R

A
IT

H
, D

EN
N

IS
 W

3
7

1
2

5
0

0
0

8
62

,3
47

4,
77

0
82

1
4,

01
3

23
,2

29
6,

68
9

15
,9

62
11

7,
83

1

JO
H

N
SO

N
, G

ER
A

LD
 M

3
7

1
2

5
0

0
0

9
60

,2
94

4,
61

2
80

4
3,

88
1

20
,4

23
6,

46
8

15
,4

36
11

1,
91

8

P
A

ST
ER

N
A

K
, P

A
M

EL
A

 R
3

7
1

2
7

1
0

0
1

49
,6

10
3,

50
0

3,
98

7
45

7
3,

12
9

8,
43

4
6,

51
9

13
,3

56
87

,9
95

N
EW

M
A

N
, I

R
EN

E
3

7
1

3
7

5
0

0
4

41
,0

09
3,

13
7

42
2

2,
64

0
17

,2
23

4,
39

9
10

,0
95

78
,9

25

54
3,

33
5

14
,0

00
42

,7
89

6,
11

6
34

,9
09

12
3,

08
7

67
,1

23
15

0,
91

1
1,

18
5,

77
0

W
ag

es
 -

 
7

7
0

2
Lo

n
ge

vi
ty

FI
C

A
 -

 
7

7
1

5
W

C
 -

 
7

7
1

7
Si

ck
 -

 
7

7
1

8
H

/L
 -

 
7

7
1

9
V

ac
 -

 
7

7
2

0
R

et
 -

 
7

7
2

2
To

ta
l

ST
IM

A
C

, M
A

R
K

 S
3

7
1

1
1

0
0

0
1

70
43

4.
65

3,
50

0
55

62
.0

5
81

1.
85

45
33

.7
5

20
,1

78
94

45
.1

5
18

62
3.

8
13

30
89

.2
5

G
R

U
SN

IC
K

, M
IT

C
H

EL
L 

E
3

7
1

2
3

0
0

0
1

58
88

0.
25

0
45

04
.5

37
1.

15
37

90
.1

5
20

,0
34

71
06

.4
5

15
07

4.
2

10
97

60
.6

5
P

A
W

LO
W

SK
I,

 R
IC

H
A

R
D

 J
3

7
1

2
5

0
0

0
1

42
71

8
3,

50
0

34
41

.7
5

57
6.

55
27

49
.5

8,
57

2
57

28
.4

5
11

52
7.

8
78

81
4

B
O

W
ER

S,
 G

A
R

Y
 L

3
7

1
2

5
0

0
0

2
42

51
5.

85
3,

50
0

35
75

.6
5

58
8.

25
27

36
.5

4,
99

4
57

01
.1

5
17

21
4.

6
80

82
6

G
A

LB
R

A
IT

H
, D

EN
N

IS
 W

3
7

1
2

5
0

0
0

8
40

52
5.

55
0

31
00

.5
53

3.
65

26
08

.4
5

23
,2

29
43

47
.8

5
10

37
5.

3
84

72
0.

3
JO

H
N

SO
N

, G
ER

A
LD

 M
3

7
1

2
5

0
0

0
9

39
19

1.
1

0
29

97
.8

52
2.

6
25

22
.6

5
20

,4
23

42
04

.2
10

03
3.

4
79

89
4.

75
P

A
ST

ER
N

A
K

, P
A

M
EL

A
 R

3
7

1
2

7
1

0
0

1
32

24
6.

5
3,

50
0

25
91

.5
5

29
7.

05
20

33
.8

5
8,

43
4

42
37

.3
5

86
81

.4
62

02
1.

7
N

EW
M

A
N

, I
R

EN
E

3
7

1
3

7
5

0
0

4
26

65
5.

85
0

20
39

.0
5

27
4.

3
17

16
17

,2
23

28
59

.3
5

65
61

.7
5

57
32

9.
3

35
31

67
.7

5
14

00
0

27
81

2.
85

39
75

.4
22

69
0.

85
12

30
87

43
62

9.
95

98
09

2.
2

68
64

55
.9

5

B
u

ild
in

g 
In

sp
ec

to
r

B
u

ild
in

g 
In

sp
ec

to
r

Se
cr

et
ar

y 
II

A
cc

ou
n

t 
C

le
rk

 I

To
ta

l

To
ta

l

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t P

ro
po

sa
l

B
u

ild
in

g 
&

 Z
on

in
g 

D
ir

ec
to

r
P

la
n

 A
n

al
ys

t

B
u

ild
in

g 
In

sp
ec

to
r

B
u

ild
in

g 
In

sp
ec

to
r

B
u

ild
in

g 
In

sp
ec

to
r

B
u

ild
in

g 
In

sp
ec

to
r

B
u

ild
in

g 
In

sp
ec

to
r

Se
cr

et
ar

y 
II

A
cc

ou
n

t 
C

le
rk

 I

C
ity

 o
f T

ro
y

B
ud

ge
t P

os
iti

on
 E

xp
en

se
s 

B
y 

G
L 

A
cc

ou
nt

P
re

 F
ur

lo
ug

h 
W

ag
es

10
13

71
37

1 
- 

Bu
ild

in
g 

In
sp

ec
tio

n 
- 

Bu
ild

in
g 

In
sp

ec
tio

n
B

u
ild

in
g 

&
 Z

on
in

g 
D

ir
ec

to
r

P
la

n
 A

n
al

ys
t

B
u

ild
in

g 
In

sp
ec

to
r



Sa
fe
�B
ui
lt�
��C

ity
�o
f�T

ro
y�
Bu

ild
in
g�
In
sp
ec
tio

n�
D
ep

ar
tm

en
t�P

ro
po

sa
ls
�

A
TT
A
CH

M
EN

T�
B

Co
st
�C
om

pa
ri
so
n

$8
87
,0
00

$7
00
,0
00

$8
00
,0
00

$1
,0
00
,0
00

Re
ve
nu

e
Re

ve
nu

e
Re

ve
nu

e
Re

ve
nu

e
A
ss
um

pt
io
n

A
ss
um

pt
io
n

A
ss
um

pt
io
n

A
ss
um

pt
io
n

Sa
fe
�B
ui
lt�
Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
�P
ro
po

sa
l

74
8,
50

0
$�
���
���

60
0,
00
0

$�
���
���

68
0,
00
0

$�
���
���

84
0,
00
0

$�
���
���

St
af
f�E

xp
en

di
tu
re
�P
ro
po

sa
l

77
4,
99

4
$�
���
���

77
4,
99
4

$�
���
���

77
4,
99
4

$�
���
���

87
6,
24
4

$�
���
���

In
iti
al
�S
af
e�
Bu

ilt
�E
xp
en

di
tu
re
�S
av
in
gs

26
,4
94

$�
���
���
��

17
4,
99
4

$�
���
���

94
,9
94

$�
���
���
��

36
,2
44

$�
���
���
��

A
dd

'l�
Sa
fe
�B
ui
lt�
Re

im
bu

rs
em

en
ts
:

Re
nt
,�A

dm
in
.�F
ee
,

Co
m
pu

te
rs
,�V

eh
ic
le
�R
en

ta
l

91
,0
00

$�
���
���
��

91
,0
00

$�
���
���
��

91
,0
00

$�
���
���
��

91
,0
00

$�
���
���
��

20
%
�S
af
e�
Bu

ilt
�R
ev
en

ue
�(F
ee
)�C

ap
tu
re

17
7,
40
0

$�
���
���

14
0,
00
0

$�
���
���

16
0,
00
0

$�
���
���

20
0,
00
0

$�
���
���

Sa
fe
�B
ui
lt�
�S
av
in
gs

29
4,
89

4
$�
���
���

40
5,
99
4

$�
���
���

34
5,
99
4

$�
���
���

32
7,
24
4

$�
���
���

Ex
ce
ss
�o
f�R

ev
en

ue
�O
ve
r�
(U
nd

er
)

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
s�
��S
ta
ff
�P
ro
po

sa
l

11
2,
00

6
$�
���
���

(7
4,
99
4)

$�
���
���
�

25
,0
06

$�
���
���
��

12
3,
75
6

$�
���
���

N
et
�S
af
e�
Bu

ilt
�S
av
in
gs

18
2,
88
8

$�
���
���

48
0,
98
8

$�
���
���

32
0,
98
8

$�
���
���

20
3,
48
8

$�
���
���

A
ss
um

pt
io
ns
:�

���
�$
88
7,
00
0�
In
iti
al
�r
ev
en

ue
�fo

re
ca
st
�w
as
�b
as
ed

�o
n�
20
10
�1
1�
pe

rm
it�
re
ve
nu

e�
es
tim

at
es

���
�S
ta
ff
�p
ro
po

sa
l�i
nc
lu
de

s�
a�
35

%
�w
ag
e�
re
du

ct
io
n�
an
d�
ca
pt
ur
in
g�
75

%
�o
f�p

er
m
it�
re
ve
nu

e�
ov
er
�$
86

5,
00

0
���
�S
af
e�
Bu

ilt
�e
xp
en

di
tu
re
�p
ro
po

sa
l�i
nc
lu
de

s�
ap
pr
ox
.�$
40

,0
00

�fo
r�
no

n�
pe

rm
it�
re
la
te
d�
w
or
k

O
bs
er
va
tio

n:
�A
t�n

o�
re
ve
nu

e�
le
ve
l�w

ill
�th

e�
St
af
f�e

xp
en

di
tu
re
�p
ro
po

sa
l�g
en

er
at
e�
a�
m
or
e�
fa
vo
ra
bl
e�
re
tu
rn
�th

an
�S
af
e�
Bu

ilt

Pr
ep

ar
ed

�B
y�
Jo
hn

�M
.�L
am

er
at
o,
�A
ss
is
ta
nt
�C
ity

�M
an
ag
er
�F
in
an
ce
�a
nd

�A
dm

in
.







$686,456.00

$774,994.00

$887,000.00

$748,500.00

$748,500.00

$887,000.00

894.00

$182,888.00�

$2
00

00
0
00

$3
00
,0
00
.0
0

$4
00
,0
00
.0
0

$5
00
,0
00
.0
0

$6
00
,0
00
.0
0

$7
00
,0
00
.0
0

$8
00
,0
00
.0
0

$9
00
,0
00
.0
0

$1
,0
00

,0
00

.0
0

Em
pl
oy
ee
�P
ro
po

sa
l�v
s�
Sa
fe
Bu

ilt
�P
ro
po

sa
l�

Re
ve
nu

e�
A
ss
um

pt
io
n�
�$

88
7,
00

0

20
10

�/
�2
01

1�
St
af
f�P

ro
po

sa
l

20
10

�/
�2
01

1�
Sa
fe
Bu

ilt
�P
ro
po

sa
l

$7,880.00

$6,200.00

$25,068.00

$1,800.00

$650.00

$1,000.00

$29,640.00

$7,000.00

$1,100.00

$8,000.00

$200.00

$112,006.00

$177,400.00

$91,000.00

$26,494.00

$294,8

$

$0
.0
0

$1
00
,0
00
.0
0

$2
00
,0
00
.0
0

Personal�Services�

Supplies�

Contractual�Services�General

Computer�Serv�Internal

Communications�Mobile�Phones

Printing

Books�and�Magazines

Vehicle�Rental�Motor�Pool

Miscellaneous�Insurance�Other

Membership�&�Dues

Education�&�Training�General

Other

Total�Expenditures�

Revenue

Revenue�Captured�

Reimb��Rent,�Computers,�Vehicle

Expenditure�Savings��SafeBuilt�vs�Staff

Excess�of�Revenue�Over�Expenditures

SafeBuilt�Savings

NET�SAFEBUILT�SAVINGS



$686,456.00

$774,994.00

$700,000.00

$600,000.00

$600,000.00

$700,000.00

$405,994.00

$480,988.00�

$2
00

00
0
00

$3
00
,0
00
.0
0

$4
00
,0
00
.0
0

$5
00
,0
00
.0
0

$6
00
,0
00
.0
0

$7
00
,0
00
.0
0

$8
00
,0
00
.0
0

$9
00
,0
00
.0
0

Em
pl
oy
ee
�P
ro
po

sa
l�v
s�
Sa
fe
Bu

ilt
�P
ro
po

sa
l�

Re
ve
nu

e�
A
ss
um

pt
io
n�
�$

70
0,
00

0
20

10
�/
�2
01

1�
St
af
f�P

ro
po

sa
l

20
10

�/
�2
01

1�
Sa
fe
Bu

ilt
�P
ro
po

sa
l

$7,880.00

$6,200.00

$25,068.00

$1,800.00

$650.00

$1,000.00

$29,640.00

$7,000.00

$1,100.00

$8,000.00

$200.00

($74,994.00)

$140,000.00

$91,000.00

$174,994.00

($
20
0,
00
0.
00
)

($
10
0,
00
0.
00
)

$0
.0
0

$1
00
,0
00
.0
0

$2
00
,0
00
.0
0



$686,456.00

$774,994.00

$800,000.00

$680,000.00

$680,000.00

$800,000.00

$345,994.00

$320,988.00�

$2
00
,0
00
.0
0

$3
00
,0
00
.0
0

$4
00
,0
00
.0
0

$5
00
,0
00
.0
0

$6
00
,0
00
.0
0

$7
00
,0
00
.0
0

$8
00
,0
00
.0
0

$9
00
,0
00
.0
0

Em
pl
oy
ee
�P
ro
po

sa
l�v
s�
Sa
fe
Bu

ilt
�P
ro
po

sa
l�

Re
ve
nu

e�
A
ss
um

pt
io
n�
�$

80
0,
00

0

20
10

�/
�2
01

1�
St
af
f�P

ro
po

sa
l

20
10

�/
�2
01

1�
Sa
fe
Bu

ilt
�P
ro
po

sa
l

$7,880.00

$6,200.00

$25,068.00

$1,800.00

$650.00

$1,000.00

$29,640.00

$7,000.00

$1,100.00

$8,000.00

$200.00

$25,006.00

$160,000.00

$91,000.00

$94,994.00

$0
.0
0

$1
00
,0
00
.0
0



$686,456.00

$876,244.00

$1,000,000.00

$840,000.00

$840,000.00

$1,000,000.00

4.00

203,488.00�

$4
00
,0
00
.0
0

$6
00
,0
00
.0
0

$8
00
,0
00
.0
0

$1
,0
00

,0
00

.0
0

$1
,2
00

,0
00

.0
0

Em
pl
oy
ee
�P
ro
po

sa
l�v
s�
Sa
fe
Bu

ilt
�P
ro
po

sa
l�

Re
ve
nu

e�
A
ss
um

pt
io
n�
�$

1,
00

0,
00

0

20
10

�/
�2
01

1�
St
af
f�P

ro
po

sa
l

20
10

�/
�2
01

1�
Sa
fe
Bu

ilt
�P
ro
po

sa
l

$7,880.00

$6,200.00

$25,068.00

$1,800.00

$650.00

$1,000.00

$29,640.00

$7,000.00

$1,100.00

$8,000.00

$101,450.00

$123,756.00

$200,000.00

$91,000.00

$36,244.00

$327,244

$

$0
.0
0

$2
00
,0
00
.0
0





CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Final May 17, 2010 
 

- 2 - 

G. POSTPONED ITEMS: 
G-1 No Postponed Items 

H. REGULAR BUSINESS: 

H-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: None Scheduled 

H-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees: None Scheduled 
 
H-3 Alcohol Sales at the Troy Community Center 
 
Resolution #2010-05-107 
Moved by Kerwin  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council DIRECTS City Administration to explore the 
requirements for the serving of  alcohol at the Community Center, and to formulate the 
procedures for alcohol service at the Community Center. 
 
Yes: Schilling, Beltramini, Fleming, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater  
No: Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
The meeting RECESSED at 9:46 PM. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED 9:57 at PM. 
 
H-4 Building Department Services – Safe Built Michigan, Inc. Contract 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Kerwin  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the H-4 Building Department Services 
– Safe Built Michigan, Inc. Contract PENDING the crafting of language by the City Attorney and 
signed by Safe Built Michigan, Inc. representat ives regarding the 80/ 20 prorated inspections 
provision; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, T hat Troy City Council hereby AWARDS the attached three-
year contract to provide Build ing Department Services to the best value proposal submitted by 
Safe Built Michigan, Inc. of Clar kston, MI, as a result of a best  value process, which the Troy 
City Council determines to be in the public interes t, to expire June 30, 2013, with an option to 
renew for two (2) additional years provided Safe Bu ilt Michigan, Inc. has met all the contract 
terms and conditions in accordance with the Pr ofessional Service Agreement dated May 17, 
2010, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Final May 17, 2010 
 

- 3 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the contractor’s 
submission of proper proposal, contract documents and all other specified requirements; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to 
execute the documents on behalf of the City of Troy.  
 
Vote on Resolution to Postpone Agenda Item H-4 Building Department Services – Safe 
Built Michigan, Inc. Contract 
 
Resolution #2010-05-108 
Moved by Howrylak 
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy  City Council hereby POSTPONES agenda item H-4 Building 
Department Services – Safe Built Michigan, Inc. Contract until the Monday, June 7, 2010 
Regular City Council meeting to allow City M anagement to work with the Building Department 
so that they have the opportunity to submit their last best offer. 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Fleming, Howrylak, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling  
No: Kerwin  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
H-5 Standard Purchasing Resolution 11: Re jection of Proposals – Code Enforcement 

Services 
 
Resolution #2010-05-109 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by McGinnis  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby REJECTS all proposals for SOQ/RFP-COT 10-03, 
Code Enforcement Services opened February 17, 2010 and March 18, 2010, respectively, and 
will retain these services in-house through the Planning Department. 
 
Yes: Fleming, Howrylak, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling, Beltramini  
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
H-6 Resolution to Postpone Standard Purc hasing Resolution 8 – Best Value Aw ard: 

Golf Course Operations 
 
Resolution #2010-05-110 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Howrylak  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy  City Council hereby POSTPONES agenda item H-6 Standard 
Purchasing Resolution 8 – Best Value Award: Golf Course Operations until the Regular City 
Council meeting scheduled for Monday, June 7, 2010.  



Page 1 of 2 
 

 
May 14, 2010  
 
TO:    The Honorable Mayor and City Council   
 
FROM:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
   Mark F. Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
   R. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director  
   Peggy Sears, Human Resources Director 

Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Building Department Services  
   
Background 
� As a result of City Council action on April 5, 2010, resolution 2010-04-079-H-9, City Management has 

negotiated a three year contract with an option to renew for two (2) additional years with Safe Built 
Michigan, Inc. to provide City of Troy building department services.   

� In reviewing the contract the City considered three options in regards to the position of Building Code 
Official.  These options are listed below:     

1. The City could allow Safe Built Michigan to provide a complete turn-key operation utilizing a 
Safe Built Michigan employee as the City’s Building Code Official thus challenging the A.G.O. 
position that the Building Code Official must be an employee of the municipality. 

2. The City could hire Safe Built Michigan’s Building Code Official for one dollar thus making the 
Building Code Official a City of Troy employee.  

3. The City could appoint two Building Inspection Department employees to the Housing and 
Zoning Inspector positions in the Planning Department.  Then appoint one of these Housing 
and Zoning Inspectors as the City’s new Building Code Official.    Further, the duties of the 
Housing and Zoning Inspector position could expand to include providing assistance during 
Safe Built’s transition in assuming building inspection operations; provide historical and social 
connections to the building and development community; assist monitoring Safe Built’s 
performance and assist community planning functions to potentially reduce planning 
consultant costs.  

� Of the three options considered, City Management agreed option #3 was the best course of action.  As a 
result, two existing Building Inspection Department Employees will be transferred to the Planning 
Department and assume the Housing and Zoning Inspector positions.  One of the new Housing and Zoning 
Inspectors will be designated the City’s new Building Code Official.  

� Zucker Systems from San Diego, California prepared the Development Approval/Permit Process Report in 
2008 and Mr. Paul Zucker presented City Council 102 recommendations to improve the City of Troy’s 
development approval process. The reorganization of the Planning Department and Building Inspections 
Department were identified by the report.  There was direction to coordinate the zoning ordinance 
interpretation and administration within the Planning Department, including management of the Board of 
Zoning Appeals.   

� In an effort to continue restructuring and implementation of the Zucker Report, the Inspector Supervisor 
(Housing and Zoning Inspection) was transferred to the Planning Department.  This Housing and Zoning 
Inspector Supervisor is responsible for supervision of the code enforcement functions, sign permit 
administration and professional assistance to the Board of Zoning Appeals.  To complete the restructuring, 
the Housing and Zoning Inspectors were also transferred to the Planning Department. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 



Page 2 of 2 
 

May 14, 2010  
 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
Re: Building Department Services 
 
Background - continued 
 
� Based upon the statement of qualifications, proposal pricing and contract negotiations City Management 

recommends approval of the contract to Safe Built providing the best value for the City.   
 
Financial Considerations 
� Fees paid to Safe Built are based on permit and plan review fees.  This revenue based solution guarantees 

no general fund subsidy for the Building Inspection operations.   
� For emergency situations additional costs may be incurred, however these costs will be negotiated with 

Safe Built Michigan, Inc.    
� As part of the privatization process, the Building Department was given a chance to compete for the work 

against Safe Built’s proposal.  Based on the 2010 / 2011 budget figures, including personnel services and 
overhead costs, the City’s Building Department proposal of $1,173,007.00 was unable to match the costs 
proposed by Safe Built Michigan for a turnkey operation at an estimated annual cost of $748,500.00.  

� By privatizing Building Department services, the estimated savings for the first year of operation will be 
$424,507.00 or at least 36%. 

 
Legal Considerations 
� The award is contingent upon the firm’s submission of properly executed proposal, contract documents, 

insurance certificates and all other specified requirements.   
� Safe Built Michigan, Inc. will submit four (4) signed copies of the attached Agreement at the May 17th City 

Council meeting.      
 

Recommendation 
� City Management has negotiated and now recommends awarding a three (3) year contract for complete 

Building Department services with an option to renew for two (2) additional years to the best value proposal 
submitted by Safe Built Michigan, Inc. of Clarkston, MI, in accordance with the Agreement attached hereto. 

 
Reviewed and approved as to legality: 
 
_______________________________________  _________________________ 
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney    Date 

 
 
 
Reviewed Scope of Work: 

 
_______________________________________  _________________________ 
Gary Shripka, Consultant     Date 

 
 

G:/Bid Award 10-11 New Format/Regular Business - Building Department Services 05.10.doc 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
April 19, 2013 
 
TO:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Mark Miller, Director of Economic & Community Development 
   Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item – Acceptance of Alliance of Rouge Communities (ARC) 

Membership and Adoption of Bylaws 
 
History: 
 
The Alliance of Rouge Communities (ARC), a 501(c)(3) organization, is a voluntary public watershed 
entity comprised of 35 municipal governments,  three counties (Wayne, Oakland and Washtenaw), 
Henry Ford Community College, University of Michigan-Dearborn and five cooperating partners (i.e. 
other organizations).  Troy has been an ARC member since 2006 when the ARC was officially 
formed.  
 
The purpose of the ARC is to provide an institutional mechanism to encourage watershed-wide 
cooperation and mutual support to meet state water quality permit requirements and to restore 
beneficial uses of the Rouge River to area residents.  Among the many benefits of the ARC, it has 
helped Troy reduce the cost of storm water permit compliance through the development of templates 
for required reports, and support of joint activities including the development and distribution of 
informational and educational materials. 
 
Last November the ARC approved revisions to the ARC bylaws as proposed by the ARC 
Organization Committee.  Revisions were needed for the bylaws to be consistent with current ARC 
policies and to reflect items that are necessary for the now mature ARC organization.  A two page 
summary of the bylaw revisions and the bylaw document itself is attached.   
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
Annual membership dues is approximately $4,500 and paid each year in August.   
 
Recommendation: 
 
Staff recommends acceptance of the Alliance of Rouge Communities membership and adoption of  
the revised ARC bylaws.  It is further recommended that City Council appoint Steven Vandette, City 
Engineer, as Troy’s designated representative to the ARC; Laura Gruzwalski, Staff Environmental 
Analyst, Hubbell, Roth and Clark, Consulting Engineers as the alternate representative; and authorize 
Mark Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development, to designate additional persons to 
represent the City of Troy, if needed,  to assure voting representation on the ARC. 
 
 
G:\Environmental Issues\ARC\Final Bylaws\To CC re ARC_RevisedBylaws.docx   

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 
 

stewartc
Text Box
J-05











































 

 
 
May 8, 2013 
 
 
TO:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
 
FROM: Tom Darling, Director of Financial Services 
  Lisa Burnham, Accounting Manager 
  Sandra Kasperek, City Treasurer 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item – Assessment of Delinquent Accounts 
 
 
Background: 
 
The code of ordinances provides for transfer of delinquent accounts to the city tax roll. 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
The delinquent accounts from the various funds to be assessed to the 2013 tax roll are 
as follows: 
 
 General Fund Invoices  $104,907.61 
 Penalties        10,490.77  
          $115,398.38  
 
 Special Assessments  $   2,487.99 
 Penalties & Interest          737.36 
                 3225.35 
 Water & Sewer Accounts $773,917.56 
 Penalties                 77,392.25 
            851,309.81 
 
Total to be assessed                $969,933.54 
 
 
Options: 
 
Staff recommends that City Council approve the assessment of delinquent accounts. 
 
 
Prepared by: Lisa Burnham, Accounting Manager 

          AAggeennddaa  IItteemm    
 

stewartc
Text Box
J-06



stewartc
Text Box
J-07















































stewartc
Text Box
J-08



















stewartc
Text Box
J-09































































































































stewartc
Text Box
J-10













































































































stewartc
Text Box
O-01a







stewartc
Text Box
O-01b





stewartc
Text Box
O-01c





stewartc
Text Box
O-01d





ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS MEETING   FINAL JANUARY 15, 2013 

1 

On January 15, 2013, at 7:30 p.m., in the Council Chambers of Troy City Hall, Chair Kneale 
called the Zoning Board of Appeals meeting to order. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Michael Bartnik 
Glenn Clark 
Kenneth Courtney 
William Fisher 
Allen Kneale 
David Lambert 
 
Absent: 
Thomas Strat 
 
Also Present: 
Bruce Bloomingdale, Alternate 
Paul Evans, Zoning & Compliance Specialist 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
 
Mr. Bloomingdale is seated.   
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – November 20, 2012 
 
RESOLVED, to approve the November 20, 2012 meeting minutes. 
 
Moved by Clark 
Seconded by Fisher 
 
Yes: All 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 

 
3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA – No changes 
 
 
4. HEARING OF CASES 
 

A. VARIANCE REQUEST, FLORAINE BISHAY, 3459 TALBOT – In order to construct 
an attached garage, a 4 foot variance to the required 25 foot front yard setback. 

stewartc
Text Box
O-01e





stewartc
Text Box
O-01f







PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – FINAL MARCH 26, 2013 
  
 
 

1 
 

Acting Chair Tom Krent called the Special/Study meeting of the Troy City Planning 
Commission to order at 7:05 p.m. on March 26, 2013 in the Council Board Room of the Troy 
City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Michael W. Hutson Donald Edmunds 
Edward Kempen Philip Sanzica 
Tom Krent Thomas Strat 
Gordon Schepke John J. Tagle 
Robert Schultz 
 
Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Ben Carlisle, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Eric Huang, Student Representative 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
Mr. Savidant advised petitioners they could request postponement of an item until a full 
Board is present. 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-03-022 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Hutson 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as prepared. 
 
Yes: All present (5) 
Absent: Edmunds, Sanzica, Strat, Tagle 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-03-023 
Moved by: Hutson 
Seconded by: Kempen 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the March 12, 2013 Regular meeting as 
published. 
 
Yes: All present (5) 
Absent: Edmunds, Sanzica, Strat, Tagle 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

stewartc
Text Box
O-01g



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – FINAL MARCH 26, 2013 
  
 
 

2 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

5. ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS (ZBA) REPORT 
 
No report; there was no Zoning Board of Appeals meeting this month. 

 
6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 

 
No report; there was no Downtown Development Authority meeting this month. 

 
7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 

 
Mr. Savidant reported on the following: 
 Potential residential developments in pipeline. 
 2008 Master Plan study item beginning in April. 

 
 

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 
8. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 981) – Proposed Troy Shoppes, 

South side of Big Beaver, West of Crooks (1475 W Big Beaver), Section 29, Currently 
Zoned BB (Big Beaver) District 
 
Mr. Carlisle gave a report on the Preliminary Site Plan application.  He addressed the 
petitioner’s request to set back the building further to accommodate the patio and 
retaining wall, and addressed additional site plan requirements.  He confirmed support 
of the proposed conceptual development, but stated the outstanding Zoning Ordinance 
requirements as outlined in his report, dated March 21, 2013, should be addressed prior 
to Preliminary Site Plan approval. 
 
Jordan Jonna of A. F. Jonna Development said the existing 3-story office building needs 
work to come up to code and back on the market.  He addressed the photometric plan, 
retaining wall, slope, outdoor patio, pedestrian sidewalks, materials and tenancy.  Mr. 
Jonna said he could get a revised site plan submission to staff in time for the April 
Regular meeting. 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-03-024 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Schepke 
 
RESOLVED, To postpone the item to the Regular meeting in April or until such time that 
the petitioner is prepared to submit a complete package for review. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – FINAL MARCH 26, 2013 
  
 
 

3 
 

Yes: All present (5) 
Absent: Edmunds, Sanzica, Strat, Tagle 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

The petitioner for Agenda item #9 was not present yet.  It was the consensus of the Board to 
move to Agenda item #10. 
 
 

SPECIAL USE REQUEST AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 
10. PUBLIC HEARING - SPECIAL USE AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File 

Number SU 403) – Proposed Fifth Third Bank ATM, Northeast Corner of John R and 14 
Mile Road, Oakland Plaza, Section 36, Currently Zoned CB (Community Business) 
District 
 
Mr. Carlisle recommended that the applicant address the outstanding issues as outlined 
in his report, dated March 18, 2013, prior to granting Preliminary Site Plan and Special 
Use approval.  He asked the Assistant City Attorney for advice on the scheduled Public 
Hearing. 
 
Ms. Lancaster suggested postponing the Public Hearing to a date certain so that no re-
notification is required.     
 
Gerald Weber, project architect, 13711 Madison Avenue, Lakewood, Ohio, was present 
to represent the petitioner. 
 
In order to allow staff time for review, it was determined to postpone the item to the April 
Planning Commission study meeting. 
 
Mr. Weber said the bank is concerned from a safety and security standpoint about 
dimming the lights at 11 pm to sunrise, per the Zoning Ordinance requirement.  He said 
the bank is a 24-hour operation.  Mr. Weber also addressed the foliage/vegetation on 
site near the ATM operation. 
 
Mr. Savidant said the Zoning Ordinance allows the Planning Commission to grant relief 
of the requirement to dim lights on a case-by-case basis. 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-03-025 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Hutson 
 
RESOLVED, To postpone the item to the April 23, 2013 Special/Study meeting, or until 
such time as the applicant has submitted the appropriate information to staff in time for 
review. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – FINAL MARCH 26, 2013 
  
 
 

4 
 

Yes: All present (5) 
Absent: Edmunds, Sanzica, Strat, Tagle 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
The Public Hearing is postponed to April 23, 2013. 

 
 

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 
9. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 982) – Proposed MNAD 

Property LLC, East side of Rochester Road, North of Big Beaver (3424 Rochester), 
Section 23, Currently Zoned CB (Community Business) District 
 
Mr. Carlisle gave a brief report on the Preliminary Site Plan application.  He addressed 
the variance received last year from the Zoning Board of Appeals and the pre-qualified 
Sustainable Design Project (SDP) status.  He recommended Preliminary Site Plan 
approval with the re-submission of a photometrics plan as part of Final Site Plan 
approval. 
 
Mr. Savidant addressed the makeup of the Sustainable Design Review Committee and 
their finding that the application meets all prerequisite and qualifying standards.  He 
reported the Committee granted Prequalified SDP status subject to annual inspections 
by the City to ensure that the green roof system continues to function as open space. 
 
The project architect, Magdi Samwel, briefly addressed the green roof. 
 
Mr. Schultz asked what action would be taken if the green roof becomes non-functional 
in the future. 
 
Mr. Savidant said it would be treated as a violation of the Zoning Ordinance, similar to a 
violation relating to landscaping or a dumpster. 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-03-026 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Schepke 
 
WHEREAS, The application received Prequalified Sustainable Development Project 
status from the Sustainable Development Review Committee on March 22, 2013. 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, pursuant to 
Article 8 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the proposed MNAD Property office 
building additions, located on the east side of Rochester Road, north of Big Beaver 
(3424 Rochester), Section 23, within the CB (Community Business) district, be granted, 
subject to the following: 
 
1. The applicant shall permit City staff to inspect the green roof on an annual basis 

during summer months to ensure it remains functional as a green roof. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – FINAL MARCH 26, 2013 
  
 
 

5 
 

2. The applicant shall submit revised photometrics that comply with Zoning 
Ordinance standards, prior to Final Site Plan Approval. 

 
Yes: All present (5) 
Absent: Edmunds, Sanzica, Strat, Tagle 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

SPECIAL USE REQUEST AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 

11. PUBLIC HEARING - SPECIAL USE AND PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File 
Number SU 404) – Proposed United Ventures II LLC, West of John R, North of Maple 
(1861 Birchwood), Section 26, Currently Zoned IB (Integrated Industrial and Business) 
District 
 
Mr. Carlisle informed the Board the applicant seeks to store vehicles on the property 
without constructing a building.  The applicant is going before the Zoning Board of 
Appeals on April 16, 2013 to seek a variance from the Zoning Ordinance requirement 
that a building must be constructed on the site.  Mr. Carlisle recommended that action on 
the Special Use and Site Plan application be postponed pending a determination on the 
variance request.  He asked the Assistant City Attorney how the Public Hearing should 
be handled. 
 
Ms. Lancaster suggested postponing the Public Hearing. 
 
Mr. Carlisle addressed the following outstanding site plan issues: 
 Employee and street parking. 
 Circulation with respect to trailers on site. 
 Requirement for 8 foot fence; plan shows 6 feet. 
 Construction of permanent building to facilitate office and employee facilities. 

 
Mr. Savidant said the issue in this matter is whether the variance being sought is a use 
or non-use variance. 
 
Nathan Robinson of Horizon Engineering was present to represent the petitioner.  Mr. 
Robinson said the applicant is amicable to working with the City on all outstanding site 
plan concerns.  He said there would be ample parking because out-of-state employees, 
housed in Troy, would be transported to/from the site in a van.  Mr. Robinson said the 
30-35 foot trailers would not be disconnected, nor create a circulation problem because 
the site is 65 feet wide.  Mr. Robinson said company headquarters based in Washington 
Township would utilize cellular communications with its employees, thereby eliminating a 
need for a physical building on site.  He said the required 8 foot fence would screen 
portable restroom(s), should such be permitted by the City. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – FINAL MARCH 26, 2013 
  
 
 

6 
 

Mr. Robinson said the proposed plan would be an overall improvement to the existing 
site.  He said with Special Use approval granted back in 1982, the site currently houses 
approximately 20 vehicles with no appropriate screening. 
 
There was no action taken. 
 
The Public Hearing is postponed. 
 
 

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 
 

12. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (File Number ZOTA 245) 
– Sober Living Facilities 
 
Mr. Carlisle gave an update on the proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment, 
confirming recent revisions made at the suggestions of Board members and sober living 
facilities in the area. 
 
Mr. Savidant informed the Board that the proposed text was revised to correct any 
reference to “recovery center” to “sober living facility”. 
 
Mr. Carlisle said with approval tonight, the process going forward would be: 
 Announcement of Public Hearing at City Council, April 8. 
 City Council Public Hearing, April 15. 
 With City Council approval, text language would be in effect 10 days after adoption. 
 Applicant would proceed with Rezoning Request and Special Use Approval on 

potential site. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-03-027 
Moved by: Kempen 
Seconded by: Schepke 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City Council 
that Articles 2, 4, 6, and 13 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy, which includes 
provisions related to sober living facilities, be amended as printed on the proposed 
Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment.  
 
Yes: All present (5) 
Absent: Edmunds, Sanzica, Strat, Tagle 
 
MOTION CARRIED 





BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL APRIL 3, 2013 
 
 

1 
 

Chair Dziurman called the Regular meeting of the Building Code Board of Appeals to order at 
3:00 p.m. on April 3, 2013 in the Lower Level Conference Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Members Present: 
Theodore Dziurman, Chair 
Gary Abitheira 
Teresa Brooks 
Michael Carolan 
 
Members Absent: 
Brian Kischnick 
 
Support Staff Present: 
Mitch Grusnick, Building Official/Code Inspector 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Moved by: Carolan 
Support by: Abitheira 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the March 6, 2013 Regular meeting as submitted. 
 
Yeas: All present (4) 
Absent: Kischnick 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

3. HEARING OF CASES 
 
A. VARIANCE REQUEST, RANDY ORAM FOR INTERNATIONAL OUTDOOR INC., 500 

WEST LONG LAKE – A variance for relief of Chapter 85, Section 85.02.05 (c) (5) (e) 
to place a 70 foot tall, 1608 square foot ground sign. 
 
A request was received from the applicant to remove the item from the agenda and to 
hold off indefinitely until contact is made with the City. 
 
Moved by: Abitheira 
Support by: Brooks 
 
RESOLVED, To withdraw the item indefinitely or until such time that the applicant 
reapplies. 
 
Yeas: All present (4) 
Absent: Kischnick 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

stewartc
Text Box
O-01h





PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT APRIL 9, 2013 
  
 
 

1 
 

Chair Tagle called the Regular meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission to order at 
7:00 p.m. on April 9, 2013 in the Council Chamber of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Donald Edmunds 
Edward Kempen 
Tom Krent 
Philip Sanzica 
Gordon Schepke 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
 
Absent: 
Michael W. Hutson 
 
Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Richard K. Carlisle, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Ben Carlisle, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-04-028 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as published 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Hutson 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
Resolution # PC-2013-04-029 
Moved by: Krent 
Seconded by: Kempen 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the March 26, 2013 Special/Study meeting as 
published.  
 
Yes: Edmunds, Kempen, Krent, Sanzica, Schepke, Schultz, Strat 
Absent: Hutson 
Abstain: Tagle 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

stewartc
Text Box
O-01i



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT APRIL 9, 2013 
  
 
 

2 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
 

POSTPONED ITEM 
 
5. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 981) – Proposed Troy Shoppes, 

South side of Big Beaver, West of Crooks (1475 W Big Beaver), Section 29, Currently 
Zoned BB (Big Beaver) District 
 
Ben Carlisle summarized the application. 
 
Jordon Jonna, AF Jonna Development Corporation, addressed issues identified at the 
previous Planning Commission meeting at which this item was under consideration.  Mr. 
Jonna pointed out to the Planning Commission that he considered all comments made 
by the Planning Commission at the previous meeting and revised the site plan 
accordingly.   
 
Mr. Jonna presented building materials. 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-04-030 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Edmunds 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, pursuant to Article 8 of the Zoning 
Ordinance, as requested for the proposed Troy Shoppes, located on the south side of 
Big Beaver, west of Crooks (1475 W. Big Beaver), Section 29, within the BB (Big 
Beaver) district, be granted, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1) Provide cross access agreement as part of Final Site Plan submittal. 
2) Either widen the proposed stairwell linking the building to the Big Beaver sidewalk 

or add an additional stairwell. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Hutson 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

 
STUDY ITEM 

 
6. MASTER PLAN UPDATE 

 
Richard Carlisle initiated the discussion, including explaining the State requirement that 
communities must update their Master Plan every 5 years or make a finding that an 
update is not necessary.  The Master Plan was adopted in 2008. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT APRIL 9, 2013 
  
 
 

3 
 

Ben Carlisle summarized major items for consideration.  These included: 
 Maple Road 
 Big Beaver Corridor 
 Changing demographics 
 City owned property 

 
The Planning Commission was asked to identify areas of the Master Plan that needed to 
be revised.  General discussion followed. 
 
Some items mentioned by Planning Commission members included: 

 Have there been constraints to development and if so, what are those 
constraints? 

 Some larger properties need focus. 
 Demographic data update is critical. 
 Leisure time/recreation activities are important. 
 Rochester Road needs focus. 
 Importance of transit/trails. 
 Revisit Maple Road Corridor Study completed by students from LTU. 
 Provide more housing options 

 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 
7. PUBLIC COMMENTS – For Items on Current Agenda 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
 
8. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 

 
There were general Planning Commission comments. 

 
The Regular meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 8:20 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
       
John J. Tagle, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2013 PC Minutes\Draft\2013 04 09 Regular Meeting_Draft.doc 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL APRIL 9, 2013 
  
 
 

1 
 

Chair Tagle called the Regular meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission to order at 
7:00 p.m. on April 9, 2013 in the Council Chamber of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Donald Edmunds 
Edward Kempen 
Tom Krent 
Philip Sanzica 
Gordon Schepke 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
 
Absent: 
Michael W. Hutson 
 
Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Ben Carlisle, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Richard K. Carlisle, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-04-028 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as published 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Hutson 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
Resolution # PC-2013-04-029 
Moved by: Krent 
Seconded by: Kempen 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the March 26, 2013 Special/Study meeting as 
published.  
 
Yes: Edmunds, Kempen, Krent, Sanzica, Schepke, Schultz, Strat 
Absent: Hutson 
Abstain: Tagle 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

stewartc
Text Box
O-01j



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL APRIL 9, 2013 
  
 
 

2 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
 

POSTPONED ITEM 
 
5. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 981) – Proposed Troy Shoppes, 

South side of Big Beaver, West of Crooks (1475 W Big Beaver), Section 29, Currently 
Zoned BB (Big Beaver) District 
 
Ben Carlisle summarized the application. 
 
Jordon Jonna, AF Jonna Development Corporation, addressed issues identified at the 
previous Planning Commission meeting at which this item was under consideration.  Mr. 
Jonna pointed out to the Planning Commission that he considered all comments made 
by the Planning Commission at the previous meeting and revised the site plan 
accordingly.   
 
Mr. Jonna presented building materials. 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-04-030 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Edmunds 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, pursuant to Article 8 of the Zoning 
Ordinance, as requested for the proposed Troy Shoppes, located on the south side of 
Big Beaver, west of Crooks (1475 W. Big Beaver), Section 29, within the BB (Big 
Beaver) district, be granted, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1) Provide cross access agreement as part of Final Site Plan submittal. 
2) Either widen the proposed stairway linking the building to the Big Beaver sidewalk 

or add an additional stairway. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Hutson 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

 
STUDY ITEM 

 
6. MASTER PLAN UPDATE 

 
Richard Carlisle initiated the discussion, including explaining the State requirement that 
communities must update their Master Plan every 5 years or make a finding that an 
update is not necessary.  The Master Plan was adopted in 2008. 





Draft Minutes Brownfield Redevelopment Authority Annual Meeting April 16, 2013 
 

1 
 

The meeting was called to order at 3:00 p.m. in the Council Boardroom, Troy City Hall 
by Chairman Bruce Wilberding.   
 
Members Present: Bruce Wilberding 
   Joseph Vassallo 
   Dan Brake 
   Theodore Dziurman 
   Rosemary Kornacki 
   Robert Swartz 
 
Members Absent: None 
 
Also Present:  Lori Bluhm, City Attorney 
   Glenn Lapin, Economic Development Specialist 
 
ELECTION OF OFFICERS (Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson and Secretary/Treasurer) 
 
Resolution # BRA 2013-04-01 
Moved by Swartz 
Seconded by Kornacki  
RESOLVED, that the following be elected: 
 
 Chairperson   Bruce Wilberding 
 Vice-Chairperson  Joseph Vassallo 
 Secretary/Treasurer  Mark F. Miller 
 
Yeas:  6 
Nays:  0 
Absent: 0 
 
REGULAR MEETING SCHEDULE FOR 2013 
 
Resolution # BRA 2013-04-02 
Moved by Wilberding 
Seconded by Vassallo 
 
RESOLVED, that the attached meeting schedule for 2013 be adopted. 
 
Yeas:  6 
Nays:  0 
Absent: 0 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Resolution # BRA 2013-04-03 
Moved by Vassallo 

stewartc
Text Box
O-01k



Draft Minutes Brownfield Redevelopment Authority Annual Meeting April 16, 2013 
 

2 
 

Seconded by Brake 
 
RESOLVED, that the BRA approve the minutes of October 16, 2012 regular meeting. 
 
Yeas:  6  
Nays:   0 
Absent:  0  
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 

A. Public Act 502 of 2012 – Brownfield Redevelopment Act Revisions 
 
City Attorney Lori Bluhm provided an overview of the revisions made to the State’s 
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority Act effective December 28, 2012.  A copy of Public 
Act 502 of 2012 was included in the agenda packet.   
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. 2013/14 Budget 
 
Glenn Lapin provided an overview of the budget to the Board and answered questions 
related to it. 
 
Resolution # BRA 2013-04-04 
Moved by Vassallo 
Seconded by Swartz 
 
RESOLVED, that the BRA approve the 2013/14 Budget. 
 
Yeas:  6 
Nays:  0 
Absent: 0 
 
BOARD MEMBER COMMENT 
 
General discussion took place. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
None 
 
Meeting was adjourned at 3:44 p.m. 
 
The next scheduled meeting is October 15, 2013 – 3:00 p.m. 

 
 



Draft Minutes Joint Local Development Finance Authority Troy Subcommittee       
Annual Meeting of April 22, 2013 

 

1 
 

The meeting was called to order at 3:31 p.m. in the Council Boardroom, Troy City Hall 
by Chairperson Robin Beltramini.   
 
Members Present: Robin Beltramini 
   Paul Hoef 
   Michael Kidder 
   John Sharp (arrived at 3:32pm) 
   David Shields 
   Maureen McGinnis (alternate) 
   Dane Slater (alternate) 
 
Members Absent: Irene Spanos (non-voting) 
  Nickolas Vitale 
   
Also Present:  Mark F. Miller, Secretary/Treasurer 

Glenn Lapin, Economic Development Specialist 
Lori Bluhm, City Attorney 
Brian Kischnick, City Manager 

 
ELECTION OF OFFICERS (Chair, Secretary/Treasurer) 
 
Resolution # LDFA 2013-04-01 
Moved by Slater 
Seconded by Hoef 
 
RESOLVED, that the following be elected: 
 
 Chair    Robin Beltramini 
 Secretary/Treasurer  Mark Miller 
 
Yeas:  6 
Nays:   0 
Absent:  0 
 
REGULAR MEETING SCHEDULE FOR 2013 
 
Resolution # LDFA 2013-04-02 
Moved by Hoef 
Seconded by Shields 
 
RESOLVED, that the attached meeting schedule for 2013 be adopted. 
 
Yeas:  6 
Nays:  0 
Absent: 0 
 

stewartc
Text Box
O-01l



Draft Minutes Joint Local Development Finance Authority Troy Subcommittee       
Annual Meeting of April 22, 2013 

 

2 
 

 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Resolution # LDFA 2013-04-03 
Moved by Sharp 
Seconded by Hoef 
 
RESOLVED, that the LDFA approve the minutes of the October 22, 2012 regular 
meeting. 
 
Yeas:  6  
Nays:   0 
Absent:  0  
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
None 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. 2013/14 Budget 
 
Mark Miller provided an overview of the proposed 2013-2014 budget. 
 
Resolution # LDFA 2013-04-04 
Moved by Hoef 
Seconded by Shields 
 
RESOLVED, that the LDFA recommends approval of the 2013/14 Budget to City 
Council. 
 
Yeas:  6 
Nays:  0 
Absent: 0 
 
BOARD MEMBER COMMENT 
 
General discussion took place. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
None 
 
Meeting was adjourned at 3:59 p.m. 
 
The next scheduled meeting is October 28, 2013 – 3:30 p.m. 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT MAY 1, 2013 
 
 

1 
 

Chair Dziurman called the Regular meeting of the Building Code Board of Appeals to order at 
3:00 p.m. on May 1, 2013 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Members Present: 
Theodore Dziurman, Chair 
Gary Abitheira 
Teresa Brooks 
 
Members Absent: 
Michael Carolan 
Brian Kischnick 
 
Support Staff Present: 
Mitch Grusnick, Building Official/Code Inspector 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
Also Present: 
Attached and made a part hereof is the signature sheet of those present and signed in 
at this meeting. 

 
2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
Moved by: Brooks 
Support by: Abitheira 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the April 3, 2013 Regular meeting as 
submitted. 
 
Yeas: All present (3) 
Absent: Carolan, Kischnick 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

Chair Dziurman advised the applicants that a minimum of three votes for approval is required, 
and a request by the applicant to postpone an item to a later meeting would be entertained 
prior to the deliberation of the item.  Neither applicant requested a postponement. 
 
3. HEARING OF CASES 

 
A. VARIANCE REQUEST, STEVE LENDERMAN, MBL+A ARCHITECTS, 1414 E 

MAPLE ROAD – (1) A variance to allow a total of 6 wall signs on the building.  The 
building currently has 4 wall signs measuring an aggregate total of 517 square feet 
in area.  Two additional wall signs measuring an aggregate total of 336 square feet 
are proposed.  (2) A variance to allow a second ground sign measuring 60 square 
feet in area and 10 feet in height.  The Sign Code allows a second ground provided 
it does not exceed 36 square feet in area. 

stewartc
Text Box
O-01m



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT MAY 1, 2013 
 
 

2 
 

Mr. Grusnick gave a summary of the variance request.  He stated the request for a 
total of six (6) wall signs is revised to a total of five (5) because the existing 
Entertainment sign will be removed and replaced once the space is reoccupied.  Mr. 
Grusnick addressed the requested wall signage as relates to the specific zoning 
district classification and setbacks.  He indicated the existing sign over the main 
entrance is permitted; it replaces the previous ‘for lease’ banner. 
 
Steve Lenderman of MBL+A Architects was present and addressed the locations 
where the additional wall signage would be placed, the replacement of the existing 
sign, the design of a tenant’s sign and the building expansion itself which will bring in 
1600 employees to the City. 
 
Mr. Lenderman said the request for an additional ground sign is to aid identification 
of the existing drives, and noted the proposed sign meets Zoning Ordinance 
requirements.  He said the small lease signs presently on site are in violation and 
will be removed. 
 
Moved by: Abitheira 
Support by: Brooks 
 
RESOLVED, To grant the request to allow the additional wall signs and ground sign. 
 
Yeas: All present (3) 
Absent: Carolan, Kischnick 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
Agenda item 3.C. was moved forward on the Agenda because the location and 
applicant are the same as Agenda item 3.A. 
 
C. VARIANCE REQUEST, STEVE LENDERMAN, MBL+A ARCHITECTS, 1414 E 

MAPLE ROAD – A variance to allow the fourth floor interior exit stairway doors of 
the 5 story office building to be locked on the stairway side preventing unauthorized 
access to the tenant space.  Building code requires interior stairway means of 
egress doors remain operable from both sides without the use of a key or special 
knowledge. 
 
Mr. Grusnick reminded the Board that at their December 5, 2012 meeting, a similar 
request was granted to lock the stairway doors on the second and third floors of the 
building.  He addressed the request as relates to the building classification and 
egress requirements.  Mr. Grusnick confirmed the City’s Fire Department reviewed 
the application and has no objections. 
 
Mr. Lenderman said the request is the same as submitted in December 2012.  He 
briefly addressed the card reader control access and emergency precautions. The 
door locks will release with an interruption of power or fire alarm activation. 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT MAY 1, 2013 
 
 

3 
 

Moved by: Brooks 
Support by: Abitheira 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the request to lock the fourth floor interior egress doors on 
the stairway side. 
 
Yeas: All present (3) 
Absent: Carolan, Kischnick 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
B. VARIANCE REQUEST, GERALD G. WEBER, 268-388 JOHN R ROAD – In order 

to add two additional 1.65 square foot wall signs to a proposed standalone ATM 
machine, a variance from the requirement that the total combined area of all wall 
signs not exceed 10% of the front area of the structure.  10% of the front area is 6.47 
square feet. 
 
Mr. Grusnick gave a review of the request as it relates to the installation of the 
freestanding Banking ATM in the parking lot.  He indicated the proposed sign area is 
9.77 square feet. 
 
Gerald Weber of Weber Architecture was present.  Mr. Weber addressed the 
location of the standalone ATM in relation to the parking lot and surrounding retail 
area.  He said existing vegetation screens the site very well and signage on the 
canopy is needed to identify the existence of the standalone ATM. 
 
Mr. Weber addressed lighting levels on the site.  He advised the Board that the 
Planning Commission granted Preliminary Site Plan approval with the condition to 
control lighting levels between the hours of 11:00 p.m. and sunrise.  Mr. Weber said 
a photocell sensor and timer would be used to control lighting that cannot exceed up 
to 20-foot candles for up to 10 minutes per ATM visit. 
 
General discussion followed. 
 
Moved by: Abitheira 
Support by: Brooks 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the request for signage at the standalone ATM located at 
268-388 John R. 
 
Yeas: All present (3) 
Absent: Carolan, Kischnick 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT MAY 1, 2013 
 
 

4 
 

4. COMMUNICATIONS 
 
None. 
 

5. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
None. 
 

6. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS 
 
None. 
 

7. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The Regular meeting of the Building Code Board of Appeals adjourned at 3:30 p.m. 
 

 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
  
Theodore Dziurman, Chair 
 
 
 
 
  
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Building Code Board of Appeals Minutes\2013\Draft\2013 05 01 Regular Meeting_Draft.doc 





Report

2013

CITY of TROY

Assessment Roll

&

Board of Review

stewartc
Text Box
O-02a



 

Eileen Turner

Submitted by:   Leger A. (Nino) Licari, City Assessor

Frank Strahl

James Hatch, Chairman

City of Troy

2013 Board of Review:

2013 ASSESSMENT ROLL

ANNUAL REPORT

Board of Review



 i

April 24, 2013 

 

TO: The Honorable Mayor and City Council 

 

FROM: Leger A. (Nino) Licari, City Assessor 
 
 
RE: 2013 Assessment Roll Report and Board of Review Minutes 

 

   It is my pleasure to present to you the 2013 Assessment Roll Report and 
Board of Review Minutes for the City of Troy.  This roll is the product of a full 
year’s effort by the entire Assessing Department staff.  Without their able 
assistance, this roll would surely suffer.    I am most appreciative of the efforts 
they expend every year in the service of the community.  Their efforts should 
not go unnoticed. 

   The 2013 Assessment Roll is summarized as follows: 
  

Total  Total Residential Commercial Industrial Personal 
Assessed Taxable Taxable Taxable Taxable Taxable 

Value Value Value Value Value Value 
            
4,491,432,340 4,310,263,448 2,704,214,970 908,560,198 283,393,700 414,094,580 

 

   The Assessed Value increase for 2013 is $81,323,440 or a 1.80% increase 
from 2012.  This is the first year in the last seven that the Assessment Roll has 
increased.   

   This year the Taxable Value decreased $2,428,602 or 0.001%.   

   The following chart represents a 5-year history of Assessed and Taxable 
Values: 

Year Assessed Increase % Taxable Increase % 
  Value (Decrease)   Value (Decrease)    

2013 4,491,432,340 81,323,440 1.80 4,310,263,448 (2,428,602) (0.001) 
2012 4,410,108,900 (130,303,780) (2.90) 4,312,692,050 (136,158,010) (3.10) 
2011 4,540,412,680 (448,105,633) (9.00) 4,448,750,160 (394,862,852) (8.20) 
2010 4,985,518,313 (850,370,926) (14.56) 4,843,613,012 (616,166,924) (11.29) 
2009 5,838,869,239 (388,224,811) (6.23) 5,459,779,936 (102,816,074) (1.85) 

    

It should be noted that the Consumer Price Index in Michigan for 2013 
Taxable Value was set at 2.40% (a multiplier of 1.024).   



 ii

   Part of the ongoing decrease is due to the erosion of the Commercial and 
Industrial values caused by the most recent year’s economy, and vacancy.  
The Residential class shows an average upturn of 4%.         

   The following chart details the ratio of Taxable Value to Market Value (2 
times the Assessed Value) with and without Personal Property, since the 
passage of Proposal “A”. 

 

Ratio of Taxable Value to Market Value since 1994 

Year Assessed Value Taxable Value Ratio All 
Personal 
Property 

Ratio No 
Personal 

2013 4,491,432,340 4,310,263,448 47.98 414,094,580 47.78 
2012 4,410,108,900 4,312,692,050 48.90 395,095,920 48.79 
2011 4,540,412,680 4,448,750,160 48.99 384,084,890 48.90 
2010 4,958,518,313 4,843,613,012 48.84 407,990,730 48.74 
2009 5,838,869,239 5,459,779,936 46.75 448,100,230 46.48 
2008 6,227,094,050 5,562,596,010 44.26 457,552,500 44.24 
2007 6,422,659,810  5,550,516,437  43.21  464,213,650  42.68  
2006 6,608,804,750 5,435,035,442 41.12  479,874,950 40.42  
2005 6,525,074,330 5,264,351,550 40.33  503,497,670 39.53  
2004 6,337,222,973 5,094,758,223 40.20  536,093,423 39.34  
2003 6,188,084,256 4,978,263,437 40.22  584,236,696 39.21  
2002 5,955,697,398 4,861,640,648 40.82  619,964,538 39.75  
2001 5,652,563,942 4,686,250,942 41.45  649,562,212 40.34  
2000 5,218,597,300 4,373,072,080 41.90  643,070,690 40.76  
1999 4,696,926,183 4,183,560,453 44.54  666,496,353 43.63  
1998 4,284,960,814 4,005,628,276 46.74  626,129,990 46.18  
1997 3,954,663,960 3,775,248,837 47.73  579,417,710 47.34  
1996 3,672,996,870 3,573,652,298 48.65  522,531,950 48.42  
1995 3,463,173,910 3,425,410,880 49.45  507,025,520 49.36  
1994 3,308,095,110 3,308,095,110 50.00  453,375,110 50.00  

 

   The Personal Property Roll for 2013 is $ 414,094,580, an increase of 
$18,998,660 or 4.90%.  This is due to an increase in office tenants in the 
commercial class (good news!).     

    This is the second increase in the Personal Property Roll since 2001.  Only 
three of the last fifteen years have shown an increase in the Personal 
Property totals.   

    

   

  

 

 



 iii

 The following chart illustrates the 5-year Personal Property Roll history. 

 

   

   The Industrial Facilities Tax Roll has an increase of $4,219,340 or 30.33%.    

   This is mainly due to 2011 and 2012 abatements ramping up with their 
stated purchases.      

     The chart below reflects a 5 year history of the tax abatement roll. 

5 Year Industrial Facilities Tax Abatement History 
Year Assessed/Taxable Value Change % +,- 

        
2013 18,133,070 4,219,340 30.33 
2012 13,913,730 1,930,580 16.11 
2011 11,983,150 1,639,540 15.85 
2010 10,343,610 (883,520) (7.87) 
2009 11,227,130 (7,121,730) (38.81) 

 

   The total 2013 Downtown Development Authority Roll is at $442,177,648, a     
3.40% decrease from the 2012 Roll.   

   The captured amount of the DDA is now at $12,899,118, a 57.50% decrease 
from 2012.  In dollars, the captured portion of the DDA has decreased 
$17,439,662.     

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5 Year Personal Property History 
Year Assessed/Taxable Value Change % +,- 

        
2013 414,094,580 18,998,660 4.90 
2012 395,096,920 11,102,030 2.87 
2011 384,084,890 (23,905,840) (5.90) 
2010 407,990,730 (40,109,500) (8.95) 
2009 448,100,230 (9,452,270) (2.03) 



 iv

 

 

 The following chart details the history of the DDA since its inception. 

DDA History and Capture Changes 

Year TOTAL DDA Real Personal Capture 
Capture 

%+,- 
2013 442,177,648 330,627,388 111,550,260 12,899,118 (57.50) 
2012 459,617,310 354,325,570 105,291,740 30,338,780 (57.44) 
2011 500,735,100 395,679,810 105,055,290 71,456,570 (45.29) 
2010 570,194,110 458,825,750 111,368,360 140,915,580 (36.44) 
2009 650,996,995 529,452,075 121,544,920 221,718,465 (10.00) 
2008 675,603,530 548,608,230 126,994,950 246,324,650 0.072 
2007 673,838,080 546,188,650 127,649,430 244,559,550 4.14  
2006 664,121,560 538,571,100 125,550,460 234,843,030 (0.34) 
2005 664,930,800 531,379,920 133,550,880 235,652,270 3.74  
2004 656,443,260 522,118,430 134,324,830 227,164,730 (12.06) 
2003 687,610,440 524,793,130 162,817,310 258,331,910 (4.68) 
2002 700,292,970 520,281,770 180,011,200 271,014,440 5.05  
2001 687,261,110 493,426,640 193,834,470 257,982,580 3.91  
2000 677,550,840 469,734,570 207,816,270 248,272,310 10.60  
1999 653,782,621 432,998,790 220,783,831 224,504,091 9.60  
1998 634,117,140 430,125,100 203,992,040 204,838,610 33.44  
1997 582,784,390 391,782,920 191,001,470 153,505,860 82.80  
1996 513,251,790 366,197,830 147,053,960 83,973,260 55.38  
1995 483,321,290 334,906,240 147,415,050 53,042,760 152.49  
1994 450,682,090 338,797,800 111,886,290 21,403,560   
1993 429,278,530 342,342,400 86,936,130 0   

    

   The City of Troy has one Brownfield Redevelopment Authority, the TCF 
Bank.  This Brownfield is in its seventh year.  The 2013 Taxable Value is 334,880, 
a decrease of $25,330 from the 2012 value (7.00%).   

  BRA History and Capture Changes (Troy) 
Year Total BRA Real Personal    Capture Capture %+,- 
2013 334,880 334,880 0 136,940 (15.60) 
2012 360,210 360,210 0 162,270 (12.08) 
2011 382,510 382,510 0 184,570 (22.85) 
2010 437,180 437,180 0 239,240 (21.71) 
2009 503,530 503,530 0 305,590 (5.66) 
2008 521,860 521,860 0 323,920 (4.91) 
2007 538,570 538,570 0 340,630  

 

    



 v

   This is the tenth year for the Smart Zone (SZ) in Troy.  This is the development 
occurring at the former Big Beaver Airport site.  It shows a 6.80% decrease in 
captured Taxable Value from 2012.   

   The following chart details the history of the SmartZone.   

 

SmartZone Totals 
Year     TOTAL SZ Real Personal    Capture Capture %+,- 
2013 20,546,380 13,126,260 7,420,120 6,099,000 (6.80) 
2012 20,096,250 12,118,900 7,977,350 6,546,350 14.27 
2011 20,097,510 13,907,950 6,189,560 5,650,130 (46.09) 
2010 24,927,370 17,102,270 7,825,100 10,479,990 (10.99) 
2009 26,221,980 19,630,100 6,591,880 11,774,600 12.14 
2008 24,947,540 18,428,290 6,519,250 10,500,160 (0.69) 
2007 25,725,320 18,164,810 7,560,510 11,277,940 25.89 
2006 23,405,930 16,888,080 6,517,850 8,958,550 11.50 
2005 22,482,220 16,372,300 6,109,920 8,034,840 48.22 
2004 19,867,910 15,089,770 4,778,140 5,420,530   

  

   For the 2013 Assessment Year there are 27,268 residential parcels in the City 
of Troy.  They have an average Assessed Value (A/V) of $104,500, and an 
average Market Value of $209,000.  The average Taxable Value (T/V) for 
these parcels is $99,172.  (For 2012 the average A/V was $99,681 and the 
average T/V was $97,062.) 

   There were 715 residential sales in the 2012 calendar year, compared to 
582 in 2011.  The total sales price for these parcels was $184,647,540, for an 
average selling price of $258,248 ($240,723 in 2011).  The lowest recorded 
residential sale was $40,100 and the highest recorded residential sale was 
$870,000.    

   There were also 140 sales of condominiums in 2012, compared to 127 in 
2011.  They had a total selling price of $19,546,849, for an average sale price 
of $139,620 ($119,427 in 2011).  The lowest recorded condominium sale was 
$39,000 and the highest recorded condominium sale was $461,000.    

   There were 2,384 deeds processed by the Office Assistant staff in the 
Assessing Department.  The vast majority of these lead to the filing of a 
Property Transfer Affidavit that is processed by this department.  In addition, 
we handle approximately the same amount of Principal Residence 
Exemption Affidavits annually. 

    

 



 vi

    There are currently 1,974 Commercial or Industrial zoned parcels in the 
City of Troy.  These parcels encompass 6,418 businesses that file Personal 
Property returns in the City.  The filing deadline is February 20th, of any given 
year.  All of these returns are processed before the last scheduled session of 
the Board of Review. 

   Also included are the 2013 Assessment Roll Summary sheets, which 
summarize most of the information in this report. 

      I must also compliment the staff of the Assessing Department for the 
valuable work they do on behalf of the citizens of the City of Troy.  The 
telephone volume is staggering.  Staff personally reviewed and changed 93 
Assessments, on top of the many hundreds they each reviewed and were 
unable to change.  Counter traffic is extreme.  In spite of the thousands of 
citizens we spoke with by telephone, or dealt with in person, I received no 
complaints about any of our staff, but did receive many compliments from 
the citizens we interacted with.  Staff’s work this year was again, outstanding. 

   I also must mention the extraordinary work performed by the citizen 
volunteers who served on the 2013 Board of Review.  Their work is difficult 
and stressful.  The Board ran 4 days.  They heard 50 in person appeals, and 
decided on many hundreds more Correspondence Appeals, Protection 
Appeals, and Poverty Exemptions.  This was another great job in a high stress 
environment.    

  Recently reformatted (to save time, paper and money) the Minutes of the 
Board of Review close this report.   

  I am available to answer any questions you may have. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by, 

 

 

Leger A. (Nino) Licari 
City Assessor   



Type Count Assessed Value Taxable Value
Agricultural Real 0 0 0
Commercial Real 1014 940,621,540 908,560,198
Industrial Real 960 287,221,180 283,393,700
Residential Real 27,268 2,849,495,040 2,704,214,970

Total Real 29,242 4,077,337,760 3,896,168,868

Commercial Personal 5,860 257,058,120 257,058,120
Industrial Personal 539 113,589,460 113,589,460
Utility Personal 19 43,447,000 43,447,000
Deletes 0
Total Personal 6,418 414,094,580 414,094,580
Total of Roll 35,660 4,491,432,340 4,310,263,448

Assessed Value Percent Change Taxable Value Percent Change
% %

Residential 5.00 Residential 2.30
Commercial (5.60) Commercial (6.70)
Industrial (5.00) Industrial (5.70)

2013 Assessment Roll Summary

Percent Changes by Class

Personal 4.90 Personal 4.90

Overall A/V 1.80 Overall T/V (0.001)

A/V % T/V % A/V % T/V %
Residential 63.44 62.74 Real 90.77 90.39
Commercial 20.94 21.08 Personal 9.23 9.61
Industrial 6.39 6.57
Personal 9.23 9.61

 
Total 100.00 100.00 Total 100.00 100.00

1,014 Commercial Personal 5,860
960 Industrial Personal 539

27,268 UtilityPersonal 19
Total Real 29,242 Total Personal 6,418
Grand Total 35,660

Commercial Real
Parcel Count (35,660) Breakdown

Industrial Real
Residential Real

Percent of Total Roll (A/V = Assessed Value, T/V = Taxable Value)

 
 

quick stats 1



2013 Assessment Roll Summary

Sale Market Assessed Taxable 
Price Value Value Value

Residential 258,248 0 0 0
715 Sales @ $184,647,540 High Sale 870,000 Low Sale 40,100

Price M/V A/V T/V
Condo 139,620 0 0 0
140 Sales @ $19,546,849 High Sale 461,000 Low Sale 39,000

Price M/V A/V T/V
Combined Residential & Condo 238,824 209,000 104,500 99,172
855 Sales @ $204,194,389 High Sale 1,000,000 Low Sale 30,000

Total Market Value (including Personal Property) 8,982,864,680
Total Taxable Value (including Personal Property) 8,620,526,896

Ratio of T/V to M/V (including Personal Property) % 47.98

Total Market Value (No Personal Property) 8,154,675,520
Total Taxable Value (No Personal Property) 7 792 337 736

Averages

Ratio of Taxable Value to Market Value

Total Taxable Value (No Personal Property) 7,792,337,736

Ratio of T/V to M/V (No Personal Property) % 47.78

By Type (No Personal Property) Assessed Market Taxable
Value Value Value Ratio

Commercial 940,621,540 1,881,243,080 908,560,198 48.30
Industrial 287,221,180 574,442,360 283,393,700 49.33
Residential 2,849,495,040 5,698,990,080 2,704,214,970 47.45

Base 2013 T/V 2013 Capture
Total 429,278,530 442,177,648 12,899,118

Base 2013 T/V 2013 Capture
Total 197,940 334,880 136,940

Base 2013 T/V 2013 Capture
Total 14,447,380 20,546,380 6,099,000

Troy Smart Zone (SZ) Statistics

DDA Statistics

Troy Brownfield - Troy (TBRA) Statistics

quick stats 2



2013 Assessment Roll Summary

School Code School P.R.E July P.R.E Dec Total P.R.E Non-H July Non-H Dec Total Non-H

260 TROY 31.0856 6.6601 37.7457 37.3696 12.9442 50.3138
010 Avondale 29.6128 5.1975 34.8103 38.7028 14.2875 52.9903
030 Birmingham 34.3448 6.3842 40.7290 38.3190 10.4495 48.7685
040 Bloomfield 31.1756 6.9904 38.1660 36.0980 11.6827 47.7807
160 Lamphere 35.3193 10.9040 46.2233 37.0868 12.6715 49.7583
230 Royal Oak 33.5821 1.3595 34.9416 48.7119 1.3595 50.0714
265 DDA Troy 31.0856 6.6601 37.7457 37.3696 12.9442 50.3138
269 Brwnf'd Troy 31.0856 6.6601 37.7457 37.3696 12.9442 50.3138
268 SmartZn Troy 31.0856 6.6601 37.7457 37.3696 12.9442 50.3138
750 Warren 36.8205 1.3595 38.1800 47.4231 1.3595 48.7826

Rank 2013 A/V 2013 T/V Activity ParcelsName
Top Twenty Taxpayers

2012 Millage Rates (2013 rates are not Certified until late Fall)

P.R.E. = Principal Residence Exemption (Homestead),   Non-H = Non-Homestead

1 FRANKEL FORBES COHEN 50,473,380 50,473,380 Somerset Malls 3
2 NTCC LLC 30,881,430 30,881,430 Office Leasing 8
3 URBANCAL OAKLAND MALL LLC 30,822,560 30,822,560 Oakland Mall/Plaza 10
4 NYKEL MANAGEMENT CO 24,902,430 24,902,430 Apartment Leasing 11
5 DTE 23,692,910 23,692,910 Utility 24
6 CC TROY ASSOC 20,008,820 20,008,820 Office Leasing 5
7 OSPREY-TROY OFFICENTRE LLC 19,997,050 19,997,050 Office Leasing 3
8 KELLY SERVICES 18,029,920 17,763,250 HQ 11
9 NEMER TROY PLACE REALTY 22,539,060 17,576,490 Office Leasing 2

10 BANK OF AMERICA NA 16,342,090 16,342,090 Office HQ 16
11 DELPHI 17,485,230 15,654,920 Office HQ 10
12 755 TOWER ASSOCIATES LLC 13,825,090 13,825,090 Office Leasing 5
13 MACYS 12,790,700 12,790,700 Retail 15
14 REGENTS PARK OF TROY 12,764,690 12,746,690 Apartment Leasing 4
15 TROY SPORTS CENTER LLC 11,102,030 11,102,030 Ice Rink/Retail 2
16 WEST HURON JOINT VENTURE 10,756,570 10,756,570 Office Leasing 2
17 SHEFFIELD OWNER 10,386,260 10,386,260 Office Leasing 3
18 SOMERSET PLACE LLC 9,820,750 9,820,750 Office Leasing 5
19 LIBERTY INVESTMENTS 9,448,420 9,448,420 Office Leasing 3
20 FLAGSTAR 9,405,100 9,405,100 Office HQ 3

quick stats 3



TUESDAY, MARCH 5, 2013

2013

Board of Review 

Minutes

12:45 P.M. - The 2013 Board of Review met at the Troy City 
offices. James Hatch was elected to the Chair.  Also serving 
were Eileen Turner and Frank Strahl.  City Assessor, Nino 
Licari, served as the Secretary.  Mr. Licari presented the 
Assessment Roll to the Board.  There were no corrections of 
omissions or errors.  The Board was then called to order at 
1:00PM to hear all appeals of Assessments placed against 
property in the City of Troy.  The following 14 appeals were 
heard.



March Board of Review Report2013

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/05/2013 001.01:00PM 88-20-04-326-006
MUSOLF, RICHARD A 6353 CANMOOR

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED COMPARABLES FOR THE BOARD TO REVIEW.  THE BOARD VOTED NO  
CHANGE. BASED ON SALES IN THE SALES STUDY.

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V
88,930 84,990 88,930 84,990 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/05/2013 002.01:50PM 88-20-19-226-010
MYERS, STEVEN B & JANE C 3880 BOULDER

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED COMPARABLES FOR THE BOARD TO REVIEW.  THE BOARD VOTED TO  
REDUCE THE ASSESSED VALUE TO $124,500.

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V
129,330 102,910 124,500 102,910 -4,830 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/05/2013 003.02:00PM 88-20-07-101-011
PARTALIS, HARRY 5855 SUSSEX

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED AN APPRAISAL FOR THE BOARD TO REVIEW.  THE BOARD VOTED NO  
CHANGE.

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V
327,590 303,810 327,590 303,810 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/05/2013 004.03:00PM 88-20-04-252-012
HERA, NICOLAE 6665 VERNMOOR

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED COMPARABLES FOR THE BOARD TO REVIEW.  THE BOARD VOTED NO  
CHANGE.

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V
97,190 97,190 97,190 97,190 0 0

licarila
Text Box
1



March Board of Review Report2013

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/05/2013 005.03:10PM 88-20-10-380-028
NGUYEN, THI & MARIA 5143 SHADY CREEK

THE PETITIONER REQUESTED AN INSPECTION TO VERIFY THE MANY PROBLEMS WITH THE HOME.  AFTER  
THE INSPECTION WAS COMPLETED THE BOARD VOTED TO CHANGE THE ASSESSED AND TAXABLE  
VALUE TO $167,500.

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V
214,870 173,970 167,500 167,500 -47,370 -6,470

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/05/2013 006.03:30PM 88-20-10-426-018
HUANG, XIAO H

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED COMPARABLES FOR THE BOARD TO REVIEW.  THE RECENT PURCHASE WAS  
ADMITTEDLY NOT ARM'S LENGTH.  THE BOARD VOTED NO CHANGE.

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V
20,750 20,750 20,750 20,750 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/05/2013 007.03:30PM 88-20-10-426-019
HUANG, XIAO H

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED COMPARABLES FOR THE BOARD TO REVIEW.  THE RECENT PURCHASE WAS  
ADMITTEDLY NOT ARM'S LENGTH.  THE BOARD VOTED NO CHANGE.

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V
58,100 58,100 58,100 58,100 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/05/2013 008.03:30PM 88-20-10-426-020
HUANG, XIA HUA

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED COMPARABLES FOR THE BOARD TO REVIEW.  THE RECENT PURCHASE WAS  
ADMITTEDLY NOT ARM'S LENGTH.  THE BOARD VOTED NO CHANGE.

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V
25,020 25,020 25,020 25,020 0 0

licarila
Text Box
2



March Board of Review Report2013

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/05/2013 009.03:30 PM 88-20-10-426-021
HUANG, XIA HUA 5395 ROCHESTER

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED COMPARABLES FOR THE BOARD TO REVIEW.  THE RECENT PURCHASE WAS  
ADMITTEDLY NOT ARM'S LENGTH.  THE BOARD VOTED NO CHANGE.

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V
45,230 45,230 45,230 45,230 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/05/2013 010.04:10PM 88-20-17-276-036
MATHUR, SUMIT & JOSEPH, MONICA 4426 HYCLIFFE

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED AN APPRAISAL FOR THE BOARD TO REVIEW.  THE BOARD VOTED TO  
REDUCE THE ASSESSED AND TAXABLE VALUE TO $186,880.

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V
195,390 195,390 186,880 186,880 -8,510 -8,510

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/05/2013 011.06:00PM 88-20-05-454-002
KWASIBORSKI, JOHN 6095 LEDWIN

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED AN APPRAISAL FOR THE BOARD TO REVIEW.  THE BOARD VOTED NO  
CHANGE.

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V
110,920 110,920 110,920 110,920 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/05/2013 012.06:10PM 88-20-04-156-002
FRIEDRICH, MARTHA M 959 KEATON

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED AN APPRAISAL FOR THE BOARD TO REVIEW.  THE BOARD VOTED NO  
CHANGE.

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V
126,220 125,470 126,220 125,470 0 0

licarila
Text Box
3



March Board of Review Report2013

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/05/2013 013.06:20PM 88-20-05-126-004
HOUGH, ANDREW & WENDY 6893 MOUNTAIN

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED THE CONDITION OF PROPERTY FOR THE BOARD TO REVIEW.  THE BOARD  
VOTED TO REDUCE THE ASSESSED AND TAXABLE VALUE TO $110,000.

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V
127,250 127,250 110,000 110,000 -17,250 -17,250

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/05/2013 014.06:30PM 88-20-19-377-026
SWISHER TRUST, BENJAMIN J&DARCIE 3134 WENDOVER

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED COMPARABLES FOR THE BOARD TO REVIEW.  THE BOARD VOTED TO  
REDUCE THE ASSESSED AND TAXABLE VALUE TO $118,650.

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V
125,300 123,760 118,650 118,650 -6,650 -5,110

licarila
Text Box
4



MONDAY, MARCH 11, 2013

2013

Board of Review 

Minutes

9:00A.M. - The 2013 Board of Review met for the second 
session at the Troy City offices. James Hatch called the 
meeting to order.  Also present were Eileen Turner, Frank 
Strahl, and City Assessor, Nino Licari, serving as the 
Secretary.  The following 12 appeals were heard.



March Board of Review Report2013

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/11/2013 015.09:00AM 88-20-12-351-035
FRATILA, DAN 2192 TUCKER

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED COMPARABLES FOR THE BOARD TO REVIEW.  THE BOARD VOTED NO  
CHANGE. BASED ON SALES IN THE SALES STUDY.

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V
153,130 119,600 153,130 119,600 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/11/2013 016.09:10AM 88-20-20-227-031
PARKE, KEITH & CHRISTINE 1540 BOULAN

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED COMPARABLES AND CONDITION OF PROPERTY FOR THE BOARD TO  
REVIEW.  THE BOARD VOTED NO CHANGE

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V
72,190 68,560 72,190 68,560 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/11/2013 017.09:20AM 88-20-03-203-005
MURAD, VANESSA V 752 AMBERWOOD

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED AN APPRAISAL FOR THE BOARD TO REVIEW.  THE BOARD VOTED NO  
CHANGE

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V
356,430 335,640 356,430 335,640 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/11/2013 018.09:30AM 88-20-36-126-007
CHOJNACKI, PETER & ANNA 1430 SHAKER

THE PETITIONER PURCHASED THIS PROPERTY WITH A BANK SALE OF $128,000.  HE REQUESTED A VALUE  
OF $140,000.  THE BOARD REVIEWED MARKET COMPARABLES AND VOTED NO CHANGE.

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V
85,280 85,280 85,280 85,280 0 0

licarila
Text Box
5



March Board of Review Report2013

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/11/2013 019.10:10AM 88-20-02-202-012
MC LAND, HARVEY & MARGARET 6762 NORTHPOINT

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED COMPARABLES  AND CONDITION OF NEIGHBORING HOMES FOR THE  
BOARD TO REVIEW.  AN INSPECTION OF THE NEIGHBORING HOMES WAS DONE, AND A  
RECOMMENDATION OF NO CHANGE WAS MADE.  THE BOARD VOTED NO CHANGE.

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V
150,970 150,970 150,970 150,970 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/11/2013 020.10:20AM 88-20-36-201-044
NIEDZWIECKI, ROBERT 1135 MINNESOTA

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED COMPARABLES FOR THE BOARD TO REVIEW AND INDICATED LOT IS IN A  
FLOOD ZONE.  THE BOARD VOTED TO REDUCE THE ASSESSED AND TAXABLE VALUE TO $22,500.

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V
34,000 26,720 22,500 22,500 -11,500 -4,220

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/11/2013 021.11:00AM 88-20-36-227-072
BUILT BEST HOMES LLC

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED COMPARABLES FOR THE BOARD TO REVIEW AND INDICATED LOT IS IN A  
FLOOD ZONE.  THE BOARD VOTED TO REDUCE THE ASSESSED AND TAXABLE VALUE TO $21,250.

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V
34,000 34,000 21,250 21,250 -12,750 -12,750

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/11/2013 021.11:00AM 88-20-36-227-073
BUILT BEST HOMES LLC

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED COMPARABLES FOR THE BOARD TO REVIEW AND INDICATED LOT IS IN A  
FLOOD ZONE.  THE BOARD VOTED TO REDUCE THE ASSESSED AND TAXABLE VALUE TO $21,250.

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V
34,000 34,000 21,250 21,250 -12,750 -12,750

licarila
Text Box
6



March Board of Review Report2013

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/11/2013 021.11:00AM 88-20-36-227-074
BUILT BEST HOMES LLC

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED COMPARABLES FOR THE BOARD TO REVIEW AND INDICATED LOT IS IN A  
FLOOD ZONE.  THE BOARD VOTED TO REDUCE THE ASSESSED AND TAXABLE VALUE TO $21,250.

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V
34,000 34,000 21,250 21,250 -12,750 -12,750

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/11/2013 022.01:00PM 88-20-26-427-001
CARVER, DENNIS 1903 BRINSTON

THE PETITIONERS SUBMITTED THEIR PURCHASE PRICE AND INCOME OF THE PROPERTY FOR THE BOARD  
TO REVIEW.  THE BOARD VOTED NO CHANGE.

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V
21,490 21,490 21,490 21,490 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/11/2013 023.01:20PM 88-20-07-401-010
KU, YUH-SHENG & TZ-JEN 2308 RIDGE

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED PICTURES OF THE CONDITION OF BASEMENT FINISH FOR THE BOARD TO  
REVIEW.  THE BOARD VOTED TO REDUCE THE ASSESSED AND TAXABLE VALUE TO $141,980.

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V
147,320 145,380 141,980 141,980 -5,340 -3,400

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/11/2013 024.02:00PM 88-20-19-331-007
NIKOLAS, JANE 3204 WENDOVER

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED CONDITION OF HOME AND PLEAD HARDSHIP FOR THE BOARD TO REVIEW.   
THE BOARD VOTED TO REDUCE THE ASSESSED AND TAXABLE VALUE TO $86,110.

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V
88,190 88,170 86,110 86,110 -2,080 -2,060

licarila
Text Box
7



March Board of Review Report2013

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/11/2013 025.02:10PM 88-20-14-205-015
MOLDOVAN, JANET A 4728 ALTON

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED COMPARABLES AND CONDITION OF HOME FOR THE BOARD TO REVIEW.   
THE BOARD VOTED NO CHANGE.

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V
82,320 81,140 82,320 81,140 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/11/2013 026.02:30PM 88-20-36-201-042
NIEDZWIECKI, JACOB & KATHLEEN K 1251 MINNESOTA

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED COMPARABLES FOR THE BOARD TO REVIEW AND INDICATED LOT IS IN A  
FLOOD ZONE.  THE BOARD VOTED NO CHANGE.

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V
78,890 77,490 78,890 77,490 0 0

licarila
Text Box
8



TUESDAY, MARCH 12, 2013

2013

Board of Review 

Minutes

1:00 P.M. - The 2013 Board of Review met for the third session 
at the Troy City offices. James Hatch called the meeting to 
order.  Also present were Eileen Turner, Frank Strahl, and City 
Assessor, Nino Licari, serving as the Secretary.  The following 
24 appeals were heard.   



March Board of Review Report2013

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/12/2013 027.01:00PM 88-20-22-327-019
GALAN, VASILE & MARIANA 3435 KILMER

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED COMPARABLES FOR THE BOARD TO REVIEW.  THE BOARD VOTED NO  
CHANGE.

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V
201,660 175,380 201,660 175,380 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/12/2013 028.01:10PM 88-20-12-127-029
HITCHCOCK, CURTIS C & GEORGINA C 5964 PATTERSON

THE BROTHER APPEARED ON BEHALF OF THE PETITIONER AND SUBMITTED COMPARABLES FOR THE  
BOARD TO REVIEW.  THE BOARD VOTED NO CHANGE.

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V
94,560 92,080 94,560 92,080 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/12/2013 029.01:20PM 88-20-12-103-012
FEMMININEO, CHARLENE 2137 RUTGERS

THE PETITIONER DID NOT PRESENT ANY INFORMATION IN SUPPORT OF A CHANGE IN VALUE.  SHE  
STATED THAT SHE THOUGHT ANY  INFORMATION SHE HAD WOULD NOT MAKE A DIFFERENCE.  THE  
BOARD STATED THAT THEY HAD NO CHOICE BUT TO VOTE FOR NO CHANGE. SHE ALSO REQUESTED  
THE BOARD MEMBERS NAMES AND EDUCATIONAL BACKGROUND.  SHE INQUIRED AS TO HOW THEY  
WERE ELECTED TO THE BOARD.  SHE WAS INSTRUCTED TO ASK FOR THAT INFORMATION AT THE  
ASSESSING OFFICE COUNTER TO ALLOW THE BOARD TO CONTINUE HEARING APPEALS.

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V
96,580 93,910 96,580 93,910 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/12/2013 030.01:30PM 88-20-04-178-014
SOOD, ANIL & RENU 6608 GRANGER CT

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED COMPARABLES FOR THE BOARD TO REVIEW.  THE BOARD VOTED NO  
CHANGE.

licarila
Text Box
9



March Board of Review Report2013

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V
136,260 136,260 136,260 136,260 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/12/2013 031.01:40PM 88-20-14-101-021
SIDHOM, IRENE 1336 E LONG LAKE

HELD FOR PETITIONER TO PROVIDE PROOF OF RENTAL INCOME.  THE BOARD VOTED NO CHANGE.

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V
51,630 41,770 51,630 41,770 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/12/2013 031.01:40PM 88-20-14-451-034
SIDHOM, IRENE 1579 E WATTLES

HELD FOR PETITIONER TO PROVIDE PROOF OF RENTAL INCOME.  THE BOARD VOTED NO CHANGE.

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V
67,510 41,770 67,510 41,770 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/12/2013 031.01:40PM 88-20-22-201-008
SIDHOM, IRENE & AKRAM M 3853 JENNINGS

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED COMPARABLE FOR THE BOARD TO REVIEW.  THE BOARD VOTED NO  
CHANGE.

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V
93,370 85,080 93,370 85,080 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/12/2013 031.01:40PM 88-20-23-353-016
SIDHOM, IRENE 1168 HARTLAND

HELD FOR PETITIONER TO PROVIDE PROOF OF RENTAL INCOME.  THE BOARD VOTED NO CHANGE.

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V
61,890 36,550 61,890 36,550 0 0

licarila
Text Box
10



March Board of Review Report2013

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/12/2013 031.01:40PM 88-20-36-227-033
SIDHOM, IRENE 2771 WISCONSIN

 THE PETITIONER PROVIDED PROOF OF RENTAL INCOME.  THE BOARD VOTED TO CHANGE THE  
ASSESSED AND TAXABLE VALUE TO $36,000.

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V
47,470 47,470 36,000 36,000 -11,470 -11,470

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/12/2013 031.01:40PM 88-20-36-227-046
SIDHOM, IRENE 2957 WISCONSIN

HELD FOR PETITIONER TO PROVIDE PROOF OF RENTAL INCOME.  THE BOARD VOTED NO CHANGE.

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V
42,490 34,400 42,490 34,400 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/12/2013 032.02:00PM 88-20-21-226-002
LUBNA, LAIQ S 212 MIRACLE

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED COMPARABLES FOR THE BOARD TO REVIEW.  THE BOARD VOTED TO  
REDUCE THE ASSESSED VALUE TO $80,000 WITH NO CHANGE TO THE TAXABLE VALUE.

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V
84,100 76,230 80,000 76,230 -4,100 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/12/2013 033.02:10PM 88-20-14-101-003
BECK, PAUL R & CAROL S 4932 ROCHESTER

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED COMPARABLES FOR THE BOARD TO REVIEW.  THE BOARD VOTED NO  
CHANGE.

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V
71,640 71,640 71,640 71,640 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

licarila
Text Box
11



March Board of Review Report2013

03/12/2013 034.02:20PM 88-20-27-377-020
WILSHER, LAWRENCE L 369 E MAPLE

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED CONDITION OF HOME, ZONING AND TREES ON NEIGHBORING PROPERTY  
FOR THE BOARD TO REVIEW.  THE BOARD VOTED NO CHANGE.

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V
30,630 28,040 30,630 28,040 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/12/2013 035.02:30PM 88-20-12-257-006
ADDI , OMAR & ANNA 5669 BINGHAM

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED AN APPRAISAL FOR THE BOARD TO REVIEW.  THE BOARD VOTED NO  
CHANGE.

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V
94,180 91,680 94,180 91,680 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/12/2013 036.02:50PM 88-20-01-480-004
CONLEY, TERRY & LUCRETIA 2777 BRIARWOOD

TAX REPRESENTATIVE, BRYAN BAYS, APPEARED ON BEHALF OF THE PETITIONER AND SUBMITTED  
COMPARABLES AND CONDITION OF THE PROPERTY FOR THE BOARD TO REVIEW.  THE BOARD VOTED  
TO REDUCE THE ASSESSED VALUE AND TAXABLE VALUE TO $152,500.

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V
157,570 157,060 152,500 152,500 -5,070 -4,560

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/12/2013 037.03:30PM 88-20-24-451-049
VADUVA, PAULA 3172 CEDAR CREST

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED THE CONDITION OF THE PROPERTY WITH PICTURES, ESTIMATE FOR REPAIRS  
AND RECENT SALE PRICE FOR THE BOARD TO REVIEW.  THE BOARD VOTED TO REDUCE THE ASSESSED  
AND TAXABLE VALUE TO $87,500.

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V
108,980 108,980 87,500 87,500 -21,480 -21,480

licarila
Text Box
12



March Board of Review Report2013

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/12/2013 038.06:00PM 88-20-09-427-037
LOSEY, STEVEN D & NANCY A 107 STALWART

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED AN APPRAISAL FOR THE BOARD TO REVIEW.  THE BOARD VOTED NO  
CHANGE.

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V
158,860 120,930 158,860 120,930 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/12/2013 039.06:30PM 88-20-13-252-018
TAGGART, NANCY 4586 BUTLER

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED AN APPRAISAL FOR THE BOARD TO REVIEW.  THE BOARD VOTED NO  
CHANGE.

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V
84,750 77,060 84,750 77,060 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/12/2013 040.06:40PM 88-20-02-426-025
REDMER TRUST, GERALD A & PAULA G 6277 ATKINS

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED COMPARABLES FOR THE BOARD TO REVIEW.  THE BOARD VOTED BY A  
SPLIT DECISION TO REDUCE THE ASSESSED AND TAXABLE VALUE TO $130,000.

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V
137,010 137,010 130,000 130,000 -7,010 -7,010

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/12/2013 041.07:00PM 88-20-19-128-019
HANSELMAN, STEVEN G & SUZZANNA 2559 AVONHURST

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED COMPARABLES AND DEFERRED MAINTENANCE FOR THE BOARD TO  
REVIEW.  THE BOARD VOTED TO REDUCE THE ASSESSED AND TAXABLE VALUE TO $91,500.

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V
101,620 94,490 91,500 91,500 -10,120 -2,990

licarila
Text Box
13



March Board of Review Report2013

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/12/2013 042.07:10PM 88-20-30-126-082
WEISS, HOWARD C 3445 ROXBURY CT

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED COMPARABLES AND DEFERRED MAINTENANCE FOR THE BOARD TO  
REVIEW.  THE BOARD VOTED NO CHANGE.

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V
69,480 64,000 69,480 64,000 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/12/2013 043.07:20PM 88-20-19-303-007
SWISHER, MARY E 3463 WENDOVER

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED COMPARABLES FOR THE BOARD TO REVIEW.  THE BOARD VOTED TO  
REDUCE THE ASSESSED VALUE TO $89,500 WITH NO CHANGE TO THE TAXABLE VALUE.

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V
96,230 89,390 89,500 89,390 -6,730 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/12/2013 044.07:30PM 88-20-18-428-005
FENG, YUANPING HU & LIN 2010 SUNDEW

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED AN APPRAISAL FOR THE BOARD TO REVIEW.  THE BOARD VOTED NO  
CHANGE.

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V
201,490 195,020 201,490 195,020 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/12/2013 045.07:40PM 88-20-36-426-008
RHYMER, IOANA 2726 LOVINGTON

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED COMPARABLES FOR THE BOARD TO REVIEW.  THE BOARD VOTED TO  
REDUCE THE ASSESSED AND TAXABLE VALUE TO $37,500.

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V
61,370 38,400 37,500 37,500 -23,870 -900

licarila
Text Box
14



March Board of Review Report2013

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/12/2013 046.07:50PM 88-20-06-278-003
JOLIAT, JONATHAN M & PATRICIA L 6466 SHAGBARK

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED COMPARABLES FOR THE BOARD TO REVIEW.  THE BOARD VOTED BY A  
SPLIT DECISION TO REDUCE THE ASSESSED VALUE TO $212,500 WITH NO CHANGE TO THE TAXABLE  
VALUE.

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V
226,300 191,920 212,500 191,920 -13,800 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/12/2013 047.08:00PM 88-20-07-428-006
ZHANG, ZHIQIANG 5330 CLEARVIEW

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED AN APPRAISAL FOR THE BOARD TO REVIEW.  THE BOARD VOTED NO  
CHANGE.

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V
131,110 129,660 131,110 129,660 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/12/2013 048.08:10 88-20-23-201-004
GANO, PERPARIM & DORJANO 3847 KINGS POINT

THE PETITIONER SUBMITTED COMPARABLES FOR THE BOARD TO REVIEW.  THE BOARD VOTED TO  
REDUCE THE ASSESSED VALUE TO $90,500 WITH NO CHANGE TO THE TAXABLE VALUE.

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V
94,260 90,320 90,500 90,320 -3,760 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/12/2013 049.08:20PM 88-20-15-476-038
MOSUTAN, GAVRIL & LIGIA 829 E WATTLES

THE PETITIONER STATED THE PROPERTY FLOODS DUE TO THE WIDENING OF THE MAIN ROAD FOR THE  
BOARD TO REVIEW.  THE BOARD VOTED TO REDUCE THE ASSESSED AND TAXABLE VALUE TO $42,500.

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V
60,540 43,520 42,500 42,500 -18,040 -1,020

licarila
Text Box
15



March Board of Review Report2013

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/12/2013 050.08:30PM 88-20-23-406-029
WANG, XIAONING 1649 LAKEWOOD

THE PETITIONER PRESENTED COMPARABLES TO THE BOARD.  THEY WERE ALSO CONCERNED ABOUT  
THE CONDITION OF THE RECREATION FINISH IN THEIR BASEMENT.  AN INSPECTION WAS SCHEDULED  
AND COMPLETED.  THE RECREATION FINISH IS COMPLETE AND NO CHANGE WAS MADE.

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V
90,070 86,240 90,070 86,240 0 0

licarila
Text Box
16



THURSDAY, MARCH 21, 2013

2013

Board of Review 

Minutes

1:00 P.M. - The 2013 Board of Review met for the fourth 
session at the Troy City offices. James Hatch called the 
meeting to order.  Also present were Eileen Turner, Frank 
Strahl, and City Assessor, Nino Licari, serving as the 
Secretary.  Only 1 in person appeal was heard on this day.   



March Board of Review Report2013

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/21/2013 051.02:00PM 88-99-00-362-920
SUNTEL SERVICES 1095 CROOKS 100

PETITIONER DISPUTES ASSETS THAT WERE DROPPED OFF THE 2013 PERSONAL PROPERTY RETURN.  THE  
DOCUMENTS PROVIDED NEED TO BE CLARIFIED BY THE JULY BOARD OF REVIEW.  THE BOARD VOTED  
NO CHANGE AT THIS TIME.

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V
257,250 257,250 257,250 257,250 0 0

licarila
Text Box
17



 

THURSDAY, MARCH 21, 2013

2013

Board of Review 

Minutes

2:00PM. - Petitioners who cannot appear in person to protest 
an assessment are allowed to protest in writing.  These 
Correspondence Appeals are reviewed by Assessing 
Department staff, and a recommendation is made to the 
Board.  The Board then reviews these recommendations 
based on other actions they have taken on similar 
properties, and renders a decision.  There were 38 parcels 
reviewed.



March Board of Review Report2013

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/21/2013 C001.2:00PM 88-20-03-228-001
TROWBRIDGE HOMES OF MAPLEWOOD LLC 6976 NORWAY

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

55,250 55,250 30,000 30,000 -25,250 -25,250

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/21/2013 C001.2:00PM 88-20-03-228-002
TROWBRIDGE HOMES OF MAPLEWOOD LLC 6960 NORWAY

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

55,250 55,250 30,000 30,000 -25,250 -25,250

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/21/2013 C001.2:00PM 88-20-03-228-004
TROWBRIDGE HOMES OF MAPLEWOOD LLC 6928 NORWAY

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

55,250 55,250 30,000 30,000 -25,250 -25,250

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/21/2013 C001.2:00PM 88-20-03-228-006
TROWBRIDGE HOMES OF MAPLEWOOD LLC 825 AMBERWOOD

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

55,250 55,250 30,000 30,000 -25,250 -25,250

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/21/2013 C001.2:00PM 88-20-03-228-008
TROWBRIDGE HOMES OF MAPLEWOOD LLC 806 AMBERWOOD

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

55,250 55,250 30,000 30,000 -25,250 -25,250

licarila
Text Box
18



March Board of Review Report2013
Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/21/2013 C001.2:00PM 88-20-03-228-009
TROWBRIDGE HOMES OF MAPLEWOOD LLC 788 AMBERWOOD

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

55,250 55,250 30,000 30,000 -25,250 -25,250

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/21/2013 C002.2:00PM 88-20-03-229-013
AMBERWOOD TOWNHOMES LLC 6919 VENUS -6973

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

855,960 855,960 855,960 855,960 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/21/2013 C003.2:00PM 88-20-05-427-003
CAPOCCIA, ANTONIO 6392 DENTON

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

150,000 150,000 150,000 150,000 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/21/2013 C004.2:00PM 88-20-05-428-013
KRZEMINSKI, ROBERT 6329 DENTON

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

123,850 123,850 113,600 113,600 -10,250 -10,250

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/21/2013 C005.2:00PM 88-20-06-351-003
JANKOWSKI, THOMAS & DIANA 2915 CHARNWOOD

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

127,960 127,960 127,960 127,960 0 0

licarila
Text Box
19



March Board of Review Report2013
Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/21/2013 C006.2:00PM 88-20-07-102-028
HOPKINS, JOHN L 2752 LENOX

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

152,430 150,080 145,100 145,100 -7,330 -4,980

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/21/2013 C007.2:00PM 88-20-07-278-012
WAIDELICH, JOHANN & MARIA 2118 TALL OAKS

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

302,120 300,080 290,000 290,000 -12,120 -10,080

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/21/2013 C008.2:00PM 88-20-07-478-004
KASELITZ, DOUGLAS & KAREN 5241 CAMERON

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

128,980 106,150 128,980 106,150 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/21/2013 C009.2:00PM 88-20-08-376-213
KENNY TRUST, DANIEL J & PAMELA J 1807 BRENTWOOD

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

54,580 52,150 54,580 52,150 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/21/2013 C010.2:00PM 88-20-09-232-011
TROY CORNERS OFFICE CENTER LLC 5877 LIVERNOIS

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

567,190 547,840 530,830 530,830 -36,360 -17,010

licarila
Text Box
20



March Board of Review Report2013
Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/21/2013 C011.2:00PM 88-20-10-126-039
KASELITZ, DOUGLAS & KAREN 5710 GLASGOW

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

108,420 101,700 108,420 101,700 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/21/2013 C012.2:00PM 88-20-10-377-002
POWERS TRUST, LISA A 5355 SHREWSBURY

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

95,720 95,720 95,720 95,720 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/21/2013 C013.2:00PM 88-20-07-227-009
LEE, SUNG KYO & JUNG 5936 CLEARVIEW

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

265,290 244,820 265,290 244,820 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/21/2013 C013.2:00PM 88-20-10-127-038
THIBODEAU, HAROLD B & SHERI L 5845 GLASGOW

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

114,420 106,490 114,420 106,490 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/21/2013 C013.2:00PM 88-20-23-402-013
KTONA, RICHARD & ANN M 3347 HARMONY

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

82,040 68,350 82,040 68,350 0 0

licarila
Text Box
21



March Board of Review Report2013
Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/21/2013 C013.2:00PM 88-20-31-228-042
NOSANCHUK, JOEL & MARILYN 3099 CAMDEN

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

74,040 69,710 74,040 69,710 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/21/2013 C014.2:00PM 88-20-14-307-041
APR DEVELOPMENT LLC 4385 BENNETT PARK

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

125,080 124,220 125,080 124,220 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/21/2013 C014.2:00PM 88-20-14-307-049
APR DEVELOPMENT LLC 4346 BENNETT PARK

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

35,460 27,710 35,460 27,710 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/21/2013 C014.2:00PM 88-20-14-307-050
APR DEVELOPMENT LLC 4340 BENNETT PARK

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

35,460 27,710 35,460 27,710 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/21/2013 C014.2:00PM 88-20-14-307-051
APR DEVELOPMENT LLC 4334 BENNETT PARK

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

42,560 32,590 42,560 32,590 0 0

licarila
Text Box
22



March Board of Review Report2013
Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/21/2013 C015.2:00PM 88-20-14-426-034
TROY COMMON LLC 1883 E WATTLES -1939

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

409,930 409,930 305,700 305,700 -104,230 -104,230

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/21/2013 C016.2:00PM 88-20-16-403-010
BANK OF ANN ARBOR 4354 HEDGEWOOD

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

55,250 55,250 30,000 30,000 -25,250 -25,250

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/21/2013 C016.2:00PM 88-20-16-403-011
BANK OF ANN ARBOR 4346 HEDGEWOOD

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

55,250 55,250 30,000 30,000 -25,250 -25,250

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/21/2013 C016.2:00PM 88-20-16-403-015
BANK OF ANN ARBOR 4314 HEDGEWOOD

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

55,250 55,250 30,000 30,000 -25,250 -25,250

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/21/2013 C016.2:00PM 88-20-16-403-016
TROWBIRDGE HOMES OF WALNUT FOREST 4306 HEDGEWOOD

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

55,250 55,250 30,000 30,000 -25,250 -25,250

licarila
Text Box
23



March Board of Review Report2013
Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/21/2013 C017.2:00PM 88-20-18-477-071
CURIS JR, JENNIFER & MICHAEL 4155 COOLIDGE

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

239,840 239,840 239,840 239,840 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/21/2013 C018.2:00PM 88-20-19-153-003
WALTHER, SANDRA M 2755 LANERGAN

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

82,160 73,610 82,160 73,610 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/21/2013 C019.2:00PM 88-20-22-276-028
HROBA, LOUIS J 888 TROYWOOD

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

70,290 63,950 64,000 63,950 -6,290 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/21/2013 C020.2:00PM 88-20-24-203-006
ARUMUGAM, KANNAPPAN 3801 TIMBERCREST

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

215,080 213,610 200,000 200,000 -15,080 -13,610

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/21/2013 C021.2:00PM 88-20-24-203-007
VAIRAPERUMAL, MATHIVANAN 3787 TIMBERCREST

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

202,430 201,170 202,430 201,170 0 0

licarila
Text Box
24



March Board of Review Report2013
Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/21/2013 C021.2:00PM 88-20-25-351-029
DAVID, ALI 2163 VIRGINIA

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

65,360 53,760 65,360 53,760 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/21/2013 C022.2:00PM 88-20-25-201-013
ABRO, WADIA 2629 CHANTERELL

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

85,710 81,260 85,710 81,260 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/21/2013 C023.2:00PM 88-20-25-255-006
NELSON, NOEL & JESSICA 2672 RHODES

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

68,480 66,210 68,480 66,210 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/21/2013 C025.2:00PM 88-20-26-126-015
PARTALIS PROPERTIES LLC 1360 E BIG BEAVER

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

844,860 805,880 844,860 805,880 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/21/2013 C026.2:00PM 88-20-26-351-020
DORR, ROBERT P 1875 STEPHENSON

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

251,470 251,470 251,470 251,470 0 0

licarila
Text Box
25



March Board of Review Report2013
Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/21/2013 C027.2:00PM 88-20-27-157-037
WAGBERG, DON & CHRISTINE 100 HICKORY

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

49,890 47,420 45,000 45,000 -4,890 -2,420

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/21/2013 C028.2:00PM 88-20-27-276-004
AMERIVEST INC 2461 ROCHESTER -2501

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

215,970 204,980 184,690 184,690 -31,280 -20,290

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/21/2013 C029.2:00PM 88-20-27-279-026
GRAGAR PROPERTIES 2430 ROCHESTER

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

430,750 430,750 392,830 392,830 -37,920 -37,920

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/21/2013 C030.2:00PM 88-20-27-403-008
DAVIS, JOHN D 2099 VAN COURTLAND

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

52,330 48,830 47,500 47,500 -4,830 -1,330

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/21/2013 C031.2:00PM 88-20-27-431-004
DAHCK DEVELOPMENT 1012 ARTHUR

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

51,130 51,130 45,000 45,000 -6,130 -6,130

licarila
Text Box
26



March Board of Review Report2013
Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/21/2013 C032.2:00PM 88-20-28-401-087
KINSLER, JAMES W 1834 THUNDERBIRD -1852

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

277,020 277,020 277,020 277,020 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/21/2013 C033.2:00PM 88-20-28-478-040
MANAGEMENT ONE LLC 1877 SHEPHERDS

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

89,110 87,350 89,110 87,350 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/21/2013 C034.2:00PM 88-20-28-478-043
MANAGEMENT ONE LLC 1829 SHEPHERDS

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

89,100 87,340 89,100 87,340 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/21/2013 C035.2:00PM 88-20-34-178-022
DAVID A THOMAS LLC 525 ELMWOOD

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

240,010 240,010 240,010 240,010 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/21/2013 C036.2:00PM 88-20-34-201-001
PRS HOLDINGS LLC 554 E MAPLE

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

343,520 343,520 225,000 225,000 -118,520 -118,520

licarila
Text Box
27



March Board of Review Report2013
Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/21/2013 C037.2:00PM 88-20-36-401-031
601 MINNESOTA LLC 601 MINNESOTA

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

149,340 149,340 130,300 130,300 -19,040 -19,040

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/21/2013 C038.2:00PM 88-99-00-387-940
BROOKLAND 16 & CROOKS LLC 3141 CROOKS

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

51,630 51,630 51,630 51,630 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/21/2013 C038.2:00PM 88-99-00-397-130
DVA RENAL HEALTHCARE INC 575 E BIG BEAVER 185

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

82,250 82,250 82,250 82,250 0 0

licarila
Text Box
28



 

THURSDAY, MARCH 21, 2013

2013

Board of Review 

Minutes

3:00 P.M. - Persons who by reason of poverty, are unable to 
contribute to the public charges, may have their taxes 
exempted for one (1) year.  They must meet income 
gudieliness and an asset test that is mandated by the 
courts, and approved by City Council each year.  In these 
appeals only, the Assessor and the Board must agree on the 
exemption.  Either the Assessor alone, or the Board, with all 
three members agreeing, may deny an exemption.  All 
Board members and the Assessor, in concurrance, are 
necessary to approve an exemption.  There were 15 Poverty 
Appeals heard. 



March Board of Review Report2013

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/21/2013 P001.3:00PM 88-20-03-151-002
EREMIE, AUREL & NASTASIA 6658 LIVERNOIS

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

73,270 37,170 0 0 -73,270 -37,170

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/21/2013 P002.3:00PM 88-20-04-403-004
STRZYZEWSKI, JAMES M & CAROL A 6485 FREDMOOR

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

88,310 88,310 0 0 -88,310 -88,310

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/21/2013 P003.3:00PM 88-20-05-479-004
SHAKUA, ARIF & SHARI 1061 FALCON

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

119,400 112,290 119,400 112,290 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/21/2013 P004.3:00PM 88-20-09-253-004
BEGERON, LORETTA 5640 WRIGHT

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

67,160 67,160 0 0 -67,160 -67,160

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/21/2013 P005.3:00PM 88-20-11-352-020
GHIURAU, ARON & ELISABETA 1184 MAYBERRY

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

76,530 76,530 0 0 -76,530 -76,530

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box
29



March Board of Review Report2013
Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/21/2013 P006.3:00PM 88-20-11-377-009
BAHRI, SALIM & MARGRET 1271 E LONG LAKE

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

76,320 76,320 76,320 76,320 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/21/2013 P007.3:00PM 88-20-14-153-006
MISHREKY, NADER & MERVAT 1156 SHALLOWDALE

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

103,000 94,060 103,000 94,060 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/21/2013 P008.3:00PM 88-20-15-153-001
DUONG, NHUT 49 STREAMVIEW

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

87,670 87,670 0 0 -87,670 -87,670

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/21/2013 P009.3:00PM 88-20-21-153-023
MC CULLEY TRUST, WILLIAM 3620 ORIOLE

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

101,140 101,140 0 0 -101,140 -101,140

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/21/2013 P010.3:00PM 88-20-22-253-031
GEBREL, MAGDY 764 COLEBROOK

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

85,870 85,870 0 0 -85,870 -85,870

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box
30



March Board of Review Report2013
Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/21/2013 P011.3:00PM 88-20-22-377-046
FAWZY, ROZTA 3179 KILMER

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

79,920 79,920 0 0 -79,920 -79,920

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/21/2013 P012.3:00PM 88-20-24-127-025
MARTIN, ANTHONY 3954 ANVIL

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

76,540 76,540 76,540 76,540 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/21/2013 P013.3:00PM 88-20-27-451-017
STRUGA, DALLANDYSHE 2084 VAN COURTLAND

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

48,280 48,280 48,280 48,280 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/21/2013 P014.3:00PM 88-20-28-431-012
URE, DEBORAH A

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

28,220 6,860 28,220 6,860 0 0

Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/21/2013 P014.3:00PM 88-20-28-431-013
URE, DEBORAH A 90 TACOMA

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

42,530 33,430 42,530 33,430 0 0

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box
31



March Board of Review Report2013
Appeal Date Appeal # / Time Parcel ID #

03/21/2013 P015.3:00PM 88-20-36-132-003
YAGHI, ZEINA 1295 MILVERTON

2013 A/V 2013 T/V 2013 BoR A/V 2013 BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V

74,890 69,600 74,890 69,600 0 0

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box
32



 

THURSDAY, MARCH 21, 2013

2013

Board of Review 

Minutes

03:30 P.M. - The following listing is for Assessor Changes that 
occur after the Board of Review has opened, named Board 
Affidavits.  These agreements can only be authorized by the 
Board.  An affidavit is signed by the Petitioner and the 
Representative from the Assessing Department, and then 
presented to the Board for their concurrance.   There were 
25 Board Affidavits approved.



Date Time # 2013 A/V 2013 T/V Bor A/V Bor T/V Change 
A/V

Change 
T/V Parcel ID 

03/21/13 3:30 PM AC001 169,740 166,680 165,000 165,000 (4,740) (1,680) 88-20-01-151-050

03/21/13 3:30 PM AC002 203,130 200,050 195,000 195,000 (8,130) (5,050) 88-20-01-151-051

03/21/13 3:30 PM AC003 120,540 118,780 116,000 116,000 (4,540) (2,780) 88-20-01-402-009

03/21/13 3:30 PM AC004 120,200 120,200 110,500 110,500 (9,700) (9,700) 88-20-03-102-014

03/21/13 3:30 PM AC005 65,850 41,630 50,000 41,630 (15,850) 0 88-20-03-252-026

03/21/13 3:30 PM AC006 147,010 125,790 128,000 125,790 (19,010) 0 88-20-04-132-022

03/21/13 3:30 PM AC007 220,080 220,080 212,500 212,500 (7,580) (7,580) 88-20-04-228-007

03/21/13 3:30 PM AC008 81,740 74,240 75,000 74,240 (6,740) 0 88-20-04-329-003

03/21/13 3:30 PM AC009 124,780 124,780 114,000 114,000 (10,780) (10,780) 88-20-05-478-012

03/21/13 3:30 PM AC010 106,380 87,040 95,000 87,040 (11,380) 0 88-20-10-127-044

03/21/13 3:30 PM AC011 281,160 225,910 225,000 225,000 (56,160) (910) 88-20-10-453-007

03/21/13 3:30 PM AC012 86,060 85,300 80,000 80,000 (6,060) (5,300) 88-20-15-303-003

03/21/13 3:30 PM AC013 163,070 155,060 155,000 155,000 (8,070) (60) 88-20-16-252-032

03/21/13 3:30 PM AC014 87,310 84,080 80,100 80,100 (7,210) (3,980) 88-20-16-476-004

03/21/13 3:30 PM AC015 172,080 165,510 155,000 155,000 (17,080) (10,510) 88-20-17-378-021

03/21/13 3:30 PM AC016 496,360 400,710 457,000 400,710 (39,360) 0 88-20-18-101-052

03/21/13 3:30 PM AC017 229,770 219,650 217,730 217,730 (12,040) (1,920) 88-20-18-252-006

03/21/13 3:30 PM AC018 137,860 119,310 124,000 119,310 (13,860) 0 88-20-19-351-007

03/21/13 3:30 PM AC019 127,130 123,660 119,000 119,000 (8,130) (4,660) 88-20-20-129-002

03/21/13 3:30 PM AC020 74,990 50,900 64,000 50,900 (10,990) 0 88-20-20-426-044

03/21/13 3:30 PM AC021 88,030 88,030 80,000 80,000 (8,030) (8,030) 88-20-21-227-007

03/21/13 3:30 PM AC022 90,200 86,300 88,000 86,300 (2,200) 0 88-20-23-404-018

03/21/13 3:30 PM AC023 80,140 80,140 76,500 76,500 (3,640) (3,640) 88-20-24-181-017

03/21/13 3:30 PM AC024 96,130 96,130 86,000 86,000 (10,130) (10,130) 88-20-24-201-022

03/21/13 3:30 PM AC025 42,070 40,240 34,500 34,500 (7,570) (5,740) 88-20-27-476-001

Petitioner/Appraiser Affidavits for Change - Approved by Board of Review

2013 March Board of Review

licarila
Text Box
33



Parcel ID 2013 A/V 2013 T/V Bor A/V BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V Appeal # Time Date Page

88-20-01-151-050 169,740 166,680 165,000 165,000 (4,740) (1,680) AC001 03:30PM 03/21/13 33
88-20-01-151-051 203,130 200,050 195,000 195,000 (8,130) (5,050) AC002 03:30PM 03/21/13 33
88-20-01-402-009 120,540 118,780 116,000 116,000 (4,540) (2,780) AC003 03:30PM 03/21/13 33
88-20-01-480-004 157,570 157,060 152,500 152,500 (5,070) (4,560) 036 02:50PM 03/12/13 12
88-20-02-202-012 150,970 150,970 150,970 150,970 0 0 019 10:10AM 03/11/13 6
88-20-02-426-025 137,010 137,010 130,000 130,000 (7,010) (7,010) 040 06:40PM 03/12/13 13
88-20-03-102-014 120,200 120,200 110,500 110,500 (9,700) (9,700) AC004 03:30PM 03/21/13 33

 88-20-03- 73,270 37,170 0 0 (73,270) (37,170) P001 03:00PM 03/21/13 29
88-20-03-203-005 356,430 335,640 356,430 335,640 0 0 017 09:20AM 03/11/13 5
88-20-03-228-001 55,250 55,250 30,000 30,000 (25,250) (25,250) C001 02:00PM 03/21/13 18
88-20-03-228-002 55,250 55,250 30,000 30,000 (25,250) (25,250) C001 02:00PM 03/21/13 18
88-20-03-228-004 55,250 55,250 30,000 30,000 (25,250) (25,250) C001 02:00PM 03/21/13 18
88-20-03-228-006 55,250 55,250 30,000 30,000 (25,250) (25,250) C001 02:00PM 03/21/13 18
88-20-03-228-008 55,250 55,250 30,000 30,000 (25,250) (25,250) C001 02:00PM 03/21/13 18
88-20-03-228-009 55,250 55,250 30,000 30,000 (25,250) (25,250) C001 02:00PM 03/21/13 19
88-20-03-229-013 855,960 855,960 855,960 855,960 0 0 C002 02:00PM 03/21/13 19
88-20-03-252-026 65,850 41,630 50,000 41,630 (15,850) 0 AC005 03:30PM 03/21/13 33
88-20-04-132-022 147,010 125,790 128,000 125,790 (19,010) 0 AC006 03:30PM 03/21/13 33
88-20-04-156-002 126,220 125,470 126,220 125,470 0 0 012 06:10PM 03/05/13 3
88-20-04-178-014 136,260 136,260 136,260 136,260 0 0 030 01:30PM 03/12/13 9
88-20-04-228-007 220,080 220,080 212,500 212,500 (7,580) (7,580) AC007 03:30PM 03/21/13 33
88-20-04-252-012 97,190 97,190 97,190 97,190 0 0 004 03:00PM 03/05/13 1
88-20-04-326-006 88,930 84,990 88,930 84,990 0 0 001 01:00PM 03/05/13 1
88-20-04-329-003 81,740 74,240 75,000 74,240 (6,740) 0 AC008 03:30PM 03/21/13 33

 88 20 04 88 310 88 310 0 0 (88 310) (88 310) P002 03:00PM 03/21/13 29

City of Troy - Assessing Department
2013 March Board of Review Cross Index Listing

 88-20-04- 88,310 88,310 0 0 (88,310) (88,310) P002 03:00PM 03/21/13 29
88-20-05-126-004 127,250 127,250 110,000 110,000 (17,250) (17,250) 013 06:20PM 03/05/13 4
88-20-05-427-003 150,000 150,000 150,000 150,000 0 0 C003 02:00PM 03/21/13 19
88-20-05-428-013 123,850 123,850 113,600 113,600 (10,250) (10,250) C004 02:00PM 03/21/13 19
88-20-05-454-002 110,920 110,920 110,920 110,920 0 0 011 06:00PM 03/05/13 3
88-20-05-478-012 124,780 124,780 114,000 114,000 (10,780) (10,780) AC009 03:30PM 03/21/13 33

 88-20-05- 119,400 112,290 119,400 112,290 0 0 P003 03:00PM 03/21/13 29
88-20-06-278-003 226,300 191,920 212,500 191,920 (13,800) 0 046 07:50PM 03/12/13 15
88-20-06-351-003 127,960 127,960 127,960 127,960 0 0 C005 02:00PM 03/21/13 19
88-20-07-101-011 327,590 303,810 327,590 303,810 0 0 003 02:00PM 03/05/13 1
88-20-07-102-028 152,430 150,080 145,100 145,100 (7,330) (4,980) C006 02:00PM 03/21/13 20
88-20-07-227-009 265,290 244,820 265,290 244,820 0 0 C013 02:00PM 03/21/13 21
88-20-07-278-012 302,120 300,080 290,000 290,000 (12,120) (10,080) C007 02:00PM 03/21/13 20
88-20-07-401-010 147,320 145,380 141,980 141,980 (5,340) (3,400) 023 01:20PM 03/11/13 7
88-20-07-428-006 131,110 129,660 131,110 129,660 0 0 047 08:00PM 03/12/13 15
88-20-07-478-004 128,980 106,150 128,980 106,150 0 0 C008 02:00PM 03/21/13 20
88-20-08-376-213 54,580 52,150 54,580 52,150 0 0 C009 02:00PM 03/21/13 20
88-20-09-232-011 567,190 547,840 530,830 530,830 (36,360) (17,010) C010 02:00PM 03/21/13 20

 88-20-09- 67,160 67,160 0 0 (67,160) (67,160) P004 03:00PM 03/21/13 29
88-20-09-427-037 158,860 120,930 158,860 120,930 0 0 038 06:00PM 03/12/13 13
88-20-10-126-039 108,420 101,700 108,420 101,700 0 0 C011 02:00PM 03/21/13 21
88-20-10-127-038 114,420 106,490 114,420 106,490 0 0 C013 02:00PM 03/21/13 21
88-20-10-127-044 106,380 87,040 95,000 87,040 (11,380) 0 AC010 03:30PM 03/21/13 33
88-20-10-377-002 95,720 95,720 95,720 95,720 0 0 C012 02:00PM 03/21/13 21
88-20-10-380-028 214,870 173,970 167,500 167,500 (47,370) (6,470) 005 03:10PM 03/05/13 2
88-20-10-426-018 20,750 20,750 20,750 20,750 0 0 006 03:30PM 03/05/13 2
88-20-10-426-019 58,100 58,100 58,100 58,100 0 0 007 03:30PM 03/05/13 2
88-20-10-426-020 25,020 25,020 25,020 25,020 0 0 008 03:30PM 03/05/13 2

2013 March Board of Review Cross Index - Page 1 of 3



Parcel ID 2013 A/V 2013 T/V Bor A/V BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V Appeal # Time Date Page

88-20-10-426-021 45,230 45,230 45,230 45,230 0 0 009 03:30PM 03/05/13 3
88-20-10-453-007 281,160 225,910 225,000 225,000 (56,160) (910) AC011 03:30PM 03/21/13 33

 88-20-11- 76,530 76,530 0 0 (76,530) (76,530) P005 03:00PM 03/21/13 29
 88-20-11- 76,320 76,320 76,320 76,320 0 0 P006 03:00PM 03/21/13 30

88-20-12-103-012 96,580 93,910 96,580 93,910 0 0 029 01:20PM 03/12/13 9
88-20-12-127-029 94,560 92,080 94,560 92,080 0 0 028 01:10PM 03/12/13 9
88-20-12-257-006 94,180 91,680 94,180 91,680 0 0 035 02:30PM 03/12/13 12
88-20-12-351-035 153,130 119,600 153,130 119,600 0 0 015 09:00AM 03/11/13 5
88-20-13-252-018 84,750 77,060 84,750 77,060 0 0 039 06:30PM 03/12/13 13
88-20-14-101-003 74,640 74,640 74,640 74,640 0 0 033 02:10PM 03/12/13 11
88-20-14-101-021 51,630 41,770 51,630 41,770 0 0 031 01:40PM 03/12/13 10

 88-20-14- 103,000 94,060 103,000 94,060 0 0 P007 03:00PM 03/21/13 30
88-20-14-205-015 82,320 81,140 82,320 81,140 0 0 025 02:10PM 03/11/13 8
88-20-14-307-041 125,080 124,220 125,080 124,220 0 0 C014 02:00PM 03/21/13 22
88-20-14-307-049 35,460 27,710 35,460 27,710 0 0 C014 02:00PM 03/21/13 22
88-20-14-307-050 35,460 27,710 35,460 27,710 0 0 C014 02:00PM 03/21/13 22
88-20-14-307-051 42,560 32,590 42,560 32,590 0 0 C014 02:00PM 03/21/13 22
88-20-14-426-034 409,930 409,930 305,700 305,700 (104,230) (104,230) C015 02:00PM 03/21/13 23
88-20-14-451-034 67,510 41,770 67,510 41,770 0 0 031 01:40PM 03/12/13 10

 88-20-15- 87,670 87,670 0 0 (87,670) (87,670) P008 03:00PM 03/21/13 30
88-20-15-303-003 86,060 85,300 80,000 80,000 (6,060) (5,300) AC012 03:30PM 03/21/13 33
88-20-15-476-038 60,540 43,520 42,500 42,500 (18,040) (1,020) 049 08:20PM 03/12/13 15
88-20-16-252-032 163,070 155,060 155,000 155,000 (8,070) (60) AC013 03:30PM 03/21/13 33
88-20-16-403-010 55,250 55,250 30,000 30,000 (25,250) (25,250) C016 02:00PM 03/21/13 23
88 20 16 403 011 55 250 55 250 30 000 30 000 (25 250) (25 250) C016 02:00PM 03/21/13 23

2013 March Board of Review Cross Index Listing
City of Troy - Assessing Department

88-20-16-403-011 55,250 55,250 30,000 30,000 (25,250) (25,250) C016 02:00PM 03/21/13 23
88-20-16-403-015 55,250 55,250 30,000 30,000 (25,250) (25,250) C016 02:00PM 03/21/13 23
88-20-16-403-016 55,250 55,250 30,000 30,000 (25,250) (25,250) C016 02:00PM 03/21/13 23
88-20-16-476-004 87,310 84,080 80,100 80,100 (7,210) (3,980) AC014 03:30PM 03/21/13 33
88-20-17-276-036 195,390 195,390 186,880 186,880 (8,510) (8,510) 010 04:10PM 03/05/13 3
88-20-17-378-021 172,080 165,510 155,000 155,000 (17,080) (10,510) AC015 03:30PM 03/21/13 33
88-20-18-101-052 496,360 400,710 457,000 400,710 (39,360) 0 AC016 03:30PM 03/21/13 33
88-20-18-252-006 229,770 219,650 217,730 217,730 (12,040) (1,920) AC017 03:30PM 03/21/13 33
88-20-18-428-005 201,490 195,020 201,490 195,020 0 0 044 07:30PM 03/12/13 14
88-20-18-477-071 239,840 239,840 239,840 239,840 0 0 C017 02:00PM 03/21/13 24
88-20-19-128-019 101,620 94,490 91,500 91,500 (10,120) (2,990) 041 07:00PM 03/12/13 13
88-20-19-153-003 82,160 73,610 82,160 73,610 0 0 C018 02:00PM 03/21/13 24
88-20-19-226-010 129,330 102,910 124,500 102,910 (4,830) 0 002 01:50PM 03/05/13 1
88-20-19-303-007 96,230 89,390 89,500 89,390 (6,730) 0 043 07:20PM 03/12/13 14
88-20-19-331-007 88,190 88,170 86,110 86,110 (2,080) (2,060) 024 02:00PM 03/11/13 7
88-20-19-351-007 137,860 119,310 124,000 119,310 (13,860) 0 AC018 03:30PM 03/21/13 33
88-20-19-377-026 125,300 123,760 118,650 118,650 (6,650) (5,110) 014 06:30PM 03/05/13 4
88-20-20-129-002 127,130 123,660 119,000 119,000 (8,130) (4,660) AC019 03:30PM 03/21/13 33
88-20-20-227-031 72,190 68,560 72,190 68,560 0 0 016 09:10AM 03/11/13 5
88-20-20-426-044 74,990 50,900 64,000 50,900 (10,990) 0 AC020 03:30PM 03/21/13 33

 88-20-21- 101,140 101,140 0 0 (101,140) (101,140) P009 03:00PM 03/21/13 30
88-20-21-226-002 84,100 76,230 80,000 76,230 (4,100) 0 032 02:00PM 03/12/13 11
88-20-21-227-007 88,030 88,030 80,000 80,000 (8,030) (8,030) AC021 03:30PM 03/21/13 33
88-20-22-201-008 93,370 85,080 93,370 85,080 0 0 031 01:40PM 03/12/13 10

 88-20-22- 85,870 85,870 0 0 (85,870) (85,870) P010 03:00PM 03/21/13 30
88-20-22-276-028 70,290 63,950 64,000 63,950 (6,290) 0 C019 02:00PM 03/21/13 24
88-20-22-327-019 201,660 175,380 201,660 175,380 0 0 027 01:00PM 03/12/13 9

 88-20-22- 79,920 79,920 0 0 (79,920) (79,920) P011 03:00PM 03/21/13 31

2013 March Board of Review Cross Index - Page 2 of 3



Parcel ID 2013 A/V 2013 T/V Bor A/V BoR T/V Change A/V Change T/V Appeal # Time Date Page

88-20-23-201-004 94,260 90,320 90,500 90,320 (3,760) 0 048 08:10PM 03/12/13 15
88-20-23-353-016 61,890 36,550 61,890 36,550 0 0 031 01:40PM 03/12/13 10
88-20-23-402-013 82,040 68,350 82,040 68,350 0 0 C013 02:00PM 03/21/13 21
88-20-23-404-018 90,200 86,300 88,000 86,300 (2,200) 0 AC022 03:30PM 03/21/13 33
88-20-23-406-029 90,070 86,240 90,070 86,240 0 0 050 08:30PM 03/12/13 16

 88-20-24- 76,540 76,540 76,540 76,540 0 0 P012 03:00PM 03/21/13 31
88-20-24-181-017 80,140 80,140 76,500 76,500 (3,640) (3,640) AC023 03:30PM 03/21/13 33
88-20-24-201-022 96,130 96,130 86,000 86,000 (10,130) (10,130) AC024 03:30PM 03/21/13 33
88-20-24-203-006 215,080 213,610 200,000 200,000 (15,080) (13,610) C020 02:00PM 03/21/13 24
88-20-24-203-007 202,430 201,170 202,430 201,170 0 0 C021 02:00PM 03/21/13 24
88-20-24-451-049 108,980 108,980 87,500 87,500 (21,480) (21,480) 037 03:30PM 03/12/13 12
88-20-25-201-013 85,710 81,260 85,710 81,260 0 0 C022 02:00PM 03/21/13 25
88-20-25-255-006 68,480 66,210 68,480 66,210 0 0 C023 02:00PM 03/21/13 25
88-20-25-351-029 65,360 53,760 65,360 53,760 0 0 C021 02:00PM 03/21/13 25
88-20-26-126-015 844,860 805,880 844,860 805,880 0 0 C025 02:00PM 03/21/13 25
88-20-26-351-020 251,470 251,470 251,470 251,470 0 0 C026 02:00PM 03/21/13 25
88-20-26-427-001 21,490 21,490 21,490 21,490 0 0 022 01:00PM 03/11/13 7
88-20-27-157-037 49,890 47,420 45,000 45,000 (4,890) (2,420) C027 02:00PM 03/21/13 26
88-20-27-276-004 215,970 204,980 184,690 184,690 (31,280) (20,290) C028 02:00PM 03/21/13 26
88-20-27-279-026 430,750 430,750 392,830 392,830 (37,920) (37,920) C029 02:00PM 03/21/13 26
88-20-27-377-020 30,630 28,040 30,630 28,040 0 0 034 02:20PM 03/12/13 12
88-20-27-403-008 52,330 48,830 47,500 47,500 (4,830) (1,330) C030 02:00PM 03/21/13 26
88-20-27-431-004 51,130 51,130 45,000 45,000 (6,130) (6,130) C031 02:00PM 03/21/13 26

 88-20-27- 48,280 48,280 48,280 48,280 0 0 P013 03:00PM 03/21/13 31
88 20 27 476 001 42 070 40 240 34 500 34 500 (7 570) (5 740) AC025 03:30PM 03/21/13 33

City of Troy - Assessing Department
2013 March Board of Review Cross Index Listing

88-20-27-476-001 42,070 40,240 34,500 34,500 (7,570) (5,740) AC025 03:30PM 03/21/13 33
88-20-28-401-087 277,020 277,020 277,020 277,020 0 0 C032 02:00PM 03/21/13 27

 88-20-28- 28,220 6,860 28,220 6,860 0 0 P014 03:00PM 03/21/13 31
 88-20-28- 42,530 33,430 42,530 33,430 0 0 P014 03:00PM 03/21/13 31

88-20-28-478-040 89,110 87,350 89,110 87,350 0 0 C033 02:00PM 03/21/13 27
88-20-28-478-043 89,100 87,340 89,100 87,340 0 0 C034 02:00PM 03/21/13 27
88-20-30-126-082 69,480 64,000 69,480 64,000 0 0 042 07:10PM 03/12/13 14
88-20-31-228-042 74,040 69,710 74,040 69,710 0 0 C013 02:00PM 03/21/13 22
88-20-34-178-022 240,010 240,010 240,010 240,010 0 0 C035 02:00PM 03/21/13 27
88-20-34-201-001 343,520 343,520 225,000 225,000 (118,520) (118,520) C036 02:00PM 03/21/13 27
88-20-36-126-007 85,280 85,280 85,280 85,280 0 0 018 09:30AM 03/11/13 5

 88-20-36- 74,890 69,600 74,890 69,600 0 0 P015 03:00PM 03/21/13 32
88-20-36-201-042 78,890 77,490 78,890 77,490 0 0 026 02:30PM 03/11/13 8
88-20-36-201-044 34,000 26,720 22,500 22,500 (11,500) (4,220) 020 10:20AM 03/11/13 6
88-20-36-227-033 47,470 47,470 36,000 36,000 (11,470) (11,470) 031 01:40PM 03/12/13 11
88-20-36-227-046 42,490 34,400 42,490 34,400 0 0 031 01:40PM 03/12/13 11
88-20-36-227-072 34,000 34,000 21,250 21,250 (12,750) (12,750) 021 11:00AM 03/11/13 6
88-20-36-227-073 34,000 34,000 21,250 21,250 (12,750) (12,750) 021 11:00AM 03/11/13 6
88-20-36-227-074 34,000 34,000 21,250 21,250 (12,750) (12,750) 021 11:00AM 03/11/13 7
88-20-36-401-031 149,340 149,340 130,300 130,300 (19,040) (19,040) C037 02:00PM 03/21/13 28
88-20-36-426-008 61,370 38,400 37,500 37,500 (23,870) (900) 045 07:40PM 03/12/13 14
88-99-00-362-920 257,250 257,250 257,250 257,250 0 0 051 02:00PM 03/21/13 17
88-99-00-387-940 51,630 51,630 51,630 51,630 0 0 C038 02:00PM 03/21/13 28
88-99-00-397-130 82,250 82,250 82,250 82,250 0 0 C038 02:00PM 03/21/13 28

2013 March Board of Review Cross Index - Page 3 of 3



stewartc
Text Box
O-02b













stewartc
Text Box
O-02c



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF TROY 
INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED 
MARCH 31, 2013 

  

stewartc
Text Box
O-02d



CITY OF TROY 
QUARTERLY REPORT 

NINE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2013 
HIGHLIGHTS 

 
General Fund 
 
Revenues 
Total revenues are $43.1 million to date. This includes recognition of total annual 
tax revenues of $29.5 million. Revenues are slightly down $640 thousand 
compared to the same period last year. This decrease is primarily due to a 
decrease in tax revenues of $531 thousand due from the decrease in taxable 
value.  
 
Licenses and Permits – Non Business in the amount of $1.6 million are up 
compared to budget and prior year to date amounts by $533 thousand or 49% 
due to the increase in building permits. This increase is offset by Other Financing 
Sources down $300 thousand. 
 
Expenditures  
Total expenditures to date amount to $34.1 million and are up $791 thousand 
compared to prior year to date amounts. The increase is primarily due to building 
inspection contractual fees up $477 thousand which are based, in part, on 
building inspection revenues (revenue section above). 
 
Refuse Fund 
 
Revenues 
Refuse revenues are $4.5 million to date. This represents an increase of $297 
thousand from prior year due to the increase in the millage rate of 0.09 mils 
required to meet escalating costs. 
 
 



Expenditures 
Expenditures to date of $3.1 million are up $153 thousand from the same time 
period in the prior year and represent 69.38 percent of budgeted expenditures for 
the year. 
 
DDA Fund 
 
Revenues 
Revenues of $510 thousand are down $634 thousand from prior year at this time 
due to the decrease in tax revenues from the decline in taxable value of property 
within the district. 
 
Revenues compared to budget are down $3.4 million due to the budgeted use of 
fund balance in the Other Financing Sources of $3.4 million. 
 
Expenditures 
Expenditures of $3.3 million primarily represent debt principal and interest 
payments and are in line with amortization schedules and prior year amounts. In 
addition, due to restrictions on debt reserves, dollars typically used to reimburse 
the General Fund for street island maintenance and administrative fees of the 
District have not occurred. Accordingly, General Fund expenditures for DDA street 
island maintenance have been significantly reduced. 
 
Library Fund 
 
Revenues 
Revenues of $3.2 million are down $28 thousand from the same time period in 
the prior year. This decline is due to the reduction of taxable values. 
 
Expenditures 
Expenditures of $2.1 million are up $361 thousand from the prior year during this 
time frame. The increase is primarily due to the current year rescaling for full 
operations and the change in operating days/times.  



 
Capital Fund 
 
Revenues 
Revenues of $9.5 million are up $1.26 million from the same time period in the 
prior year despite a loss in tax revenues of $135 thousand. The increase is in grant 
funding for the Transit Center of $924 thousand and $300 thousand for charges 
related to Tri-Party road projects. 
 
Expenditures 
Expenditures for capital projects of $6.0 million represent 32.22 percent of 
budgeted expenditures. This compares to 25.89 percent of budgeted 
expenditures to the same time period in the prior year. Major expenditures 
include the Transit Center and Streets, Drain projects. 
 
Sanctuary Lake Golf Course 
 
Revenues of $758 thousand are down $119 thousand from the same time period 
in the prior year. This is primarily due to prior year round play during the January 
through March months from exceptionally fair weather. Expenditures are down 
$200 thousand due to timing changes in the refunding of golf course bonds. 
 
Sylvan Glen Golf Course 
 
Revenues of $750 thousand are down $84 thousand from the same time period in 
the prior year. This is primarily due to prior year round play during the January 
through March months from exceptionally fair weather. Expenditures are up $17 
thousand due to Billy Casper operation expenses. 
 
 
 
 
 



Aquatic Center 
 
Aquatic Center revenues of $283 thousand are comparable with prior year 
amounts during the same time period. Expenditures of $331 thousand are down 
$7 thousand for the same period. 
 
Sewer Fund 
 
Revenues 
Sewer fund revenues of $10.9 million are up $3.3 million primarily from 
consumption (up 12 mcf(s)) and rate increases. In addition Charges for Services 
(Tap in Fees) are up $80 thousand compared to the prior year period. 
 
Expenditures 
Sewer fund expenses are up $517 thousand compared to the prior year period. 
This is due to increased costs and consumption. It should be noted that the March 
2013 billings from the County have not been received to date and accordingly are 
not reflected in this statement. It is estimated that the additional expense is 
approximately $500 thousand. 
 
Water Fund 
 
Revenues 
Water fund revenues of $13.2 million are up $3.9 million due primarily from 
consumption (up 12 mcf(s)) and rate increases. In addition Charges for Services 
(Tap in Fees) are up $174 thousand compared to the prior year period. 
 
Expenditures 
Water fund expenses of $12.0 million are also up $1.4 million due primarily from 
consumption and rate increases. It should be noted that the March 2013 billings 
from DWSD have not been received to date and accordingly are not reflected in 
this statement. It is estimated that the additional expense is approximately $680 
thousand. 



 May 08, 2013  1 / 11 

Description
Last Year

Total Actual
Last Year 
Budget

Last Year 
Year to Date

Last Year % 
to Budget

Current Year 
Budget

Current Year 
Year to Date

Current Year % 
to Budget

General Fund Revenues
TAXES 30,424,031 30,163,000 30,053,329 99.64% 29,658,000 29,522,263 99.54
LICENSES AND PERMITS - BUSINESS 49,817 47,700 37,836 79.32% 45,050 47,350 105.10
LICENSES AND PERMITS - NON-BUSINESS 1,636,815 1,452,500 1,087,343 74.86% 1,360,500 1,621,116 119.16
FEDERAL GRANTS 7,708 32,000 511,225 1597.58% 7,000 0 0.00
STATE GRANTS 6,244,481 5,302,300 3,222,037 60.77% 5,597,000 3,267,071 58.37
CONTRIBUTIONS FROM LOCAL UNITS 19,166 15,000 7,924 52.83% 15,000 22,445 149.63
CHARGES FOR SERVICES - FEES 1,719,200 1,519,000 802,706 52.84% 1,590,000 884,958 55.66
CHARGES FOR SERVICES - RENDERED 2,387,604 2,057,191 729,219 35.45% 2,181,585 911,986 41.80
CHARGES FOR SERVICES - SALES 78,805 100,800 63,151 62.65% 94,000 136,917 145.66
CHARGES FOR SERVICES - REC 2,854,401 2,633,000 2,203,079 83.67% 2,591,000 2,230,451 86.08
FINES AND FORFEITURES 1,054,672 1,052,000 841,012 79.94% 725,900 625,298 86.14
INTEREST & RENT 1,004,630 1,074,340 741,727 69.04% 1,051,100 702,623 66.85
OTHER REVENUE 709,340 695,500 554,090 79.67% 733,770 535,580 72.99
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 4,011,400 9,044,640 2,860,596 31.63% 4,883,654 2,567,539 52.57

Total General Fund Revenues 52,202,070 55,188,971 43,715,274 79.21% 50,533,559 43,075,597 85.24

General Fund Expenditures
FINANCE 2,909,728 2,732,875 2,239,583 81.95% 2,911,973 1,913,447 65.71
POLICE 21,529,472 27,873,319 15,790,799 56.65% 22,917,408 15,487,854 67.58
FIRE 3,784,058 4,234,198 2,857,202 67.48% 4,541,551 3,212,268 70.73
BUILDING INSPECTION 1,330,829 1,198,914 639,163 53.31% 1,194,244 1,116,202 93.47
ENGINEERING 1,680,728 1,949,125 1,222,499 62.72% 1,791,177 1,218,535 68.03
OTHER GENERAL GOVERNMENT 1,606,131 1,806,893 1,226,131 67.86% 1,803,921 1,182,162 65.53
COUNCIL/EXEC ADMINISTRATION 2,835,492 3,262,352 1,949,527 59.76% 3,247,645 2,223,936 68.48
STREETS, DRAINS AND PARKS 6,039,659 8,066,786 4,369,695 54.17% 7,862,776 4,760,373 60.54
RECREATION 3,927,293 3,956,543 2,919,201 73.78% 3,879,078 2,665,817 68.72
NATURE CENTER 43,703 35,007 28,840 82.38% 33,100 31,414 94.91
LIBRARY 0 0 0 0.00% 0 93 0.00
HISTORIC DISTRICT 74,911 72,960 38,782 53.16% 144,686 125,366 86.65
TRANSFERS OUT 111,785 0 0 0.00% 206,000 134,786 65.43

Total General Fund Expenditures 45,873,790 55,188,972 33,281,422 60.30% 50,533,559 34,072,253 67.43

Quarterly Financial Report
General Fund

For the Period Ending March 31, 2013



 May 08, 2013  2 / 11 

Description
Last Year

Total Actual
Last Year 
Budget

Last Year Year 
to Date

Last Year % to 
Budget

Current Year 
Budget

Current Year 
Year to Date

Current Year 
% to Budget

Refuse Fund Revenues
TAXES 4,168,478 4,140,180 4,197,385 101.38% 4,468,000 4,498,432 100.68
CHARGES FOR SERVICES - SALES 5,700 4,500 3,962 88.04% 4,500 4,480 99.56
INTEREST & RENT 12,393 8,000 12,115 151.44% 10,000 7,625 76.25

4,186,571 4,152,680 4,213,462 101.46% 4,482,500 4,510,537 100.63
Refuse Fund Expenditures
CONTRACTORS SERVICE 4,024,878 4,011,000 2,837,374 70.74% 4,205,000 2,927,271 69.61
OTHER REFUSE EXPENDITURE 140,531 59,076 43,411 73.48% 148,183 99,307 67.02
RECYCLING 50,916 82,604 36,704 44.43% 72,284 43,653 60.39

4,216,325 4,152,680 2,917,489 70.26% 4,425,467 3,070,231 69.38

Quarterly Financial Report
Refuse Fund

For the Period Ending March 31, 2013



 May 08, 2013  3 / 11 

Description
Last Year

Total Actual
Last Year 
Budget

Last Year Year 
to Date

Last Year % to 
Budget

Current Year 
Budget

Current Year Year 
to Date

Current Year % 
to Budget

Downtown Dev Authority Fund Revenues
TAXES 981,276 1,123,300 1,123,333 100.00% 498,000 506,976 101.80

INTEREST & RENT 16,887 45,000 19,752 43.89% 15,000 3,178 21.19

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 0 2,682,720 0 0.00% 3,437,670 0 0.00

998,164 3,851,020 1,143,085 29.68% 3,950,670 510,154 12.91
Downtown Dev Authority Fund Expenditures
OTHER GENERAL GOVERNMENT 506,561 150,000 253,320 168.88% 410,000 398,071 97.09

TRANSFERS OUT 3,669,496 3,701,020 3,323,298 89.79% 3,540,670 2,911,985 82.24

4,176,056 3,851,020 3,576,618 92.87% 3,950,670 3,310,056 83.78

Quarterly Financial Report
Downtown Dev Authority Fund

For the Period Ending March 31, 2013



 May 08, 2013  4 / 11 

Description
Last Year

Total Actual Last Year Budget
Last Year Year 

to Date
Last Year % to 

Budget
Current Year 

Budget
Current Year 
Year to Date

Current Year 
% to Budget

Library Fund Revenues
TAXES 3,037,539 3,060,593 3,060,593 100.00% 2,972,000 2,999,402 100.92

STATE GRANTS 51,538 15,271 15,272 100.01% 15,001 20,181 134.53

CONTRIBUTIONS FROM LOCAL UNITS 112,103 99,360 0 0.00% 99,000 2,123 2.14

CHARGES FOR SERVICES-FEES 8,027 14,800 7,390 49.93% 3,100 3,301 106.49

CHARGES FOR SERVICES-RENDERED 21,172 18,250 16,072 88.07% 19,250 14,736 76.55

CHARGES FOR SERVICES-SAL;ES 426 900 139 15.44% 50 534 1068.00

FINES AND FORFEITURES 100,327 105,000 72,899 69.43% 100,000 83,853 83.85

INTEREST AND RENT 16,391 15,300 10,584 69.18% 13,000 12,988 99.91

OTHER REVENUE 8,411 1,600 4,293 268.31% 2,750 22,108 803.93

3,355,934 3,331,074 3,187,242 95.68% 3,224,151 3,159,226 97.99
Library Fund Expenditures
LIBRARY 2,603,010 2,973,495 1,774,003 59.66% 3,128,850 2,134,816 68.23

2,603,010 2,973,495 1,774,003 59.66% 3,128,850 2,134,816 68.23

Quarterly Financial Report
Library Fund

For the Period Ending March 31, 2013



 May 08, 2013  5 / 11 

Description
Last Year

Total Actual
Last Year 
Budget

Last Year 
Year to Date

Last Year % 
to Budget

Current Year 
Budget

Current Year 
Year to Date

Current Year 
% to Budget

Capital Fund Revenues
TAXES 6,645,570 6,591,000 6,689,582 101.50% 0 6,554,859 100.60
FEDERAL GRANTS 511,225 1,146,100 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00
STATE GRANTS 346,811 9,587,500 -37,964 -0.40% 295,665 886,038 13.30
CONTRIBUTIONS FROM LOCAL UNITS 0 200,000 0 0.00% 0 283,006 151.34
CHARGES FOR SERVICES - FEES 127,533 136,000 69,049 50.77% 0 68,106 48.65
CHARGES FOR SERVICES - RENDERED 723,295 152,000 351,548 231.28% -2,837 72,232 20.40
FINES AND FORFEITURES 0 220,000 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00
INTEREST & RENT 59,518 127,200 67,551 53.11% 6,154 42,769 50.20
OTHER REVENUE 441,584 0 753 100.00% 189,490 261,515 0.00
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 1,817,911 7,531,860 1,124,819 14.93% 358,455 1,356,241 31.05

10,673,447 25,691,660 8,265,338 32.17% 846,926 9,524,765 52.02
Capital Fund Expenditures
FINANCE 147,887 0 0 0.00% -859 94,818 73.50
TRANSFERS OUT 11,615 1,584,430 41,108 2.59% 0 0 0.00
OTHER GENERAL GOVERNMENT 836,173 10,073,300 490,386 4.87% 917,755 1,794,641 26.01
POLICE 352,331 567,600 150,822 26.57% 0 8,590 3.58
FIRE 1,190,144 1,265,000 1,186,623 93.80% 0 533,436 91.19
COUNCIL/EXEC ADMINISTRATION 0 50,000 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00
STREETS, DRAINS AND PARKS 8,559,711 11,367,580 4,455,675 39.20% 378,360 3,081,945 32.54
RECREATION 0 70,000 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00
LIBRARY 467,911 557,500 300,656 53.93% 58,455 462,953 67.09
HISTORIC DISTRICT 0 50,000 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00

11,565,772 25,585,410 6,625,270 25.89% 1,353,711 5,976,383 32.22

Quarterly Financial Report
Capital Fund

For the Period Ending March 31, 2013



 May 08, 2013  6 / 11 

Description
Last Year

Total Actual
Last Year 
Budget

Last Year Year 
to Date

Last Year % to 
Budget

Current Year 
Budget

Current Year Year 
to Date

Current Year 
% to Budget

Sanctuary Lake Golf Course Revenues
CHARGES FOR SERVICES - SERVICES 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00
CHARGES FOR SERVICES - SALES 319,019 191,666 214,882 112.11% 207,147 143,398 69.23
CHARGES FOR SERVICES - REC 1,123,735 1,105,755 661,927 59.86% 1,158,311 614,266 53.03
INTEREST & RENT 0 0 0 0.00% 0 106 0.00

1,442,754 1,297,421 876,809 67.58% 1,365,458 757,771 55.50
Sanctuary Lake Golf Course Expenditures

SANCTUARY LAKE GREENS 1,335,027 1,246,420 776,305 62.28% 1,022,056 723,116 70.75
SANCTUARY LAKE PRO SHOP 486,361 887,680 249,277 28.08% 893,596 100,214 11.21
SANCTUARY LAKE CAPITAL 0 48,000 0 0.00% 58,000 1,470 2.53

1,821,387 2,182,100 1,025,582 47.00% 1,973,652 824,800 41.79

Quarterly Financial Report
Sanctuary Lake Golf Course

For the Period Ending March 31, 2013



 May 08, 2013  7 / 11 

Description
Last Year

Total Actual
Last Year 
Budget

Last Year 
Year to Date

Last Year % to 
Budget

Current Year 
Budget

Current Year 
Year to Date

Current Year 
% to Budget

Sylvan Glen Golf Course Revenues
CHARGES FOR SERVICES - SERVICES 0 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00
CHARGES FOR SERVICES - SALES 115,569 59,285 98,709 166.50% 34,886 28,072 80.47
CHARGES FOR SERVICES - REC 1,016,083 1,001,838 586,385 58.53% 1,033,967 577,878 55.89
INTEREST & RENT 163,980 169,200 149,009 88.07% 168,400 143,976 85.50
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 0 651,657 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00

1,295,632 1,881,980 834,103 44.32% 1,237,253 749,927 60.61
Sylvan Glen Golf Course Expenditures

SYLVAN GLEN GREENS 1,026,555 1,055,114 638,281 60.49% 911,957 649,050 71.17
SYLVAN GLEN PRO SHOP 35,203 831,400 40,125 4.83% 60,000 42,392 61.03
SYLVAN GLEN CAPITAL 0 0 0 0.00% 44,700 0 0.00

1,061,758 1,886,514 678,406 35.96% 1,016,657 691,442 68.01

Quarterly Financial Report
Sylvan Glen Golf Course

For the Period Ending March 31, 2013



 May 08, 2013  8 / 11 

Description
Last Year

Total Actual
Last Year 
Budget

Last Year 
Year to Date

Last Year % 
to Budget

Current Year 
Budget

Current Year Year 
to Date

Current Year % 
to Budget

Aquatic Center Fund Revenues
CHARGES FOR SERVICES - REC 541,326 467,000 266,782 57.13% 264 252,819 45.22
INTEREST & RENT 36,274 30,400 19,032 62.61% 2,400 30,306 99.69
OTHER REVENUE 157 0 -19 #DIV/0! 0 2 0.00

577,757 497,400 285,795 57.46% 2,664 283,126 48.03
Aquatic Center Fund Expenditures
AQUATIC CENTER 568,234 579,044 337,576 58.30% 7,146 330,624 54.14
CAPITAL 0 32,000 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00

568,234 611,044 337,576 55.25% 7,146 330,624 54.14

Quarterly Financial Report
Aquatic Center Fund

For the Period Ending March 31, 2013



 May 08, 2013  9 / 11 

Description
Last Year

Total Actual
Last Year 
Budget

Last Year Year 
to Date

Last Year % 
to Budget

Current Year 
Budget

Current Year 
Year to Date

Current Year % 
to Budget

Sewer Fund Revenues
CHARGES FOR SERVICES - FEES 120,366 100,000 43,601 43.60% 80,000 123,726 154.66
CHARGES FOR SERVICES - RENDERED 13,057,046 11,900,000 7,374,919 61.97% 12,950,000 10,637,948 82.15
INTEREST & RENT 109,592 175,000 125,043 71.45% 165,000 84,111 50.98
OTHER REVENUE 73,857 0 0 0.00% 0 7,000 0.00

13,360,860 12,175,000 7,543,563 61.96% 13,195,000 10,852,784 82.25
Sewer Fund Expenditures
COST OF SALES AND SERVICES 9,213,170 8,100,000 5,440,347 67.16% 9,600,000 6,468,984 67.39
ADMINISTRATION 1,817,257 1,715,697 911,951 53.15% 620,731 630,295 101.54
CAPITAL -5 1,788,000 285,126 15.95% 1,800,000 183,138 10.17
MAINTENANCE 749,556 987,837 503,151 50.93% 1,018,817 475,631 46.68
TRANSFERS OUT 596,316 652,820 434,120 66.50% 542,310 333,296 61.46

12,376,295 13,244,354 7,574,695 57.19% 13,581,858 8,091,344 59.57

Quarterly Financial Report
Sewer Fund

For the Period Ending March 31, 2013



 May 08, 2013  10 / 11 

Description
Last Year

Total Actual
Last Year 
Budget

Last Year 
Year to Date

Last Year % to 
Budget

Current Year 
Budget

Current Year 
Year to Date

Current Year % 
to Budget

Water Fund Revenues
CHARGES FOR SERVICES - FEES 626,435 610,000 484,394 79.41% 681,000 658,064 96.63
CHARGES FOR SERVICES - RENDERED 63,603 47,600 57,350 120.48% 51,000 41,775 81.91
CHARGES FOR SERVICES - SALES 15,229,689 13,795,000 8,654,715 62.74% 14,896,000 12,357,586 82.96
INTEREST & RENT 99,413 123,000 85,834 69.78% 122,000 64,677 53.01
OTHER REVENUE 76,746 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00
REIMBURSEMENTS 0 0 0 0.00% 0 91,187 0.00

16,095,886 14,575,600 9,282,293 63.68% 15,750,000 13,213,289 83.89
Water Fund Expenditures
TRANS AND DISTRIBUTION 208,663 365,687 163,160 44.62% 354,850 86,637 24.41
CUSTOMER INSTALLATION 103,615 104,305 76,264 73.12% 102,181 78,223 76.55
CONTRACTORS SERVICE 143,133 201,422 96,021 47.67% 197,650 135,309 68.46
MAIN TESTING 31,603 68,941 22,049 31.98% 67,642 24,363 36.02
MAINTENANCE OF MAINS 358,129 516,984 262,265 50.73% 492,976 209,190 42.43
MAINTENANCE OF SERVICES 189,385 300,732 141,065 46.91% 291,424 132,929 45.61
MAINTENANCE OF METERS 407,930 711,464 320,738 45.08% 587,486 371,904 63.30
MAINTENANCE OF HYDRANTS 216,848 374,176 182,577 48.79% 376,376 166,574 44.26
WATER METERS & TAP-INS 119,065 352,533 69,461 19.70% 337,459 154,848 45.89
COST OF SALES AND SERVICES 8,827,725 8,200,000 5,164,112 62.98% 9,115,000 6,420,862 70.44
ADMINISTRATION 3,191,021 2,734,959 1,780,423 65.10% 717,128 1,252,818 174.70
CAPITAL 0 5,110,000 2,143,401 41.95% 5,125,000 2,753,944 53.74
WATER METER READING 28,547 74,123 42,114 56.82% 65,928 51,419 77.99
ACCOUNTING & COLLECTING 95,194 95,728 139,524 145.75% 171,590 127,877 74.52

13,920,859 19,211,054 10,603,174 55.19% 18,002,690 11,966,894 66.47

Quarterly Financial Report
Water Fund

For the Period Ending March 31, 2013



 

 

 

 

 
 

SOCRRA  3910 W. Webster Road  Royal Oak  Michigan  48073  Phone 248.288.5150  Fax 248.435.0310  Email socrra@socrra.org 

www.socrra.org 

Printed on Post Consumer Recycled Content Paper 

Berkley  Beverly Hills  Birmingham  Clawson  Ferndale  Hazel Park  Huntington Woods  Lathrup Village  Oak Park  Pleasant Ridge  Royal Oak  Troy 

QUARTERLY REPORT 

APRIL 2013 

 

 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

  

Representative Municipality 

J. Bais-DiSessa City of Berkley 

C. Wilson Village of Beverly Hills 

L. Wood City of Birmingham 

M. Pollock City of Clawson 

A. Lynch City of Ferndale 

A. LeCureaux City of Hazel Park 

A. Allie City of Huntington Woods 

J. Mueller City of Lathrup Village 

R. Fortura City of Oak Park 

S. Ball City of Pleasant Ridge 

G. Rassel City of Royal Oak 

T. Richnak City of Troy 

 

 

OFFICERS 

  

Chair: J. Mueller 

Vice Chair: G. Rassel 

Secretary: C. Wilson 

Advisory Committee: A. Allie 

S. Ball 

J. Mueller 

G. Rassel 

 

 

 

J. A. McKeen General Manager 

R. Jackovich Operations Manager 

 

stewartc
Text Box
O-02e



 II 

                        April 2013 

 

 

Board of Trustees 

SOCRRA 

 

Subject:  Quarterly Report – April 2013 

 

Board Members: 

 

Attached is a copy of SOCRRA's Quarterly Report, covering the first nine months operation of 

the fiscal year 2012/13.  The report contains a financial statement of the Authority's operation 

and an outline of projects in progress or completed during the quarter.  The report also contains 

statistical information and other information of general interest to the members of the Board of 

Trustees, and the members of the governing body of each of the member municipalities of this 

Authority. 

 

FINANCIAL STATEMENT 

The total net income for the first 9 months of 2012/13 was $689,413 before capital expenses and 

depreciation, which is $240,777 more than budgeted.  This is $407,687 less than the net income 

reported for the first nine months of 2011/12.   

 

    Actual   Compared to Budget 

Revenue $14,716,466    -      $15,817   

 

Expenses $14,027,053 -     $256,594 

 

Net Operating Income $ 689,413 +   $ 240,777 

 

The decrease in revenue was due primarily to receiving lower prices for our recycled materials  

(-$504,000), which was partially offset by receiving higher than budgeted non-member refuse 

(+$342,000), member revenue (+$145,000) and non-member yard waste (+$9,000).  Revenue 

from the sale of recycled material totaled $965,000, which is a 32% reduction from the amount 

generated for the first nine months of 2011/12, and was 6.6% of total revenue.  Additional 

information on the prices for our recycled materials is in the Major Projects area of this report.   

 

Expenses were under over budget with decreases non-labor Administrative & General expense  

(-$189,000), contract expenses (-$164,000) and labor (-$5,000) partially offset by increases in 

maintenance (+$89,000) and supplies (+$15,000).  Additional financial detail is attached. 

 

As of March 28, 2013, our working capital was 12.8% based on unrestricted assets.  This is 

above the 7.5% working capital goal approved by the Board and is an improvement over the 

11.1% as of March 30, 2012.   

  



 III 

MATERIAL HANDLED 

 

The Authority processed 139,654 tons of refuse, yard waste and recyclables during the first nine 

months of the current fiscal year.  This represents a decrease of 1.7% or 2,401 total tons 

compared to the same period last year.  This decrease reverses the trend of increasing tonnage 

that we have observed over the last three years.  Refuse tonnage from the member communities 

decreased by 5.0%.  We had a large increase (12%) in non-member refuse tonnage, primarily 

from Car Trucking, Rizzo Services and Tringali Sanitation.  Recycling tonnage from the member 

communities increased by 1.5% compared to 2011/12.      

 

July 1 Through March 31 

 

 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 

Member Refuse 80,965 77,638 77,139 79,207 75,237 

Non-Member Refuse 5,161 8,608 21,596 18,526 20,837 

Member Recycling 12,507 12,346 12,716 13,079 13,279 

Non-Member Recycling 521 2,815 941 353 321 

Yard Waste 31,072 36,081 29,063 30,890 29,930 

TOTAL 130,226 137,488 141,455 142,055 139,654 

 

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES  

 

Capital expenditures for the first nine months of the fiscal year totaled $106,668 and were for a 

new forklift for the MRF ($25,000), partial payment for a new wire tie system for the baler at the 

MRF ($16,000), the purchase of a used shuttle truck for the Troy Transfer Station ($14,000), 

partial payments for the new loader ($13,000) at the Compost Site, concrete replacement at the 

Troy Transfer Station ($12,000), replacement fence at the landfill ($9,000), enlarging the 

retention basin at the compost site ($8,000), renovations to the MRF tour room ($5,000) and the 

initial work to relocate the compactor from Madison Heights to the cash customer drop off area 

at the MRF ($4,000).     

 

MAJOR PROJECTS 
 

RECYCLED COMMODITY PRICES 

 

The prices that we receive for our recycled paper and plastic products have been very low 

throughout the first six months of this year.  However, the prices for both paper and plastic have 

improved from the lowest prices, which were recorded in October of 2012.  The prices are 

significantly below the prices assumed in our budget, so our revenue from the sale of recycled 

materials is almost $500,000 below budget.  We are continuing to have to pay to recycle our 

mixed color glass.  We are continuing to ship about 30,000 pounds of the mixed #1-#7 injection 

molded plastics material for recycling every month.  We continue to have to pay to have this 

material recycled; however, we have identified two potential recyclers of this material that may 

pay a small price for this material.  Since all of the prices that we receive for our recycled 

materials are tied to market prices, we continue to expect significant month-to-month price 

fluctuations. 

 



 IV 

PROCESSING MATERIALS FROM OTHER COMMUNITIES 

 

Both Rizzo Services and Tringali Sanitation are continuing to bring us a significant amount of 

refuse from outside of the SOCRRA communities, despite the reopening of the Detroit 

incinerator.  The incremental revenue from Rizzo and Tringali helps us to offset the fixed costs 

of running the Troy Transfer Station.  Car Trucking has also approached us about using the Troy 

Transfer Station for refuse; we are developing an agreement with Car.   

  

COLLECTION CONTRACT REOPENERS 

 

In January, we started a process, which is allowed under our collection contracts, to review the 

pricing and services provided by the three collection contractors to the member communities.  

This caused two of our contractors to invoke the dispute resolution process contained in the 

contracts.  We held a meeting of the SOCRRA Advisory Committee with the three contractors in 

late April in order to identify possible methods of resolving this dispute.  As of the end of April, 

we are engaged in productive discussions with each of the three contractors.  I am optimistic that 

these discussions will result in contract amendments that will be reviewed with the SOCRRA 

Board in June. 

 

REUSE OF SOCRRA’S MADISON HEIGHTS FACILITY 

 

We are continuing to work with Rizzo Services to develop a plan for the reuse of SOCRRA’s 

Madison Heights property as a transfer station and single stream recycling processing center.  

Our discussions with Rizzo are progressing well.  We also met with representatives of Madison 

Heights in January to discuss this project.  We will be working with Madison Heights to ensure 

that issues important to them are addressed as we redevelop our property.  Our discussions with 

both Rizzo and Madison Heights have gone extremely well. 

 

ELECTRONICS RECYCLING 

 

At the February Board meeting, the Board approved a new contract for electronics recycling with 

Vintage Tech Recycling, which is located in Canton Twp. In the new contract, Vintage Tech 

increased the prices that they pay us for our recycled electronics.  Vintage Tech is also certified 

as both a Responsible Recycler and as an e-Steward by the Basel Action Network.  Having two 

third party certifications, both of which require external verification, offers SOCRRA significant 

assurances that our electronic materials are being recycled correctly.  One of the reasons that we 

are now being paid for our electronics is that the State of Michigan enacted legislation that 

requires manufacturers of televisions and computer equipment to have “take back” programs in 

place as of April of 2010.  Over the last two years, our electronics recycling program has 

changed from an annual cost of approximately $60,000 to annual revenue of about $12,000. 

 

As part of the new contract, Vintage Tech has offered to provide free electronics recycling for 

special events.  SOCRRA would continue to receive the revenue from materials collected at 

these events.  During May, Vintage Tech will be conducting electronics recycling events in 

Hazel Park and Huntington Woods.  If these events are successful, we will be working with each 

member community to conduct an electronics recycling event in the next year.  Vintage Tech 



 V 

will also be offering a service to pick up electronics for recycling at the front door of homes in 

the SOCRRA communities.  We are working with Vintage Tech and the member communities to 

determine how this service will be provided.    
 

SOLAR PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM AT THE COMPOST SITE 

 

We worked with a developer of solar photovoltaic systems to submit a proposal to DTE for a 

very large solar system that would be constructed over one of our old landfills at our Compost 

Site in Rochester Hills.  DTE would own and operate the system, receive the energy generated 

by the system and pay SOCRRA a modest lease fee.  This would be one of the largest solar 

photovoltaic systems in Michigan and would be an interesting use for a contaminated site.  

Unfortunately, DTE did not accept the proposal.   

 

ADVANCED DISPOSAL CONTRACT CONCERNS 

 

The transportation of the refuse from the SOCRRA communities to a landfill and the disposal in 

that landfill is covered by a contract with Veolia Waste.  In late 2012, Veolia Waste was 

acquired by Advanced Disposal.  We have been working with the attorney for Advanced 

Disposal to ensure that all of the documents required under our contract are correct and that 

SOCRRA is fully protected by these documents.  As of the end of April, most of the documents 

have been corrected and the contract security and insurance documents are in place.  The Board 

has requested that I bill Advanced Disposal for all of the legal fees that SOCRRA has 

experienced resolving these issues. 

 

PENSION FUNDING 

 

The SOCRRA Board approved some additional funding for the MERS plan that provides 

pension benefits for the retired and active salaried employees that provide services to both 

SOCRRA and SOCWA.  This pension plan is significantly underfunded and we plan to increase 

the funding level to about 100% over a five year period.  In order to make this pension 

contribution, we developed a cost sharing agreement between SOCRRA and SOCWA that was 

approved by both Boards.    

 

      Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

      Jeffrey A. McKeen, P.E. 

      General Manager 



SOCRRA
STATEMENT OF INCOME
JULY 1, 2012 THROUGH MARCH 31, 2013

REVENUES ESTIMATED ACTUAL VARIANCES

   
MEMBER SERVICES $12,595,383.00 $12,740,485.30 $145,102.30

  
NON-MEMBER REFUSE 495,000.00 836,559.99 341,559.99

   
NON MEMBER YARD WASTE 46,000.00 55,314.40 9,314.40

$13,136,383.00 $13,632,359.69 $495,976.69
   

RECYCLING  

NEWSPAPERS $670,000.00 $429,369.69 ($240,630.31)
BOXBOARD 215,000.00 116,998.94 ($98,001.06)
CARDBOARD 53,000.00 34,150.10 (18,849.90)
PLASTIC 338,000.00 244,307.96 (93,692.04)
SCRAP METAL 60,000.00 39,007.76 (20,992.24)
TIN CANS 104,000.00 69,615.62 (34,384.38)
NON FERROUS METAL 10,000.00 14,377.40 4,377.40
GLASS 7,500.00 7,577.00 77.00
BATTERIES 2,500.00 687.72 (1,812.28)
USED ELECTRONICS 9,500.00 8,948.53 (551.47)

$1,469,500.00 $965,040.72 ($504,459.28)

OTHER

REVENUES-COMPOST $27,000.00 $22,619.00 ($4,381.00)
INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS 11,500.00 13,639.18 2,139.18
RENTAL INCOME 68,900.00 65,772.50 (3,127.50)
GRANTS 0.00 0.00 0.00
MISC. INCOME 19,000.00 17,035.14 (1,964.86)
 $126,400.00 $119,065.82 ($7,334.18)

 
TOTAL REVENUES $14,732,283.00 $14,716,466.23 ($15,816.77)

BUDGET ACTUAL  
EXPENSES APPROPRIATIONS EXPENDITURES VARIANCES

MADISON HEIGHTS FACILITY $92,751.00 $93,637.12 $886.12
TROY TRANSFER FACILITY 1,833,590.00 2,079,851.45 246,261.45
MATERIAL RECOVERY FACILITY 770,800.00 880,015.22 109,215.22
HOUSEHOLD HAZARDOUS WASTE 173,725.00 174,400.42 675.42
COMPOST/LANDFILL FACILITY 263,183.00 276,981.23 13,798.23
ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL 963,606.00 708,897.14 (254,708.86)
COLLECTION  FEES 8,130,349.00 8,058,902.44 (71,446.56)
COLLECTION  & DISPOSAL FEES IN TRANSIT 2,055,643.00 1,754,367.76 (301,275.24)

$14,283,647.00 $14,027,052.78 ($256,594.22)  

REVENUES OVER EXPENSES $448,636.00 $689,413.45 $240,777.45

 
NET INCOME BEFORE DEPRECIATION $448,636.00 $689,413.45 $240,777.45

 
 

-1-  



SOCRRA
STATEMENT OF INCOME 
JULY 1, 2012 THROUGH MARCH 31, 2012
 TOTAL

REVENUE TONS AMOUNT
   

MEMBER SERVICES 75,236.56 $12,740,485.30

NON-MEMBER REFUSE 20,836.62 836,559.99

YARD WASTE   
MEMBERS 29,416.90 0.00
OTHERS 512.95 55,314.40

RECYCLABLES   
MEMBERS 13,279.36 0.00
OTHERS 371.86 0.00

139,654.25 $13,632,359.69
RECYCLING   

NEWSPAPERS $429,369.69
BOXBOARD 116,998.94
CARDBOARD 34,150.10
PLASTIC 244,307.96
SCRAP METAL 39,007.76
TIN CANS 69,615.62
NON FERROUS METAL 14,377.40
GLASS 7,577.00
BATTERIES 687.72
USED ELECTRONICS 8,948.53

$965,040.72
 

OTHER  
COMPOST SALES $22,619.00
INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS 13,639.18
RENTAL INCOME 65,772.50
GRANTS 0.00
MISC. INCOME 17,035.14

$119,065.82

TOTAL REVENUE $14,716,466.23

EXPENSES
MADISON HEIGHTS FACILITY $93,637.12
TROY TRANSFER FACILITY 2,079,851.45
MATERIAL RECOVERY FACILITY 880,015.22
HOUSEHOLD HAZARDOUS WASTE 174,400.42
COMPOST/LANDFILL FACILITY 276,981.23
ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL 708,897.14
COLLECTION  CONTRACT EXPENSES 8,058,902.44
COLLECTION  & DISPOSAL FEES IN TRANSIT 1,754,367.76

$14,027,052.78  
 
NET INCOME BEFORE DEPRECIATION $689,413.45

 
DEPRECIATION 308,478.51  

 
NET INCOME $380,934.94

  
  

 
-2-



SOCRRA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES
COMPARED WITH TOTAL BUDGET
JULY 1, 2012 THROUGH MARCH 31, 2013

TOTAL
BUDGET ACTUAL

REVENUES 2012/13 9 MONTHS BALANCE
 

MEMBERS SERVICES $16,793,838.00 $12,740,485.30 $4,053,352.70 76%
NON-MEMBER REFUSE 690,000.00 836,559.99 (146,559.99) 121%

 
YARD WASTE

NON-MEMBERS 64,000.00 55,314.40 8,685.60 86%

$17,547,838.00 $13,632,359.69 $3,915,478.31
RECYCLABLES

NEWSPAPERS $1,010,000.00 $429,369.69 $580,630.31 43%
BOXBOARD 320,000.00 116,998.94 203,001.06
CARDBOARD 80,000.00 34,150.10 45,849.90 43%
PLASTIC 500,000.00 244,307.96 255,692.04 49%
SCRAP METAL 92,000.00 39,007.76 52,992.24 42%
TIN CANS 156,000.00 69,615.62 86,384.38 45%
NON FERROUS METAL 15,000.00 14,377.40 622.60 96%
GLASS 10,000.00 7,577.00 2,423.00 76%
BATTERIES 4,000.00 687.72 3,312.28 17%
USED ELECTRONICS 12,000.00 8,948.53 3,051.47 75%

$2,199,000.00 $965,040.72 $1,233,959.28 44%

OTHER 

COMPOST SALES $50,000.00 $22,619.00 $27,381.00 45%
INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS 16,000.00 13,639.18 2,360.82 85%
RENTAL OF HOMES 92,000.00 65,772.50 26,227.50 71%
GRANTS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0%
MISC. INCOME 25,000.00 17,035.14 7,964.86 68%

$183,000.00 $119,065.82 $63,934.18 65%

TOTAL REVENUES $19,929,838.00 $14,716,466.23 $5,213,371.77 74%

 

 
 

-3-



SOCRRA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES  
COMPARED WITH TOTAL BUDGET
JULY 1, 2012 THROUGH MARCH 31, 2013

TOTAL BUDGET ACTUAL
EXPENSES 2012/13 9 MONTHS BALANCE

MADISON HEIGHTS FACILITY $104,790.00 $93,637.12 $11,152.88 89%
TROY TRANSFER FACILITY 3,110,350.00 2,079,851.45 1,030,498.55 67%
MATERIAL RECOVERY FACILITY 1,066,530.00 880,015.22 186,514.78 83%
HOUSEHOLD HAZARDOUS WASTE 233,650.00 174,400.42 59,249.58 75%
COMPOST/LANDFILL FACILITY 399,414.00 276,981.23 122,432.77 69%
ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL 1,288,100.00 708,897.14 579,202.86 55%
COLLECTION  & DISPOSAL FEES 12,690,919.00 8,058,902.44 4,632,016.56 64%
COLLECTION  & DISPOSAL FEES IN TRANSIT 0.00 1,754,367.76 (1,754,367.76) 0%

$18,893,753.00 $14,027,052.78 $4,866,700.22  
 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $18,893,753.00 $14,027,052.78 $4,866,700.22 74%
 

  
 
NET INCOME $1,036,085.00 $689,413.45 $346,671.55 67%

    
    

  
 
 
    
    

 
 

 

-4-



S O C R R A
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT
JULY 1, 2012 THROUGH MARCH 31, 2013

2012/13 2011/12 VARIANCES
REVENUES

MEMBER SERVICES $12,740,485.30 $12,261,092.00 $479,393.30
 

NON MEMBER REFUSE 836,559.99 788,906.60 47,653.39
 

YARD WASTE
MEMBERS 0.00 0.00 0.00
OTHERS 55,314.40 53,922.80 1,391.60

 
$13,632,359.69 $13,103,921.40 $528,438.29

RECYCLABLES

NEWSPAPERS $429,369.69 $630,401.92 ($201,032.23)
BOXBOARD 116,998.94 0.00 116,998.94
CARDBOARD 34,150.10 287,456.15 (253,306.05)
PLASTIC 244,307.96 329,397.57 (85,089.61)
SCRAP METAL 39,007.76 44,477.09 (5,469.33)
TIN CANS 69,615.62 93,521.50 (23,905.88)
NON FERROUS METAL 14,377.40 15,152.66 (775.26)
GLASS 7,577.00 4,080.25 3,496.75
BATTERIES 687.72 1,128.54 (440.82)
USED ELECTRONICS 8,948.53 6,872.51 2,076.02

$965,040.72 $1,412,488.19 ($447,447.47)

OTHER

COMPOST SALES $22,619.00 $85,781.00 ($63,162.00)
INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS 13,639.18 14,154.01 (514.83)
RENTAL OF HOMES 65,772.50 49,691.62 16,080.88
GRANTS 0.00 0.00 0.00
MISC. INCOME 17,035.14 15,601.90 1,433.24

$119,065.82 $165,228.53 ($46,162.71)

TOTAL REVENUES $14,716,466.23 $14,681,638.12 $34,828.11

OPERATING EXPENSES $14,027,052.78 $13,584,538.34 $442,514.44

EXCESS $689,413.45 $1,097,099.78 ($407,686.33)

 
 

 
 

 

-5-



SOCRRA
TOTAL SERVICE CHARGES
JULY 1, 2012 THROUGH MARCH 31, 2013

SERVICE
MUNICIPALITY TOTAL TONS CHARGES

BERKLEY 5,019 $665,698.11
  

BEVERLY HILLS 4,001 462,528.00
  

BIRMINGHAM 8,807 1,039,638.55
 

CLAWSON 4,555 553,755.49
 

FERNDALE 7,749 1,226,899.97
 

HAZEL PARK 4,617 806,616.00
 

HUNTINGTON WOODS 2,596 266,646.00
 

LATHRUP VILLAGE 1,652 205,664.00
 

OAK PARK 7,291 1,167,237.53
 

PLEASANT RIDGE 1,434 130,409.24
 

ROYAL OAK 21,270 3,199,116.33
  

TROY 22,107 3,016,276.08
 

SUB-TOTAL 91,097 $12,740,485.30
  

OTHER CUSTOMERS 21,442 $891,874.39  
DROP OFF CENTERS 279 0.00

 
TOTAL 112,818 $13,632,359.69  

  
 

 

 

 

 

-6-



SOCRRA
IMPROVEMENT FUND
JULY 1, 2012  THROUGH  MARCH 31, 2013
  
  
  

   
 

 
EXPENDITURES   

 
   
          TS Driveway Replacement      $12,188.83  
          TS Used Truck $14,000.00
          MRF Cash Customer Bay/Compactor Wall 4,259.65  
          MRF Tour Room Renovation 5,291.07
          MRF HI LO 24,900.24
          MRF Wire Tie Strapper 15,623.00
          CS Retention Pond 8,314.33  
          CS Fence 9,200.00   
          CS Equipment - Loader Payments 12,891.00  

TOTAL $106,668.12  

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
  

   
-7-   

 



stewartc
Text Box
O-03a



stewartc
Text Box
O-03b



stewartc
Text Box
O-03c



stewartc
Text Box
O-03d



stewartc
Text Box
O-03e



stewartc
Text Box
O-03f



stewartc
Text Box
O-03g



stewartc
Text Box
O-03h





stewartc
Text Box
O-05





























stewartc
Text Box
O-06









 
  1 

Planning & 
Zoning  

Economic 
Development 

Building 
Inspections  

Community 
Affairs 

Public 
Infrastructure 

stewartc
Text Box
P-01



OVERVIEW 
 Outstanding Community Assets/National Recognition 
 Zucker Report – A Roadmap for Improved 

Development Processes 
 Departmental Coordination 

 Community Affairs 
 Economic Development 
 Planning & Zoning 
 Building Inspection & Plan Review 

 Testimonials 
 Questions/Answers 

 
2 



COMMUNITY ASSETS 
 Largest City in Oakland County (pop. 80,980) 
 Outstanding Central Location & Highway Access 
 Diverse & Highly Educated Population 
 One of Oakland County’s Lowest Tax Rates 
 6,400 Businesses Employ 129,000 People 
 Michigan’s Top Location for Automotive R&D 
 Home of Automation Alley 
 Major Financial Services Hub for State 
 World Headquarters for Two Fortune 500 Companies:  

Meritor and Kelly Services 
 Nationally Ranked School District 
 Twenty Parks & Recreational Facilities of 900+ Acres 

 
 

3 



NATIONALLY RECOGNIZED 
 Named the #1 Best Place to Live in Michigan and 26th Best 

in U.S. by CNN Money Magazine in 2012 
 Named the #1 Safest City in Oakland County, #3 Safest in 

Michigan Over 75,000 in Population and 26th Safest in U.S. 
 For the 3rd time Named a “Top Performing” Community for 

Attracting & Retaining Entrepreneurial Companies in 2012 
by the University of Michigan-Dearborn’s eCities Initiative 
and 6th year receiving top rankings overall 

 Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial 
Reporting from Government Finance Officers Association 
 

4 



TRANSFORMATION OF 
DEVELOPMENT APPROVAL 
PROCESSES 
 2008 Zucker Systems Report Evaluated Troy’s 

Development Approval and Permit Processes 
 102 Recommendations Set Forth 
 Led to Streamlining of Development Systems 
 Hybrid Model of City Staff and Private Consultants 

Implemented for Planning and Engineering Depts. 
 Building Department Contracted Out for Cost Savings 

and Increased Level of Service 
5 



COMMUNITY AFFAIRS 
 New Website Launched in December 2012 
 New Economic Resource Guide Published 2012 
 Troy Prominently Featured in Publications Like Xology, 

Prosper, Asource and Others 
 Quarterly Troy Today & Business E-News Highlights New & 

Expanding Businesses 
 Media/Publicity/Ribbon Cuts -  Support Provided to 

Businesses 
 Promote Troy as Michigan’s Premier Address for Business, 

Retail and Commerce 
 Contact:  Cindy Stewart at 248.524.1147 

6 



COMMUNITY AFFAIRS 
BEST PRACTICES 

7 

Troy’s new website has been redesigned to make navigation easier for 
residents, businesses and visitors. 

www.troymi.gov

http://www.troymi.gov/�


ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
 Economic Gardening:  Provide Information, Infrastructure and 

Connectivity to Address Business Needs and Encourage Growth 
 Emphasize Partnerships & Collaboration 
 Serve Entire Business Community and Target 2nd Stage 

Companies 
 Expanded Tools/Online Resources:  Business Roundtable 

Meetings, One-on-One Business Visits, New Business Checklist, 
Business Interest Form, Insyght Resources Tool, Intern in 
Michigan Link, Business Development E-Blast, Small Office Site 
Search Tool  

 Key Partners:  MEDC, Oakland County, Automation Alley, 
Walsh College, Troy Chamber 

 Contact:  Glenn Lapin at 248.524.3314 
8 



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
BEST PRACTICES 

9 

Troy’s Economic Gardening initiative emphasizes strong partnerships 
and collaboration in order to address business needs and encourage 
growth. 

Troy Michigan Business Connect 



PLANNING & ZONING 

 2008 Master Plan Sets Innovative Vision, Expands Range of 
Land Uses, and Protects Neighborhoods 

 2011 Zoning Ordinance is User-Friendly, Flexible, and 
Responsive to Market Conditions 

 2011 Big Beaver Design Guidelines Promotes Placemaking 
 Sustainable Development Project tool encourages 

sustainable measures in exchange for regulatory flexibility 
 On-Line Resources:  Master Plan, Zoning Ordinance, GIS 

Mapping, Big Beaver Design Guidelines 
 Contact:  Brent Savidant at 248.524.3366 

 10 



PLANNING & ZONING 
BEST PRACTICES 

11 

Troy’s Big Beaver Zoning District requires  active people-oriented uses adjacent 
to the street.  

Granite City 
699 W. Big Beaver 



BUILDING SERVICES 
 SAFEbuilt Building Department Services 
 Troy is Largest Michigan City with All Building Plan 

Review & Inspection Contracted Out 
 Fast, Fair & Predictable Permit & Inspection Services 
 Commercial Plan Review in Ten Days or Less 
 Residential Plan Review in Five Days or Less 
 98% Customer Satisfaction Rating 
 Coordination with Engineering & Fire Departments 
 Contact:  Steve Burns at 248.524.3344  

12 



BUILDING SERVICES 
BEST PRACTICES 

13 

Fast, fair and predictable permit and inspection services led to project 
completion in a timely manner. Troy’s Sustainable Development Project tool 
encourages “green” building design in exchange for regulatory flexibility.   

O’Brien Construction 
966 Livernois 



TESTIMONIALS 
 “The City of Troy has a distinguished business-friendly attitude.  Our company, UBT, purchased a building 

in Troy and completely redesigned it with “green” technology including geothermal wells, radiant heating, 
foam insulation, white PVC membrane roof technology, energy efficient lighting and electrical 
components, and recycled bamboo furniture.  When we experienced obstacles with plumbing and our 
geothermal wells throughout the redesign, the City of Troy was fantastic in obtaining the pertinent 
historical data we needed to make the repairs and move our team into our new home.  And to our pleasant 
surprise, the City of Troy followed up in person to verify that our construction was running smoothly so that 
we could safely operate our business once we settled in.  We are extremely happy to have relocated to Troy 
and would highly recommend this city to any business looking for a new home!” 

 Michelle D’Souza 
 Chief Executive Officer 
 Unified Business Technologies 
 April 2013 
 

 “Thanks for taking the time to organize the Manager’s Business Roundtable. It was very informative and I 
look forward to working with the City and you in particular. The event was so good that 3 out of the 4 
businesses already have connected and purchase orders will be issued within a week…” 

 Sri Bramadesam 
President 
Autoline Industries Ltd. 
January 2013 
 

 "I am very grateful for the wonderful help you provided and was extremely impressed how Troy went above 
and beyond what any other economic development agency provided. I know that the companies were also 
very impressed and that they will consider Troy when they are ready to set up in Michigan. Thank you again 
so much.“ 

 Patrick Dine 
President & CEO 
PSD Global (Representing Portuguese Delegation Visit) 
September 2012 
 

 

14 



TESTIMONIALS 
 "Mahindra looked at Illinois, the Netherlands and other locations when scouting a spot for a 

technical center in the West. And we found that Troy was the best location for engineers, for 
access to design and testing. Mahindra is keen to be a part of this ecosystem and culture.“ 

 Rajan Wadhera 
Chief Executive for Technology, Products & Sourcing 
Mahindra Engineering 
September 2012 

 “Huntington Bank is proud to call Troy home for our East Michigan Headquarters. The City of 
Troy has been a supportive and collaborative Team to work with and we feel very welcomed by 
the community. Troy’s central location in the region is critical to our Huntington East 
Michigan Operation.”  

 Mike Fezzey 
Regional President 
Huntington - East Michigan  
April 2012 

 "I work with many cities in Macomb and Oakland County and unfortunately deal with a lot of 
bureaucracy which causes long delays in my line of business. However, working with the city 
of Troy is just the opposite. I get things done quickly, efficiently and professionally. I enjoy 
working with the City of Troy and look forward to many more successful years together."  

 Jamie Blumenthal 
President, H.E.R Management 
Long Lake Plaza 
January, 2012 

15 



QUESTIONS & ANSWERS 
 Thank You! 
 www.troymi.gov
 

16 

http://www.troymi.gov/�

	May 13, 2013 Agenda
	Cover Memo
	Vision Statement and Goals
	Agenda: Return to 1st Page
	Explanation Booklet: Return to 1st Page
	INVOCATION:
	PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Brownies Troop #74802 From Costello Elementary
	INSTALLATION OF MAYOR:  Mayoral Oath Ceremony
	A. CALL TO ORDER:
	B. ROLL CALL:
	C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:
	C-1 Nature Society Presentation (Introduced by:  Brian Kischnick) (Presented by:  Stu Redpath)
	C-2 Proclamation and Presentation on May 13th – Asian and Pacific Islander Heritage Month (Presented by:  Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director)
	C-3 Building Safety Month, May 2013 (Presented by:  Steve Burns, SafeBuilt)

	D. CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	D-1 No Carryover Items

	E. PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	E-1 No Public Hearings

	F. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA:
	G. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT:
	H. POSTPONED ITEMS:
	H-1 Postponed Public Hearing – ZOTA 245 Sober Living Facilities

	I.  REGULAR BUSINESS:
	I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: a) Mayoral Appointments – None; b) City Council Appointments – Charter Revision Committee
	I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: a) Mayoral Nominations – None; b) City Council Nominations – Liquor Advisory Committee; Traffic Committee; Zoning Board of Appeals
	I-3 Request for Closed Session
	I-4 Proposed Revisions to Chapter 77 Smoking Lounges (Introduced by:  Lori Bluhm, City Attorney)
	I-5 Proposed Agreement with Somerset Collection (Introduced by:  Gary Mayer, Chief of Police and Andrew Breidenich, Sergeant)
	I-6 Sixth Order Amending Meritor and Nelson Companies Consent Judgment  (Introduced by:  Lori Bluhm, City Attorney)

	J.  CONSENT AGENDA:
	J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council
	J-2  Approval of 05/13
	a) City Council Regular Meeting Minutes – April 15, 2013
	b) City Council Special Study Session (Budget) Minutes – April 22, 2013
	c) City Council Special Study Session (Budget) Minutes – April 24, 2013

	J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations
	a) Proclamation Celebrating Nurses Week – May 6-12, 2013

	J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:
	a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidder – Fencing for the Athena Detention Basin
	b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidder – Parking Lot Maintenance
	c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option – Building Department Services

	J-5 Acceptance of Alliance of Rouge Communities (ARC) Membership and Adoption of Bylaws
	J-6 Assessment of Delinquent Accounts
	J-7 Charlene Femminineo v City of Troy et. al.
	J-8 Daniel Katayama v City of Troy
	J-9 Center Court Tennis LLC v City of Troy
	J-10 Community Financial Members Federal Credit Union v City of Troy et. al.

	K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Submitted
	K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at  some future point in time): None Submitted

	L. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA:
	M. COUNCIL REFERRALS:
	M-1  No Council Referrals Advanced

	N. COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	N-1  No Council Comments Advanced

	O. REPORTS:
	O-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  None Submitted
	a) Downtown Development Authority-Final – May 2, 2012
	b) Downtown Development Authority-Final – September 19, 2012
	c) Brownfield Redevelopment Authority-Final – October 16, 2012
	d) Local Development Finance Authority-Final – October 22, 2012
	e) Zoning Board of Appeals-Final – January 15, 2013
	f) Traffic Committee-Final – March 20, 2013
	g) Planning Commission Special/Study-Final – March 26, 2013
	h) Building Code Board of Appeals-Final – April 3, 2013
	i) Planning Commission-Draft – April 9, 2013
	j) Planning Commission-Final – April 9, 2013
	k) Brownfield Redevelopment Authority-Draft – April 16, 2013
	l) Local Development Finance Authority-Draft – April 22, 2013
	m) Building Code Board of Appeals-Draft – May 1, 2013

	O-2 Department Reports:
	a) 2013 City of Troy Assessment Roll and Board of Review Report
	b) 2013 Year to Date Calls for Police Service Report
	c) Travel Expense Report – MML Capital Conference – Maureen McGinnis
	d) Quarterly Financial Report Ending March 31, 2013
	e) 3rd Quarter Report - SOCRRA

	O-3  Letters of Appreciation
	a) To Tim Richnak From William LaRue Regarding Professionalism of Staff
	b) To Aileen Bittner From Troy School District, Friends of the Troy Library and the League of Women Voters Regarding Participation in the “Get Gov-Understanding Troy’s Local Government” Program
	c) To Chief Mayer Regarding Participation in a Department Presentation at the Troy Area Interfaith Group
	d) To Chief Mayer From Ron Chick Regarding Department Participation in the Senior Fraud Seminar
	e) To Chief Mayer From Marcel DeMuynck Regarding Officer Actions at an Accident Scene
	f) To the Police Department From Maria Campot Regarding Professionalism of Staff to the Family
	g) To Department of Public Works From Ron McCreight Regarding Conscientious Work Crews
	h) To Gary Bowers From Amy Sharpe Regarding Code Enforcement Efforts

	O-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted
	O-5  Letter of Understanding From Rehmann Regarding Audit Services for FY 2012-13
	O-6  Oakland County Board of County Canvassers Report for the May 7, 2013 Election

	P. STUDY ITEMS:
	P-1  Economic Gardening – Creating an Environment for Investment in Troy

	Q. CLOSED SESSION:
	Q-1  Closed Session

	R. ADJOURNMENT:
	Monday, May 20, 2013 Regular Meeting
	Monday, June 3, 2013 Regular Meeting
	Monday, June 17, 2013 Regular Meeting
	Monday, July 8, 2013 Regular Meeting
	Monday, July 22, 2013 Regular Meeting
	Monday, August 12, 2013 Regular Meeting
	Monday, August 26, 2013 Regular Meeting
	Monday, September 9, 2013 Regular Meeting
	Monday, September 23, 2013 Regular Meeting
	Monday, October 7, 2013 Regular Meeting
	Monday, October 21, 2013 Regular Meeting
	Monday, November 11, 2013 Regular Meeting
	Monday, November 25, 2013 Regular Meeting
	Monday, December 2, 2013 Regular Meeting
	Monday, December 16, 2013 Regular Meeting
	Attachments.pdf
	20130513 Agenda - C-02  Asian and Pacific Islander Heritage Month.pdf
	20130513 Agenda - C-03  Building Safety Month - May 2013
	20130513 Agenda - H-01  Postponed Public Hearing - Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number ZOTA 245) - Sober Living Facilities
	ADP141.tmp
	AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND

	ADP144.tmp
	RESPONSES TO CITY COUNCIL QUESTIONS
	PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPARTMENT
	The following questions were asked by City Councilman Campbell.  Responses follow each question in red.
	The following questions were asked by City Councilman Henderson.  Responses follow each question in red.

	ZOTA 245 Sober Living Facilities_PH 2013 04 15.pdf
	ADP27C.tmp
	AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND

	ADP17F.tmp
	PUBLIC HEARING OPENED

	ADPF3.tmp
	PUBLIC HEARING OPENED

	ADP1A4.tmp
	AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND


	ADP146.tmp
	Slide Number 1
	ITEM #E-01
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16

	ADP149.tmp
	A. PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	E-1 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number:  ZOTA 245) - Sober Living Facilities


	ADP18A.tmp
	AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND


	20130513 Agenda - I-04 Proposed Revisions to Chapter 77 Smoking Lounges
	20130513 Agenda - I-05  Proposed Agreement with Somerset Collection
	20130513 Agenda - I-06  Sixth Order Amending Meritor and Nelson Companies Consent Judgment
	20130513 Agenda - J-02a  City Council Minutes-Draft - April 15, 2013
	A. CALL TO ORDER:
	B. ROLL CALL:
	C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:
	C-1 Commendations To The Robert Allen Group – 75 Years In Business And In Appreciation For Their Generous Donation To Fund A Wildflower Garden At Civic Center And Town Center Drive, Presented To Patty Mulkiten, Showroom Manager  (Postponed to the May ...
	C-2 Proclamation To Proclaim Sunday, April 21, 2013 As PowerTalk 21 Day Presented To Travis Reece From The MADD State Office (Proclamation not presented as Representatives of MADD did not Appear)
	C-3 Athens Student Congress Commendation For Raising Over $41,000 During Spirit Week Presented To The Student Congress Executive Officers Chanmee Chung, President And Oliver Harfield, Secretary of Community Service
	C-4 Proclamation In Recognition Of Krista Manfredi And The 40th Anniversary Of The Athens Theatre Company

	D. CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	D-1 No Carryover Items

	E. PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	E-1 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number:  ZOTA 245) - Sober Living Facilities

	F. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA:
	G. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT:
	H. POSTPONED ITEMS:
	H-1 No Postponed Items

	I.  REGULAR BUSINESS:
	I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: a) Mayoral Appointments – Brownfield Redevelopment Authority; b) City Council Appointments – Charter Revision Committee, Zoning Board of Appeals
	I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: a) Mayoral Nominations – None; b) City Council Nominations – Charter Revision Committee, Zoning Board of Appeals
	I-3 Closed Session
	I-4 Proposed Agreement With Ice Lounge – 5903 John R (Introduced by:  Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney)

	J.  CONSENT AGENDA:
	J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council
	J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	a) City Council Regular Meeting Minutes – April 8, 2013

	J-3 No Proposed City of Troy Proclamations
	J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:
	a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Sole Bidder Meeting Specifications – Slide Renovation
	b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option – Lawn And Yard Services For The Home Chore Program
	c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Low Bidder Meeting Specifications – Printing Services For The Troy Today Quarterly Newsletter
	d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Award To Low Bidder With Minor Deviation – Mosquito Control
	e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Sole Bidder Meeting Specifications – Fertilizer/Herbicide Application Services


	K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Submitted
	K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at  some future point in time): None Submitted

	L. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA:
	M. COUNCIL REFERRALS:
	M-1  No Council Referrals Advanced

	N. COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	N-1  Council Comments
	I-4 Proposed Agreement With Ice Lounge – 5903 John R (Introduced by:  Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney)

	O. REPORTS:
	O-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  None Submitted
	a) Animal Control Appeal Board-Final – November 28, 2012
	b) Building Code Board of Appeals-Final – March 6, 2013
	c) Planning Commission Special/Study-Draft – March 26, 2013

	O-2 Department Reports:
	a) Proposed Budget

	O-3  Letters of Appreciation
	a) To Police Department from Care House of Oakland County Regarding Donations
	b) To Sergeant Joseph Haddad from the Drennan Family Regarding Assistance for the Family

	O-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted
	O-5  Proposed Changes to Hookah License Ordinance

	P. STUDY ITEMS:
	P-1  No Study Items

	Q. CLOSED SESSION:
	Q-1  Closed Session

	R. ADJOURNMENT:

	20130513 Agenda - J-02b  City Council Special Study Minutes-Draft - April 22, 2013
	A. CALL TO ORDER:
	B. ROLL CALL:
	C. DISCUSSION ITEM:
	C-1 Proposed Fiscal Year 2013-2014 Annual Budget and Three-Year Budget

	D. PUBLIC COMMENT:
	E. ADJOURNMENT:

	20130513 Agenda - J-02c  City Council Special Study Minutes-Draft - April 24, 2013
	A. CALL TO ORDER:
	B. ROLL CALL:
	C. DISCUSSION ITEM:
	C-1 Proposed Fiscal Year 2013-2014 Annual Budget and Three-Year Budget

	D. PUBLIC COMMENT:
	E. ADJOURNMENT:

	20130513 Agenda - J-03a Proclamation Celebrating Nurses Week - May 6-12, 2013
	20130513 Agenda - J-04a  SPR1 Award to Low Bidder - Fencing for the Athena Detention Basin
	Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 1 Athena Detention Pond Fencing ITB-COT 13-12 Memo
	ITB-COT 13-12 Athena Pond Fencing BidTab

	20130513 Agenda - J-04b  SPR1 Award to Low Bidder - Parking Lot Maintenance Program
	Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 1 Parking Lot Maintenance Program 13-09 Memo
	ITB-COT 13-09 ParkingLotMntnceProgram Bid Tab

	20130513 Agenda - J-04c  SPR3  Exercise Renewal Option - Building Department Services
	20130513 Agenda - J-05  Acceptance of ARC Membership & Adoption of Bylaws
	20130513 Agenda - J-06  Assessment of Delinquent Accounts
	20130513 Agenda - J-07  Charlene Femminineo v City of Troy et al
	20130513 Agenda - J-08  Daniel Katayama v City of Troy
	20130513 Agenda - J-09  Center Court Tennis LLC v City of Troy
	20130513 Agenda - J-10  Community Financial Members Credit Union v City of Troy et al
	20130513 Agenda - O-01a  Downtown Development Authority-Final - May 2, 2012
	20130513 Agenda - O-01b  Downtown Development Authority-Final - September 19, 2012
	20130513 Agenda - O-01c  Brownfield Redevelopment Authority-Final - October 16, 2012
	20130513 Agenda - O-01d  Local Development Finance Authority-Final - October 22, 2012
	20130513 Agenda - O-01e  Zoning Board of Appeals-Final - January 15, 2013
	20130513 Agenda - O-01f  Traffic Committee-Final - March 20, 2013
	20130513 Agenda - O-01g  Planning Commission Special-Study-Final - March 26, 2013
	20130513 Agenda - O-01h  Building Code Board of Appeals-Final - April 3, 2013
	20130513 Agenda - O-01i  Planning Commission-Draft - April 9, 2013
	20130513 Agenda - O-01j  Planning Commission-Final - April 9, 2013
	20130513 Agenda - O-01k  Brownfield Redevelopment Authority-Draft - April 16, 2013
	20130513 Agenda - O-01l  Local Development Finance Authority-Draft - April 22, 2013
	20130513 Agenda - O-01m  Building Code Board of Appeals-Draft - May 1, 2013
	20130513 Agenda - O-02a  2013 City of Troy Assessment Roll and Board of Review Report
	20130513 Agenda - O-02b  2013 Year to Date Calls for Police Service Report
	20130513 Agenda - O-02c Travel Expense Report - Council Member McGinnis Travel to the 2013 MML Capital Conference
	20130513 Agenda - O-02d  Quarterly Financial Report Ending March 31, 2013
	05.13.13 - City of Troy Interim Financial Statements for the Nine Months Ended March 31, 2013 att.pdf
	GF
	Refuse
	DDA
	Library
	Capital
	Sanctuary
	Sylvan
	Aquatic
	Sewer
	Water


	20130513 Agenda - O-02e 3rd Quarter Report - SOCRRA
	20130513 Agenda - O-03a LoA to Tim Richnak From William LaRue Regarding Professionalism of Staff
	20130513 Agenda - O-03b LoA to Aileen Bittner From TSD, Friends of the TPL and League of Women Voters
	20130513 Agenda - O-03c  LoA to Chief Mayer Regarding Participating in Dept Presentation at Troy Area Interfaith Group
	20130513 Agenda - O-03d LoA to Chief Mayer From Ron Chick Regarding Senior Fraud Seminar
	20130513 Agenda - O-03e LoA to Chief Mayer From Marcel DeMuynck RE Officer Actions at Accident Scene
	20130513 Agenda - O-03f  LoA to Police Dept From Maria Campot RE Professionalism of Staff to Family
	20130513 Agenda - O-03g LoA to DPW From Ron McCreight Regarding Conscientious Work Crews
	20130513 Agenda - O-03h  LoA to Gary Bowers From Amy Sharpe re Code Enforcement Efforts
	20130513 Agenda - O-05  Letter of Understanding From Rehmann RE Audit Services for FY 2012-13
	20130513 Agenda - O-06  Oakland County Board of Canvassers Report for the May 7, 2103 Special Election
	20130513 Agenda - P-01  Economic Gardening - Creating an Environment for Investment in Troy
	Slide Number 1
	OVERVIEW
	COMMUNITY ASSETS
	NATIONALLY RECOGNIZED
	TRANSFORMATION OF DEVELOPMENT APPROVAL PROCESSES
	COMMUNITY AFFAIRS
	COMMUNITY AFFAIRS�BEST PRACTICES
	ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
	ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT�BEST PRACTICES
	PLANNING & ZONING
	PLANNING & ZONING�BEST PRACTICES
	BUILDING SERVICES
	BUILDING SERVICES�BEST PRACTICES
	TESTIMONIALS
	TESTIMONIALS
	QUESTIONS & ANSWERS





